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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Board of Directors of Denizbank Anonim Sirketi:
Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated financial statements of Denizbank A.S (the Bank) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred as “The Group”), which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2017, and
the consolidated statement of income, consolidated statement of income and expenses recognized under shareholders’
equity, consolidated statement of changes in sharcholders’ equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of Denizbank A.$. and its subsidiaries as at December 31, 2017 and consolidated financial performance
and consolidated its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the Banking Regulation and Supervision
Agency (“BRSA”) Accounting and Financial Reporting Legislation which includes “Regulation on Accounting
Applications for Banks and Safeguarding of Documents™ published in the Official Gazette no.26333 dated | November
2006, and other regulations on accounting records of Banks published by Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency
and circulars and interpretations published by BRSA and Turkish Accounting Standards (“TAS”) for those matters not
regulated by the aforementioned regulations.

Basis for Opinion

Our audit was conducted in accordance with “Regulation on independent audit of the Banks™ published in the Official
Gazette n0.29314 dated 2 April 2015 by BRSA (BRSA Independent Audit Regulation) and Independent Auditing
Standards (“ISA”) which are the part of Turkish Auditing Standards issued by the Public Oversight Accounting and
Auditing Standards Authority (“POA™). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Bank in
accordance with of Code of Ethics for Independent Auditors (Code of Ethics) published by POA and have fulfilled our
other responsibilities in accordance with the code of ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited



EY

Building a better
working world

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. Key audit matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matter

How the Key Audit Matter is addressed in our audit

Impairment of Loans and Receivables

Impairment of loans and receivables to customer is a key
area of judgement for the management. There is a potential
risk of impairment losses/provisions provided/will be
provided may not meet the requirements of BRSA
Accounting and Financial Reporting Legislation. Failure
in determining the loans and receivables which are
impaired and not recording the adequate provision for
these impaired loans is the aforementioned risk. Therefore,
impairment of the loans and receivables is considered as a
key audit matter. Related Explanations relating to the
impairment of loans and receivables have been disclosed
in Section Three Note VII d., Section Five Note I.e and
Note ILh.1.

Our audit procedures included among others, selecting
samples of loans and receivables based on our judgement
and considering whether there is objective evidence that
impairment exists on these loans and receivables and the
assessment of impairment losses of loans and receivables
were reasonably determined in accordance with the
requirements of BRSA Accounting and Financial
Reporting Legislation. In addition we considered, assessed
and tested the relevant controls over granting, booking,
monitoring and settlement, and those relating to the
calculation of credit provisions, to confirm the operating
effectiveness of the key controls in place, which identify
the impaired loans and receivables and the required
provisions against them.

Derivative Financial Instruments

Derivative financial instruments including foreign
exchange contracts, currency and interest rale swaps,
currency and interest rate options and other derivative
financial instruments which are held for trading are
initially recognized on the statement of financial position
at fair value and subsequently are re-measured at their fair
value. Details of related amounts are explained in Section
Five Note 1.b.3.and Note IL.b.

Fair value of the derivative financial instruments is
determined by selecting most convenient market data and
applying valuation techniques to those particular
derivative products. Derivative Financial Instruments are
considered by us as a key audit matter because of the
subjectivity in the estimates, assumptions and judgements
used.

Our audit procedures included among others involve
reviewing policies regarding fair value measurement
accepted by the Group management fair value calculations
of the selected derivative financial instruments and the
assessment of used estimations and the judgements and
testing the assessment of operating effectiveness of the key
controls in the process of fair value determination.
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Responsibilities of Management and Directors for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Group management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with the BRSA Accounting and Reporting Legislation and for such internal control as management determines
is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial statement that is free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank’s and its subsidiaries
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Bank and its subsidiaries or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
In an independent audit, the responsibilities of us as independent auditors are:

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion, Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with BRSA Independent
Audit Regulation and ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise {rom fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with BRSA Independent Audit Regulation and ISAs, we exercise professional judgement
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

" Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. (The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.)

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank
and its subsidiaries’ internal control.

" Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Bank and its subsidiaries’ ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Bank and its subsidiaries’ to cease to continue as a going concern.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

B Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities

within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide those charged with government with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1) In accordance with Article 402 paragraph 4 of the Turkish Commercial Code (“TCC”) no 6102; no significant
matter has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the Bank’s bookkeeping activities and financial
statements for the period January 1 — December 31, 2017 are not in compliance with the TCC and provisions of
the Bank’s articles of association in relation to financial reporting.

2) In accordance with Article 402 paragraph 4 of the TCC; the Board of Directors submitted to us the necessary
explanations and provided required documents within the context of audit.

The engagement partner who supervised and concluded this independent auditor’s report is Fatma Ebru Yiicel,

Additional paragraph for convenience translation to English

As explained in detail in Note I of Section Three, the effects of differences between accounting principles and standards
set out by regulations in conformity with BRSA Accounting and Financial Reporting Legislation, accounting principles
generally accepted in countries in which the accompanying consolidated financial statements are to be distributed and
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) have not been quantified in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements. Accordingly, the accompanying consolidated financial statements are not intended to present the
financial position, results of operations and changes in financial position and cash flows in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in such countries and IFRS.

Giiney Bagimsiz Denetim ve Serbest Muhasebeci Mali Miisavirlik Anonim Sirketi

A member firm of Emst & Young Global Limited

i e, pt® f/;‘r
Fatma Ebru Yticel SMMM
Partner

7 February 2018
Istanbul, Tiirkiye
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DENIZBANK A.S.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL REPORT AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2017

Address of the Bank’s Headquarters
Biylikdere Caddesi No:141

34394 -ESENTEPE/ISTANBUL

Telephone and Fax Numbers
Tel :0.212.348 20 00
Fax: 0.212.336 61 86

Website of the Bank
www.denizbank.com

E-mail address of the Bank
yatirimciiliskileri@denizbank.com

The consolidated financial report package prepared in accordance with the statement "Financial Statements and Related Disclosures
and Footnotes to be Announced to Public" as required by the Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency (BRSA), is comprised of the
following sections:

GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE PARENT BANK

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE PARENT BANK

DISCLOSURES ON ACCOUNTING POLICIES IN RELATED PERIOD

INFORMATION RELATED TO FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK MANAGEMENT OF THE CONSOLIDATED GROUP
DISCLOSURES AND FOOTNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OTHER DISCLOSURES AND FOOTNOTES

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Our structured entity and subsidiaries whose financial statements have been consolidated under this consolidated financial report are
as follows:

R R R kiR R - e AR R i R R I R e R e i e A R e A ————————|
Subsidiaries —_—
1 Denizbank AG, Vienna
2 Eurodeniz International Banking Unit Ltd.
3 Deniz Yatirim Menkul Kiymetler A.S.
4 JSC Denizbank, Moscow
5 Deniz Portfdy Yonetimi A.S.
6 Deniz Finansal Kiralama A.S.
7 Deniz Faktoring A.S.
8 Deniz Gayrimenkul Yatinm Ortakhgi A.S.
9 CR Erdberg Eins GmbH & Co KG

Structured Entity
1 DFS Funding Corp.

The consolidated financial statements and related disclosures and footnotes that were subject to independent audit, are prepared in
accordance with the "Regulation on Accounting Principles and Documentations", Turkish Accounting Standards, Turkish Financial
Reporting Standards and the related statements, and in compliance with the financial records of our Bank. Unless stated otherwise, the
accompanying consolidated financial statements are presented in Thousands of Turkish Lira.

7 February 2018 " i
2= W =57
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HAKAN ELVERDI RUSLAN ABIL %KAN ATES HERMAN GREF
Senior Vice Presigdent Executive Vice President Member of Board of Directors Chairman of Board of
Financial Reporti Financial Affairs and President and Chief Directors

And Accounting Executive Officer

m | O I ——
PAVEL BARCHUGOV WOUTER G.M VAN ROSTE NIHAT SEVING
Membej of Board of Directors Member of Board of Directors Member of Board of Directors
and Audit Committe and Audit Committe and Audit Committe

Contact information for questions on this financial report:

Name/Title: imge Ihtiyar / Department Head, International Reporting and Consolidation Department
Tel No: 0212 348 5997

Fax No: 0212 336 6186
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Consolidated Financial Report
AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2017 Originally Issued in Turkish,
{Currency: Thousands of TL - Turkish Lira) See Note 3.1.c
SECTION ONE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Parent Bank's date of establishment, beginning statute, its history including changes in its statute

Denizbank A.S. {"the Bank™) was established as a public bank to provide financing services to the maring sector
in 1938. In 1992, as a resuit of the resolution of the Government to merge some public banks, the Bank was
merged to Emlakbank. Following the resolution of the High Council of Privatization numbered 97/5 and dated
20 March 1297 to privatize 100% of shares of Denizbank A.$., share sale agreement between Zorlu Helding
A.S. and the Privatization Administration was signed on 29 May 1997 and the Bank started its activities on 25
August 1997 upon obtaining a permission to operate. Bank's shares have been quoted on Borsa Istanbul
{“BiST") since 1 October 2004. 0,15% of the Bank's shares are publicly held as of 31 December 2017.

Dexia Participation Belgigue SA, owned 100% directly and indirectly by Dexia SA/NV, acquired 75% of the
outstanding shares of the Bank from Zorlu Holding A.S. on 17 October 2006, and subsequent to the transfer
of shares, Dexia Participation Belgique’s ownership rate increased to 99,85%.

On 8 June 2012, Dexia Group and Sherbank of Russia ("Sberbank”) have signed a sale and purchase
agreement regarding the acquisition of 715.010.291,335 Parent Bank shares representing 99,85% of the
Bank’s capital. The transaction covered the Parent Bank as well as all of its subsidiaries in Turkey, Austria and
Russia. Following all the necessary regulatory autherizations in the countries in which seller and buyer operate
including that of the European Commission, after the approvals of Competition Authority on § August 2012,
the Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency on 12 September 2012 and the Capital Markets Board
(“*CMB™} on 24 September 2012, Dexia has transferred 99,85% of shares of the Parent Bank to Sberbank with
a total consideration of TL 6.469.140.728 (Euro 2.790 miliion) which is the Preliminary Purchase Price
determined as per the sale and purchase agreement as of 28 September 2012. Following the completion of
the adjustment process of the Preliminary Purchase Price to Purchase Price in accordance with the terms in
the Share Purchase Agreement, an additional amount of Eurc 185 million which is equivalent of TL
430.947.685 (*) was paid on 27 December 2012, Ultimately the process was completed with a total Purchase
Price of TL. 6.800.088.413 (Euro 2.975 million).

{*y Amounts are reflected as full TL.

Capital structure, shareholders controlling the management and supervision of the Parent Bank
directly or indirectly, and if exists, changes on these issues and the Group that the Parent Bank
belongs to

Current Period

Name of the Shareholder Amount (Full TL) Share (%)
Sherbank of Russia 3.311.211.134 99,85
Publicly traded 4.888.709 0,15
QOthers shareholders 157

Total 3.316.100.000 100,00

Prior Period

Name of the Shareholder Amount {Full TL) Share (%)
Sberbank of Russia 3.311.211.134 99,85
Publicly traded 4.888.709 0,15
Others shareholders 157 -

Total 3.316.100.000 100,00

Paid-in capital of the Parent Bank was increased by a total amount of TL 1.500.000; TL 39 from share
premiums, TL 113.087 from gains on saie of subsidiaries and associates and real estate, TL 636.864 from
extraordinary reserves and TL 750.000 in cash, on 28 June 2016.
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Explanations regarding the chairman and the members of board of directors, audit committee,
general manager and assistants and shares of the Parent Bank they possess and their areas of

responsibility
Name Title Shares owned (%)
Chairman of the Board of Directors
Herman Graf Chairman e
Board of Directors®
Nihat Seving Depuly Chairman -
Hakan Ates Member, President and CEC 0,000002
Alexander Vedyalhin Member -
Deniz Ulke Anbogan Member -
Wouter G.M. Van Roste Member -
Timur Kozintsev Member -
Derya Kumru Member -
Alexander Morozov Member -
Pavel Barchugov Member -
Alexander Titov(® Member -
igor Kolomeyskiy® Member -
Audit Committee
Wouter G.M. Van Roste Member -
Nihat Seving Member -
Pavel Barchugov Member -

Executive Vice Presidents

Bora Béclgdz
Rusian Abil &
Dilek Duman
Tanju Kaya
Mustafa Ozet
ibrahim Sen
Mehmet Aydogdu
Mustafa Saruhan Ozel
Cem Demirag

Ali Murat Dizdar
Aysenur Higkiran
Murat Gelik

Selim Efe Teoman
Ramazan Isik
Gnder Ozcan
Murat Kulaksiz
Necip Yavuz Elkin
Burak Kogak
Oguzhan Qzark
Cemil Cem Oneng
Sinan Yimaz

Hakan Turan Pala

Edip Kirgad Bager

Murat Crtak

Verda Beril Yiizer Oguz
Hayri Cansever

Umut Ozdogan ¥

Treasury and Financial Institutions

Financial Affairs

Information Techneologies and Support Operations
Administrative Services and Investment Group
Branch and Central Operations

Credit Follow-up and Risk Monitoring
Corporate and Commercial Banking
Econemic Research, Strategy and Program Management
Head of Internal Control Unit and Compliance
Chief Legal Advisor

Payment Systems and Non-Branch Channels
Digital Genaration Banking

Corporate and Comvmercial Credits

Head of Internal Audit

Management Reporting and Budget Planning
SME Banking

Human Resources and Deniz Academy
Agricultural Banking

Retail Banking

Private Banking and Investment Group

Head of Risk Management Group

Corporate, Commercial and Medium Enterprises Credits

Administrative Follow-up

Credit Policy and Retaif, SME, Agricultural Banking

Credits Allocation

IT Security and Digital-Card Payment Operations
Financial Institutions

Secretariat General and Sberbank Coordination
Cash Management, Public Finance and Organization

M plexander Titov was appointed 2s a Member of lhe Board of the Directors at the ordinary General Assembly meeting held on 28 March
2017 and sworn in to the position on 27 Apsil 2017 instead of Svetlana Sagaydak, who had resigned from her position as of 2 March 2017,

@ vadim Kulik who resigned from Sberbank of Russia on 15 February 2017, left his position at Sberbank and therefore his membership
on Denizbank Board of Directors was terminated at the Ordinary General Assembly meeting held on 29 March 2017 and Mykyta Volkov
was appointed instead of him as a member of the Board of Directors. Mykyta Volkov resigned from her position as of 26 April 2017.
According to the Board’s decision on 19 June 2017, Igor Kolomeyskiy, who has been assigned as Board member of the Parent Bank, has
started his duty on 13 July 2017.
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@} Suavi Demirciodlu, who has been serving as the Executive Vice President responsible for the Financial Affairs at the Bank, retired from
the Bank as of 31 March 2017. As of 3 April 2017 he was replaced by Ruslan Abil who has been serving as Executive Vice President
responsible for the Group Reporting and Asset- Liability Management Group by the decision of Board of Birectors.

¥ as of 10 March 2017, Umut Czdogan was appointed as Executive Vice President of Cash Management, Public Finance and
Organization Group, who has served as Branch Manager of [stanbul Corporate Branch in the Bank.

% Parent Bank's Board member Igor Kondrashov resigned from his duty as of 25 August 2017.

Explanations regarding the real person and corporate qualified shareholders at the Parent Bank

Share Share Paid-in Unpaid
Commercial Title Amounis Percentages Capital Capital
Sberbank of Russia 3.311.211 $9,85% 3.311.211 -

Sberbank is the controlling party of the Parent Bank’s capital having hoth direct and indirect qualified shares.
As of 31 December 2017 the capital structure of Sberbank is as follows:

Shareholders Share Percentages
Central Bank of Russia 850,00 %
Publicly traded 50,00 %
Total 100,00 %

Central Bank of the Russian Faderation holds 50%+1 share within 22.586.848.000 ordinary and preferred shares in total in Sherbank of
Russia ({the rate in 21.586.948.000 ordinary shares corresponds to 52,32%).

Type of services provided and the areas of operations of the Parent Bank

The Parent Bank is a private sector deposit bank which provides banking services to its customers through
696 domestic and 1 foreign branch as of 31 December 2017.

Aclivities of the Parent Bank as stated in the 3rd clause of the Articles of Association are as follows;
In accordance with the Banking Law and regulations;
s Performing all kinds of banking activities,

» Dealing with transactions on all kinds of capital market instruments within the limits set by the related
regulations and Capital Market Law regulations,

» Establishing domestic and/or foreign entities and participating in existing entities. Entering into loan
and intelligence agreements with domestic and international financial institutions. Participating in
consortiums and syndications,

+ Incorporating insurance companies, operating insurance agencies, participating in insurance
companies which are existing or planned to be founded.
Apart from the above-mentioned activities, in case different activilies deemed advantageous and necessary
for the company are to be undertaken in the future, they will be submitied to approval of the General Assembly
based on Board of Director's decision and the company will be able to implement activities after the relevant
decision is made by General Assembly.

A short explanation on the differences between the communiqué on consolidated financial statement
reporting and the consolidation procedures required by Turkish Accounting Standards and about
institutions that are subject to full consolidation, proportional consolidation, by way of deduction from
capital or those that are subject to none.

Banks are obligated to prepare consolidated financial statements with their associates and subsidiaries
qualifying as credit institutions and financial subsidiaries based on the “Communiqué on Preparation of
Consolidated Financial Statements of Banks™ by applying Turkish Accounting Standards. There is no difference
between the consolidated financial statements based on the related Communiqué and those prepared in
accordance with Turkish Accounting Standards except the scope difference regarding non-financial associates
and subsidiaries. information in regards to consclidated subsidiaries and consolidation methods are given in
Note HI of Section Three.

Existing or potential, actual or legal obstacles to immediate transfer of capital between Parent Bank
and its subsidiaries and repayment of debts.

Nonhe.
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DENIZBANK ANONIM SIRKETI

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Convenience Transiation of
Consolidated Financlal Report

(BALANCE SHEETS) Originally Isswed in Turkish,
AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2017 AND 2016 See Note 3./.c
(Currency: Thousands of TL - Turkish Lira)
CURRENT PERIQD PRIOR PERIOD
ASSETS Footnates (31122017) (31/12/2016)
TL FC Total TL FC Total

I CASH AND BALANCES WITH THE CENTRAL BANK {5.1.3) 3.066.837 13.901.975 16,968,812 2,281.807 12.557.554 14.835.361

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
Il {Net) {5.1.b) 560.050 497713  1.057.763 1.049.942 397.917  1.447.B59
2.1 Financial Assets Held For Trading 560.050 497.713 1.057.763  1.049.942 397.917 1.447.859
2.1.1  Public Sector Dabt Securities 76.232 4479 a0, 711 93.100 3787 95.887
2.1.2  Share Certificates - 95 95 - - -
2.1.3  Positive Value of Trading Purpose Derivatives 482,669 493.138 975.808 945,929 394.096 1.341.025
2.1.4  Other Securities 1.149 - 1.149 9.913 34 9.947
2.2 Financial Assets Designated at Fair Value - - - - - -
221  Public Sector Debt Securities - - - - - -
222 Share Certificates - - - - - -
223 Loans - - - - - -
2.2.4  Other Securities - - - - - -
1. BANKS (5.L.c) 819136  9.838.4892 10,657.628 17.006 5555737  5.572.743
V. DUE FROM MONEY MARKETS 785,672 - 785.672 3.001.571 - 3.001.5M1
4.1 Interbank Maney Market . - - - B -
4.2 Istanbul Stock Exchange 34.885 - 34.886 175 - 175
4.3 Reverse Repurchase Agreements 750.786 - 750,786  3.001.3%6 - 3.001.396
\'A FINANCIAL ASSETS AVAILABLE FOR SALE (Net) (5.1.d} 5.760.627  1.285.406 7.046.033 5421.996 2.174.994  7.5959%0
5.1 Share Certificates 3.956 59,182 63.138 3.930 372.798 41,728
5.2 Public Sector Debt Securities 5.756.671 657.574 6414245 5.418.066 1.707.773  7.125.839
53 Other Securities - 568.650 568.650 - 429423 429,423
Vi LOANS AND RECEIVABLES (5..e) 60,228,273 50,153.033 110.381.306 49.267.0B0 41.883.408 91.150.488
6.1 Loans and Receivables 59.339.736  50.145.479 109485215 48268612 41.878.192 90.145.804
6.1.1  Loans Utilized to the Bank's Risk Group 13.638 - 13.628 14.194 - 14.194
6.1.2  Public Sector Debt Securities - - - - - -
6.1.3 Others 59.326.098 50.145.479 109.471.577 48254418 41.878.192 90.132.610
6.2 Laans under Follow-Up 4.006.824 17.790 4.024.614 3.635.008 16.631 3,651,639
B3 Specific Pravisions (-) 3.118.287 10.236 3128523 2.636.540 11.415  2.647.955
vil, FACTORING RECEIVABLES 1.781.817 64.328  1.846.145 1.155.332 79.38%  1.234.721
VIl.  INVESTMENT HELD TO MATURITY {Net) (5.1} 3.556.857 1779782 5335639 3.330.895 1.716.137  5.056.032
8.1 Pubtic Sector Debt Securities 3.555.857 1.779.782 5335639 3.335.895 1.678.583  5.018.478
8.2 Other Securities - - - - 37.554 37.554
[+ 8 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Net) {5.1.g) 10.833 - 10,833 10,147 - 10.147
9.1 Assoclates accounted for Under Equity Method - - - - - -
9.2 Unconsolidated Associates 10.833 - 10.833 10.147 - 10.147
9.2.1 Financial Associates 1.508 - 1.508 1.508 - 1.508
9.2.2  Non-Financial Associates 9.325 - 9,325 8.639 - 8.639
X INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Net) {5.1.h) 41.543 158 41.701 12.103 130 12.233
10.1 Unconsalidated Financial Subsidiaties - - - - - -
10.2  Unconsolidated Non-Financial Subsidiaries 41.543 158 41.701 12.103 130 12,233
XL ENTITIES UNDER COMMON CONTROL (JOINT VENT.) (Net) (5.14) 2.800 - 2.800 2.800 - 2.800
11.t  Joint Ventures accounted for Under Equity Method - - - - - -
11.2  Unconsolidated Joint Ventures 2,800 - 2.800 2.800 - 2.800
11.2.1 Financial Joint Ventures - - - - - -
11.2.2 Non-Financial Joint Ventures 2.800 - 2.800 2.800 . 2.300
X, LEASE RECEIVABLES (Net) {5.14) 540830 2.061.111  2.601.541 616.636  2.020.671 2.637.307
121 Financial Lease Receivables 712179 2.531.230 3.243.409 780,796  2.420.711 3.201.507
12.2  Operational Lease Recelvables 2,557 - 2.557 - - -
123  Others - - - - - -
12.4  Unearned Income {-) 173.908 470.119 644.025 164.160 400.040 564.200
Xill.  HEDGING PURPOSE DERIVATIVES (5.1.k) - - - - - -
13.1 Fair Value Hedge - - - - - -
t3.2  Cash Flow Hedge - - - - - -
13.3  Hedging of a Net Investment in Foreign Subsidiaries - - - - - -
XIV.  TANGIBLE ASSETS (Net) (5.LI} 603.216 146.298 749.514 552.614 111.965 664.579
XV, INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Nef) (5.1.m) 173.557 15.154 188.751 193.140 11.679 204 819
151 Goedwill 869 - 869 8E69 - 869
152  Others 172.688 15.194 187.882 192.271 11.679 203,950
XVl.  INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Net) (5.1.n) 171.467 - 171.467 184.527 - 164,527
XVIl. TAXASSETS (5.1.0) 223,175 - 223.175 220.354 34.510 254,864
17.1  Current Tax Assets 6.557 - 6.557 67.178 34.510 101.688
17.2  Deferred Tax Assets 216.618 - 216,618 153,176 - 153.176
XVIIl.  ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Net)  (5.L.p) - - - - - -
18.1  Held For Sale . - - - - -
18.2  Discontinued Qperations - - - - - -
XIX. OTHER ASSETS {5.1.9) 1345926  1.008.024 2.353.950 1.099.302 603.655  1.702.857

TOTAL ASSETS 79.671.616 _80,751.514 160.423.130 68,406,252 67.147.746 135.553.998

The accompanying notes are an integral pait of these consclidated financial statements.,
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DENIZBANK ANONIM SIRKETI
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(BALANCE SHEETS)

Convenience Translation of
Consolidated Financial Report
Criginally [ssued in Turkish,

AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2017 AND 2016 See Note 3.1.c
{Currency: Thousands of TL - Turkish Lira)
CURRENT PERIOD PRIOR PERIOD
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY Footnotes (3112/2017) (311272018)
TL FC Total TL FG Total
l. DEPOSITS (5.48) 41936959 69.473.505 111.410.464 35185381 57.010.570 52.195.951
1.1 Depaosits of the Bank's Risk Group 62,314 802,160 864.474 38.299 732.007 770.306
1.2 Others 41,874,645 68.671.345 110.545.990 35.147.082 56.278.563 91.425.645
1. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES HELD FOR TRADING (5.1.b) 653,127 632338  1.285.465 546,611 701,775  1.248.386
1. FUNDS BORROWED (5.11.c) 2,108,197 12.572.045 14.680.242 2128526 9.129,165 11.258.691
w. DUE TO MONEY MARKETS 3.616.119 391.047 4.007.166 5.387.576 -  5.397.578
4.1 Interbank Money Market - - - - - -
4.2 Istanbul Stock Exchange 30.055 - 30,085 - - -
4.3 Repurchase Agreements 3.586.064 391,047 3977111 5397.576 - 5.397.576
W, SECURITIES ISSUED (Net} {5.1.d) 2.572.688 1.100.070  3.672.768 2.181.325 1.309.730  3.491.055
5.1 Bills 2.296.203 - 2.296.203 1.766.245 - 1,766,245
5.2 Asset Backed Securities 248.543 - 248.543 415.080 - 415.080
53 Bonds 27.942 1,100,070  1.128.012 - 1.309.730  1.309.730
Vi FUNDS - - - - - -
6.1 Borrowers Funds - - - - - -
6.2 Others - - - - - -
Vi, SUNDRY CREDITORS 1.716.752 232,685  1.949.407 1.429.351 532.863  1.962.214
Vi OTHER EXTERNAL RESOURCES (5.1l.e) 1.088.450 1.638.702 2.727.152 1.060.323 912.887  1.973.210
X, FACTORING PAYABLES - - - - - -
X LEASE PAYABLES (Nst) (5.1.1) - - - - - -
10.1 Financial Lease Payables - - - - - -
10.2 Operational Lease Payables - - - - - -
10.3 Others - - - - - -
10.4 Deferred Financial Leasing Expenses (- ) - - - - - -
Xl HEDGING PURPOSE DERIVATIVES (5.1.9) - - - - - -
11.1 Fair value Hedge - - - - - -
1.2 Cash Flow Hedge - - - - - -
11.3 Hedging of a Net Investment in Fareign Subsidiaries - - - - - -
X, PROVISIONS (3.11.h} 2.190.447 37365 2.227.812 17165537 32614  1.748.151
121 General Provisions 1.440.765 - 1.440.765 1.269.354 - 1.269.354
12.2 Restructuring Provisions - - - - - -
12.3 Reserve for Empfoyee Benefits 131,983 11,675 143.658 114,048 7.671 121.719
124 Insurance Technical Provisions {Net) - - - - - -
125 QOther Provisions 617.699 25,590 643.389 332,135 24,943 357.078
Xin. TAX LIABILITIES (5.1.0) 281,619 66.115 347,734 138,053 17.072 205.165
13.1 Current Tax Liability 277.379 43.138 320517 186.083 1.626 189.719
13.2 Deferred Tax Liability 4.240 22,977 27.217 - 15.446 15.446
XV, LIABILITIES DIRECTLY ASSOCIATED WITH ASSETS HELD FOR
SALE AND DICSOUNTINUED OPERATIONS (Net) - - - - - -
141 Held For Sale - - - - - -
14,2 Discontinued Operations - - - - . -
XV, SUBORDINATED LOANS {5.1.k) - 5261523 5261523 - 5483501 5483501
XVl SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY {5.111) B.272,022  4.581.385 12.853.407 7.266.585  3.323.513 10.590.098
16.1 Paid-In Capital 3,346,100 - 3.316,100 3.316.100 - 3.316.100
16.2 Supplementary Capital (2.075.711) 3.520 (2.072.191) (1.414.688) {98.711)  {1.513.399)
16.2.1  Share Premium 15 - 15 15 - 15
16.2.2 Share Cancellation Profits - - - - - -
16,23 Securities Revaluation Reserve (428.373) (19.026)  (447.339) (444.941)  (110.354)  (555.295)
16.2.4 Revaluation Fund on Tangible Assets {5.EL1) 95.214 22.546 117.760 28.852 11.643 40.485
16.2.5 Revaluation Fund on Intangible Assets - - - - - -
16.2.6 Revaluation Fund on Investment Properties 13.397 - 13.397 13.397 - 13.397
16.2.7 Bonus Shares Obtained from Associates, Subsidiaries and Joint 708 - 708 1 B 11
Ventures
16.2.8  Hedging Funds (Etfactive Partion) {1.741.301) - (1741301} (1.007.220) - (1.007.220)
16.2.9  Revaluation Fund on Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations - - - - - -
16.2.10 Other Supplementary Capital (15.371) - (15.371) (4.802) - {4.802)
16.3 Profit Reserves 4.214.395 2.121.575 6335971  3.988.561 1.144.242 5.132.803
16.3.1 Lega! Reserves 252.819 5.019 257.838 182.355 5.019 187.374
16.3.2 Status Reserves - - - - - -
16.3.3  Extraordinary Reserves 3.915414 11.173 3.926,587 3.768.533 11473 3.780.706
16.3.4 Other Profit Reserves 46,163  2.105.383  2,151.546 36,673 1.128.050  1.164.723
164 Profit or Loss 2.807.593 2456250 5.263.883 1.36B.342 2277982  3.546.324
16.4.1  Prior Periods' Profits / Losses 1.286,033 2077.092  3.363.125 746.069 1.500.228  2.246.297
16.4.2 Current Pericd Profit/ Loss 1.521.560 379.198 1.800.758 622.273 777.754 1.400.027
16.5 Minority Shares {5.ILI) 9.644 - 9.644 8.270 - 8.270
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 54.436.380 _95.986.750 160.423.130 57.100.308 78.453.690 135.553.998

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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DENIZBANK ANONIM SIRKETI
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF
OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

Convenience Translation of
Consolidated Financial Report
Originally lssued in Turkish,

AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2017 AND 2016 See Note 3.1.¢
(Currency: Thousands of TL- Turkish Lira)
CURRENT PERIOD PRIOR PERIOD
Footnates (31N22017) (31/112/2016)
TL FC Total TL FC Total
A. OFF BALANCE SHEET COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (I+11H+111) 75.180.832 62.264.597 167.445429 54.889.084 B89.829.528 144.718.5612
I GUARANTEES {5.lIL.a) 11,155.23%  17.216.027 28.371.266 10.041.664 18.740.351 28.782.015
1.1, Letters of Guarantee 11,133,665  11.391.546 22531.211  10.029.957 11,752,258 21.782.215
1.1.1.  Guarantees Subject to State Tender Law - - - - . -
1.1.2.  Guarantees Given for Foreign Trade Operations 79.021 82.929 161.950 79.021 90.776 169,797
1.1.3.  Other Letters of Guarantee 11.060.644 11.30B.617 22.369.261 $.950.836 11.661.482 21,612,418
1.2, Bank Acceptances 4.773 199.768 204.541 5.498 251.332 256.830
1.2.1.  Impor Letter of Acceptance 4.773 199.768 204.541 5.498 251.332 256.830
1.2.2.  Other Bank Acceptances - - - - - -
1.3. Letters of Credit - 33274 313274 42  2.426.574  2.426.616
1.3.1.  Documentary Letters of Credit - 1.881.082  1.881.082 42 1.611.093 1.611.135
1.3.2.  Other Letters of Credit - 1.251.662  1.251.662 - 815.481 815.481
14. Prefinancing Given As Guarantee - - - - - -
1.5 Endorsemenis - - - - - -
1.51.  Endersements to the Central Bank of Turkey - . - - . R
1,5.2,  QOther Endorsements . - - - . .
1.6. Purchase Guarantees for Securities Issued - - - - - -
1.7. Factoring Related Guarantees - - - - - -
1.8. Other Collaterals 10.801 2491969 2502770 B.167  4.310.187  4.316.354
1.8. Other Sureties - - - - - -
L. COMMITMENTS (5.111.8) 31.054.695 2,800,154 33.544.849 28323856  4.027.727 32351583
2.1 Irrevocable Commitments 28.369.992 2,880,154 31.260.146 25.004.358  4.027.727 25.032.085
2.1.1.  Asset Purchase and Sale Commiiments " 530.844 1,425,284 1.956.128 405.787  2.956.586  3.362.373
2.1.2.  Deposit Purchase and Sales Commitments - - - - . -
2,1.3.  Share Capital Commitments to Associates and Subsidiaries - - - - - -
2,14,  Loan Granting Commitments 11.104.113 57.533 11.161.646  9.475.667 24982  9.500.649
2.1.5.  Securities Issuance Brokerage Commitments - - - - - -
2.1.6. Commitments for Reserve Deposit Requirements - - - - - -
21.7.  Commitments for Cheque Payments 2.375.880 - 2375880 2111130 - 2111130
2.1.8. Taxand Fund Obligations from Export Commitments 1.451 - 1.451 2415 - 2415
2.1.9.  Commitments for Credit Card Limits 14,216,415 - 14218415 12.764.845 - 12.764.645
2110 Commitments for Promoticnal Operations Re-Credit Cards and
*7"  Banking Services 2.856 - 2.856 1.416 B 1.416
2.1.11. Receivables from "Short” Sale Commitments On Securities - - - - . -
2,112, Payables for "Shon” Sale Commitments On Securlties - - - - - -
2.1.13. Other Irrevocable Commitments 138.433 1.407.337 1.545.770 243.298 1.046.159 1.289.457
2.2 Revocable Commitments 2.684.703 - 2,684,703 3.319.4588 - 3.319.498
2.21. Revocable Loan Granting Commitments 2.684.144 - 2684144 3318939 - 3.318.938
2.2.2.  Other Revocable Commitments 559 - 588 559 - 559
. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (5.11.6) 32970.898 72.158.416 105.129.314 16.523.564 67.061.450 83.585.014
341 Hedging Puipose Derivatives - - - - - -
3.1.1.  FairValue Hedge - - - - . -
3.1.2.  Cash Flow Hedge - - - - - -
3.1.3 Hedging of a Net Investment in Fareign Subsidiaries - - - - - -
3.2. Trading Purpose Derivatives 32.970.898 72.158.416 105.129.314 16.523.564 67.061.450 83.585.014
3.21. Forward Foreign Cumency Purchases/Sales 2.496.842 5539.818  B8.036.660 1.711.451 2321703 4.033.154
3.2.1.1. Forward Foreign Cumrency Purchases 1.2656,138  2.754.943  4,030.081 §79,079 1.148.288  2.027.367
3.2.1.2. Forward Foreign Curency Sales 1.231.704 2774875 4,006,579 832,372 1.173.415 2.005.787
3.22. Currency and Interest Rate Swaps 22402421 57.694.946 80.097.367 10.988.532 57.347.352 68.335.884
3.2.2.1. Currency Swaps-Purchases 3.547.926 24.602.208 28.150.134 2.846.554 22.168.613 25,015,167
3.2.2.2. Currency Swaps-Sales 10.854.495 16.104.300 26.958.795 6920574 16.4856.099 23.406.673
3223, Interest Rate Swaps-Purchases 4.000.000 8494219 12.494.219 §10.000 9,347.248 9.957.248
3.2.2.4. Interest Rate Swaps-Sales 4.000.000  3.494.219 12.494.219 611.404 9345392  9.956.798
3.2.3.  Cumency, Interest Rate and Security Optiens 8.071.635 6658244 14729879  3.823.581 5.299.660  9.123.241
3.2.3.1. Cumency Options-Purchases 2.776.904  3.662.687  6.439.591 1.947.258  2.529.227  4.476.485
3.2.3.2. Currency Options-Sales 3.604.731 2,880,717 6,575,448 1.876.323 2,643.805 4,520.128
3.2.3.3. Interest Rate Options-Purchases 800.000 57.420 857.420 - 63.314 63.314
3.2.3.4. Interest Rate Options-Sales 800.000 57.420 857.420 - 63.314 63.314
3.23.5. Securities Optiens-Purchases - - - - - -
3.2.3.6. Securities Options-Sales - - - . . .
3.24.  Currency Futures - - - - - -
3.2.4.1. Currency Futures-Purchases - - - - - -
3.2.4.2. Currency Futures-Sales - - - - - -
3.25.  Interest Rate Futures - - - - - -
3.25.1. [nterest Rate Futures-Purchases - - - - - -
3.25.2. Interest Rate Futures-Sales - - - - - -
3.26. Others - 2265408  2.265.408 - 2092735  2.092.735
B. CUSTODY AND PLEDGED ITEMS {[V+V+VI) 479,731,903 115.201.810 594.933.713 406,703.917 104.773.398 511.477.915
v, ITEMS HELD IN CUSTODY 93.039.880 2,888,737 G95.926,617 93768668 2468.962 96.237.630
4.1, Customers' Segurities and Portfolios Held 137.901 - 137.801 137.718 - 137.718
4.2, Securities Held in Custody 89.855.087 1.511.038 91.366.126 91.541.375 1.006.875 92.548.250
4.3. Checks Received for Collection 1.454.634 988.911 2.443.545 1.116.584 ©962.251 2.078.845
4.4, Commercial Notes Received for Cellection 1.582.258 289.431 1.881.689 971.623 415.353 1.386.976
4.5, Cther Assets Received for Collection - - - - - -
4.6. Assets Received for Public Cffering - - - - - -
4.7, Other Items under Custody - 97.356 97.356 - 83.793 83793
4.8. Custodians - - - 1.358 690 2.048
V. PLEDGED ITEMS 386.418.449 111.062.703 457.481.152 312.550.745 101.470.333 414.021.078
5.1, Securities 3.141.980 39.804 3.181.784  3.134.244 25768  3.160.012
5.2, Guarantee Notes 271.055.458 45.280.793 317.236.251 217.463456 45.384.701 262.848,157
5.3, Commodities 16.002.073 5.554.934 21.557.007 13.702.267 3.683.797 17.386.064
54, Warrants - - - - - -
5.5, Immovables 76.549.760 39.435.161 115.984.921 65.421.586 35.399.926 104.821.512
5.8, Other Pledged ltems 18.769.178  20.752.011 39.521.189  8.820.192 16.976.141 25.805.333
58.7. Pledged ems-Depositery - - - - - -
Vi, ACCEPTED INDEPENDENT GUARANTEES AND WARRANTIES 273574  1.252370  1.525.944 384.504 834703  1.219.207
TOTAL OFF BALANCE SHEET ITEMS (A+B) 554,912,735 207.466.407 762.370.142 461.533.001 194.603.526 656.196.527

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



DENIZBANK ANONIM SIRKETI
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 AND 2016

Convenience Transiation of
Consolidated Financial Report
Originally Issued in Turkish,

{Currency: Thousands of TL - Turkish Lira) See Note 3.1.¢c
CURRENT PERIOD PRIOR PERIOD
INCOME AND EXPENSE ITEMS Footnotes (01/01-31/12/2017) (01/01-31/12/2016)
I INTEREST INCOME {5.Iv.a) 12.824.198 10.087.282
1.1 Interest from Loans 11.047.206 8.723.432
1.2 Interest from Reserve Deposits 101.420 56.689
1.3 Interest from Banks 220,226 14.610
1.4  Interest from Money Market Transactions 22,355 20.337
1.5  Interest from Securities Portfolio 1.107.426 996.694
1.5.1 Trading Securities 16.906 3.626
1.5.2 Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss - -
1.5.3 Available for Sale Securities 582.069 673.740
1.5.4 Held to Maturity Securities 508.451 319.328
1.6 Interest from Financial Leases 229,782 211.070
1.7 Other Interest Income 95,783 64.450
II. INTEREST EXPENSE (5.1V.b) 6.543.040 4.985.151
2.1 Interest on Deposits 5.043.299 3.677.436
2.2 Interest on Funds Borrowed 878.431 699.936
2,3 Interest on Money Market Transactions 186.091 347.363
24  Imerest on Securities Issued 336.432 226,336
2.5  Other Interest Expense 98.787 34.080
1. NET INTEREST INCOME (I - 11} 6.281.158 5.102.131
v, NET FEES AND COMMISSICN INCOME /EXPENSE 1.604.985 1.253.758
4.1 Fees and Commissions Received 2.119.558 1.666.196
4,1.1 Non-Cash Loans 234108 180.765
4.1.2 Other (AR} 1.885.450 1.485.431
42 Fees and Commissions Paid 514,573 412.438
4.2.1 Non-Cash Loans 2710 1.258
4.2.2 Other {5,V 511.863 411.180
V. DIVIDEND INCOME {5.IV.c} 1.230 205
VI.  TRADING INCOME/LOSS (Net} (5.1v.d) (977.861) (570.720)
6.1 Profit/ Loss on Securities Trading (40.082) (28.440)
6.2  Profit/ Loss on Derivative Financial Transactions (975.940) 57.944
8.3  Foreign Exchange Gains / Losses 38.161 (599.624)
VIl. OTHER OPERATING INCOME (5.Iv.e) 741.580 768.662
VIll.  TOTAL OPERATING INCOME (ll1I+IV+V+VI+VII) 7.6561.092 6.554.636
IX. PROVISION FOR LOANS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES {-) (5.IV.f) 1.943.927 1.803.408
X OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES (=) (5.1V.g) 3.215.527 2.926.170
X NET OPERATING PROFIT/ALOSS (VIlI-IX-X) 2.451.638 1.825.057
Xll.  AMOUNT IN EXCESS RECORDED AS GAIN AFTER MERGER - -
INVESTMENTS PROFIT / LOSS FROM ACCOUNTED FOR
Xll. UNDER EQUITY METHOD - -
XV, GAIN/LOSS ON NET MONETARY POSITION - -
PiL BEFORE TAXES FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
XV, X4 4+XV) {5.Iv.h} 2.491.638 1.825.057
XV, TAXPROVISION FOR CONTINUING OPERATIONS (1) {5-1\.i) (589.508) (424.683)
16.1 Current Tax {425.560) (301.748)
16.2 Deferred Tax {163.946) {122.935)
NET PROFIT / LOSS FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
XV, (XvEXvi) (5.V.j) 1.902.132 1.400.374
XVill. PROFIT FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS - 983
18.1 Assets Held for Sale - -
18.2  Profit on Sale of Associates, Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures - -
18.3  Other - 983
XIX. LOSS FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (-) - 258
19.1 Assets Held for Sale “ -
19.2  loss on Sale of Associates, Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures - 258
19.3 Other - -
P/L BEFORE TAXES FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
X PAVIXEX) - 725
XXI. TAXPROVISION FOR DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS () (5.IV.0) - -
21,1 Current Tax - -
21.2 Deferred Tax - -
NET PROFIT / LOSS FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
XX XXX - 725
XXl NET PROFIT / LOSS (XVil+XXII) (5.IV.K) 1.902.132 1.401.009
23,1 Group's Profit/ Loss 1.800.758 1.400.027
23,2 Minority Shares 1.374 1.072
Earnings / Losses per Share (Per thousand share} 0,57 0,48

The accompanying notes are an integral pant of these consolidated financial staterments.



DENIZBAN K ANONIM $IRKET| Convenlence Translation of

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF Consolidated Financial Report
INCOME AND EXPENSES RECOGNIZED Originally Issued in Turkish,
UNDER SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY See Note 3.1.c

FOR THE PERIODS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 AND 2016
(Currency: Thousands of TL - Turkish Lira)

CURRENT PRIOR
STATEMENT OF INCOME AND EXPENSES RECOGNIZED UNDER SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY PERICD PERIOD

{01/01-31/12/2017) (01/01-31/12/2016)

L ADDITIONS TO SECURITIES REVALUATION RESERVE FROM AVAILABLE FOR SALE

INVESTMENTS 120.600 {90.391)
Il. TANGIBLE ASSETS REVALUATION DIFFERENCES 15.921 45.895
. INTANGIBLE ASSETS REVALUATION DIFFERENCES - -
V. FOREIGN EXCHANGE DIFFERENCES FOR FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS 986.823 610.467
V. PROFIT/LOSS RELATED TC DERIVATIVES USED IN CASH FLOW HEDGES (Effective portion of

Fair Value Differences) 616 2.949
Vi PROFIT/LOSS RELATED TO DERIVATIVES USED IN HEDGE OF A NET INVESTMENT IN

FOREIGN SUBSIDIARIES {Effective portion of Fair Value Differences) (961.056) (533.388)
VIl. THE EFFECT OF CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES OR CORRECTION OF ERRORS - -
Vi, OTHER PROFIT/LOSS ITEMS ACCOUNTED FOR UNDER EQUITY DUE TO TAS (13.703) (8.388)
IX. DEFERRED TAXES OF VALUATION DIFFERENCES 211,278 117.643
X. NET PROFIT/LOSS ACCOUNTED UNDER EQUITY {I+ll+..4+IX} 360.480 144.787
Xl CURRENT PERIOD PROFIT/LOSS 1.902.132 1.401.098
1.1 Net Change In Fair Value of Securities (Transfer to Profit & Loss) (48.436) 74.680
1.2 Reclassification and Transfer of Derivatives Accounted for Cash Flow Hedge Purposes Recycled to

Income Statement (300) (2.752)
1.3 Transfer of Hedge of Net investiment in Foreign Operations Recycled to income Statement . -
1.4  Other 1.950.868 1.328.171
Xll.  TOTAL PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNTED FOR THE PERIOD {X£XI) 2.262.612 1.545.886

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,



DENIZBANK ANONIM SIRKETI
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

FOR THE PERIODS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 AND 2016

Convenience Transiation of
Consolidated Financial Report
Originally lIssued in Turkish,

{Currency: Thousands of TL - Turkish Lira) See Note 3.1.c
Bonus Equity
Curment Shares Val DHT Rulatnd Aaribo
Infation Shary PerodNat  Prior Parod o] ' Aseets Heid Equhty Tout
FalHn Adustmants 1o Sharm o Swwtim Othar Prot NetProm/ Revsluation Rarvalustion Fund fom gl for ot Minxty  Sharshokiens’
CHANGES N SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY Capltal Paid-in Caphal {1} Pramkim Proths. Flesarves Raservee Russrvas. Reorves Resorve  of Tang LA Assocstes Reasaryes Sata N Cor. the Parent |ntereat E
PRIOR PERIOD 01X01-31127018
L Bulences st the Baginning of Paed 1.816.100 a3 - 143.561 - 4299045 5568.164 58403 15422 478.738) 126434 1 (583.262) 8286999 7193 3294187
Chenges In the Parod
:Ill. |m-"-;nr Dacrossn R:m 10 Hagers : - - - - - - - . - - - - - . . - - -
. Differwitent of Securities: (5¥e) . - - - - . . - - - 75507 . B - - (76.507) - {TE.507)
. Hi “Trarwactions (Effectivs Portion) [LA] - - - - - . - - - - . . - (423568 - (422.958) - (422 953}
41 CashFlow Hed: - - - - - - - - . . - - - 2752 - 2752 - 2352
iz Hadging of 2 Nt Invesiment In Forelgn Subsidiaries B - - - - - - - - - - - - (426.718) - {326.719) - [426.710)
Y. Revakastion Fund of Tengible Asess. {&V.g) - - - - - - - - . - - 40495 - . - 40,495 . L0.A4DS
Vi FRevsivation Fund of intangiie Azssly - - . - - - - - . - - . - - - - - -
viL Banus Shacss Chiwined rom Awsocksn, Subsiile i and Joint Ventures - . - - - - - . . - - - - . . - - -
VIl (] - - - - - . - &10.467 - - - . - - - §10.467 - £10487
. Changes Related 1o Sals of Asests - - - - - - - - - - - . - - - - - -
x Changes Raiasd i Ruclamiicetion of Asssl: - . . - - - - - - - - . - - - - . -
x. Effacta of Chisvgum i) Equities: of Associates. . - - - - - . - - - - - . . - - - -
Xi.  The Effect of Caphs Incrassa {5.v.a) 1.500.000 . =) . . - (E35.854) - - - . {112.00m; - - - 750.000 - 750.000
121 Cash T50.000 - - + - - - - - - . - - - - 750000 - 750000
122 Iniemal Resources I50.00D . {39) - - - (536.864) - - - - {1131.097) . - - - - -
xun. 1nmsance of Caphal Skock {E.V.b) - - 15 - - - - - - - - - - . - 15 - 15
X, Shans Canceliation Profits - - - - . - - - - - - . - - - - - -
XV, Captal Resorves fom ination Adiueimanis 10 PakdHin Cepltel - . . - - - - - - . . - - - - - - -
X Other . - - - - - . (8.710) . - - . - - - &710) . {8.HY)
X1l Cumont Pariod Net Profitf Loss - . . - - - - 1400027 - . - - - - 1400027 1072 1403099
XVIll.  Prot Diskfbuton &Y - - - - 37813 - 118525 . [ENAY 02085 - - - - - . . -
18 Dhvidend Distributed - - - - - - - - - - - - - - . - -
182  Transler o Raserves suD - - - B 37843 - 118.525 - (858.403) 702085 - - - - - - - -
183 Crther - . - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Balances et the End of Parod I S 1T+ £XV1 01 + 20001 3.310.19 - 15 - 1372374 - 3.780.706 1,153.92% 1.400.027 2246257 1555.3!] EIBT2 1% u.wr.zzgl - 10.551.578 8.270 10.590.008
CURRENT PERIOO 01/01-31 H2217
L Baiances st the Beginning of Pariod A3B100 15 132374 3780706 1150925 1400027 2248257 {555.295) 53ER2 1% [1.007220% 10.581 828 B7TD 10,590,088
Changes kn the Pariod
I Intiwime | Dacresse Relsted 10 Merpers: - . - - - - - - - . . - - - - - - -
. Vahuation Diffecscces of Escurities: (5V.0) - - - - - - - - - - 107.896 - - - - 107.236 - 107.856
. Hedging (Effocive Pordon) svh - - - - - . - - - - - - - (o - oAy - (734.081)
21 Cash Flow Hed: - - - - - - - - - - - - - B16 - 615 - 16
42 Hedging of 4 Net Invesiment in Forelgn Subsidiaries - . - - - - - - - - - . - (F34.697) - 734.897) - [(F4.657}
a R of Tanghie Amsls. EN.g) - - - - - - . - . - - 10411 - - - 10411 - 10411
v, Reyniuation Fund of Intanolbhe Assata - - - - - . - - - - - - - " - - . -
VL. Bonus Shari Oblaked frram Associetes, Subsidiarfes and Joint Vanirss - . - - - - - - - - - . €37 - - 637 -
Wil F Differsnces {5v.h) - - - - - - - gage23 - - - - - - - 936823 - 586.823
-8 Changas Relasd i Sala of Ansety - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
x Changes Related 1 Ruclssifeation of Amels - - - - - - - - - - - - - . - - - -
Xl. Effects of Changes In Equities of Associsies - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Xl The Effect of incree ['E] - - - - - - - . . - - - . . N - - -
121 Cash B - - . - B . - . - - - - . - - B .
122 nlamal Resources - - - - - - - - - - - - - . - - - -
Xil.  Iseusnce of Capkal Siock GV . - - - - - - - - . B - - - - - - -
XV,  Shars Cancsletion Profite - - - - - - - . - - - - - - - - - -
X¢,  Capl Inflation o Palkhin Caphal - . - . - - - - - - - - - . . - - -
XVL  Other - - . - - - - 13,559 . . . - - - - {10.569) - {30,563}
MWL Caurerd Pariod Net Predt f Loss - - . - - - - - 1.500.758 - - - - - - 1.800.758 12374 1802132
Xvil.  Prof Clsklbulion &<} - - - - 48 - 145.881 - [1.400.027) 1116220 - 68054 . - - - - -
131 Dhvidena Distributed - - - - - - - - - - . - - - - - - -
132 TYransfer toResarves BND - - - - 70464 - 145881 - [rA0n027) 1116828 - 56854 - - - . -
183 - - - - + - - - - - . - - - - - . .
Bnlancas ot the End of Period 1484114+ +XV1 X240V I 331E.100 - 1_5 = 257.838 - 3.528.507 2135175 1.900.758 3.363.125 (447ﬂ 131.157 F03 !LT“:IM) - 12.843.763 S.E.l-d'_ 12,853,407

(*) The column “Other Reserves™ amounting to TL (15.371) and relating to the “actuarial loss/profit” calculated as per TAS 19 “Employee Benefits” is stated under “Other Capital Reserves” in consolidated financial statements.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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DENIZBANK ANONIM SIRKETI

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Convenience Translation of
Consolidated Financial Report

FOR THE PERIODS ENDED Originally Issued in Turkish,
31 DECEMBER 2017 AND 2016 See Note 3./.c
{Currency: Thousands of TL - Turkish Lira)

CURRENT PERICD  PRIOR PERIOD

(01/01-31/12/2017) (01/01-31/12/2016)

A CASH FLOWS FROM BANKING OPERATIONS

1.1 Operating Profit before Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities (+) 5,172,376 942.713
1.1.1  Interest Received (+) 12.051.576 9.384.814
1.1.2 Interest Paid {-) 5.285.331 4.904.038
1.1.3 Dividend Received {+) 1.230 205
1.1.4 Fees And Commissions Received (+) 2.022.578 1.637.707
1.1.5 Other Income (+) 733,376 751.016
1.1.6 Collections from Previously Written-Off Loans and Other Receivables (+) 955.067 941.910
1.1.7 Payments to Personnel and Service Suppliers (-) 1.472.355 1.319.267
1.1.8 Taxes Paid (-) 389.752 373.635
1.1.9 Other (+I-) {8.Vl.c) (2.444.013) (5.183.999)
1.2 Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities (3.604.437) (363.497)
1.2.1 Net {Increase} Decrease in Trading Securities (+/-) 15.529 (65.357)
1.2.2 Net {Increase) Decrease in Financial Assets Designated at FV (+4) - -
1.2.3  Net {Increase) Decrease in Banks (+/-) 350.265 (151.097)
1.2.4 Net (Increase) Decrease in Loans (+-} {14.425.185) (11.671.550)
1.2.5 Net (Increase) Decrease in Other Assets (+/-) {3.497.508) (1.808.278)
1.2.6 NetlIncrease (Decrease) in Bank Deposits (+/-) 1.834.205 30.825
1.2.7 NetlIncrease (Decrease) in Other Deposits (+/-) 10.084.672 15.135.905
1.2.8 Net!ncrease (Decrease} in Funds Borrowed (+/-) 2.397.411 (389.133)
1.2.9 NetlIncrease (Decrease} in Due Payables (+/-} - -
1.2.10 Net Increase (Decrease) in Other Liabilities {+/-) (5.Vl.c) {363.826) (1.444.812)
L Net Cash (Used In)/Provided from Banking Operations (+/-) 1.567.939 579.216
B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

. Net Cash Provided from / (Used In} Investing Activities (+/-) 791.638 1.408.206
2.1 Cash Paid for Purchase of Invesiments, Associates and Subsidiaries (-) 29.451 -
2,2 Cash Obtained Frem Sale of Investments, Associates And Subsidiaries (+) - 9.239
2.3  Fixed Assets Purchases {-} 272,831 272.403
24  Fixed Assets Sales (#) 144.741 64,905
2.5  Cash Paid for Purchase of Investments Available for Sale (-) 859,756 2.834.393
2.6  Cash Obtained From Sale of Investments Available for Sale (+) 1.698.327 4.440.858
2.7 Cash Paid for Purchase of Investment Securities (=) - -
2.8 Cash Obtained fram Sale of Investment Securities (+) - -
29  Other (+-) 110.608 -
C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

1. Net Cash Provided from / (Used In) Financing Activities (+/) (288.314) 1.224.377
31 Cash Obtained from Funds Borrowed and Securities Issued (+) 12.571.136 8.676.950
3.2  Cash Used for Repayment of Funds Borrowed and Securities ssued (-) 12.859.450 8.202,573
33  Capital Increase (+} - 750.000
3.4  Dividends Paid {-) - -
35 Payments for Finance Leases (=) - -
36  Other (+/) - -
V. Effect of Change in Forelgn Exchange Rate on Cash and Cash Equivalents (+-) {5.vl.c) 602.221 803.652
V. Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Eguivalents (5.Vl.c) 2.673.484 4.015.451
Vi Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of Period (+) {5.vi.a) 13.962.544 9.,947.093
Vil.  Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of Period (5.V.a) 16.636.028 13.962.544

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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DEN|ZBANK ANON|M $|RKET! Convenience Translation of

CONSOLIDATED PROFIT DISTRIBUTION TABLES Consolidated Financisl Report
FOR THE PERIODS ENDED Originally Issued in Turkish,
31 DECEMBER 2017 AND 2016 See Note 3.4.c

(Currency: Thousands of TL - Turkish Lira)

CURRENT PERIOD  PRIOR PERIOD
(01/01-311272017) (01/01-31/112/2016)

I DISTRIBUTION OF CURRENT YEAR INCOME

1.1 CURRENT YEAR INCOME - -
12 TAXES AND DUTIEN PAYABLE {-) - -
1.2.1 Corporate Tax {Income Tax) - -
122 [ncome witholding tax - -
1.2.3 Ofther taxes and duties - -

A NET INCOME FOR THE YEAR(1.1-1.2) - -

13 PRIOR YEAR LOSSES {-) - -
i4 FIRST LEGAL RESERVES (-) - -
15 OTHER STATUTORY RESERVES (-} - -

B. NET INCOME AVAILABLE FOR DISTRIBUTION {{A-(1.3+1.4+1.5)] - -

1.6 FIRST DIVIDEND TO SHAREHOLDERS (-) - -
1.6.1 To owner of ordinary shares - .
1.6.2 To owner of preferred shares - .
1.6.3 To owner of preferred shares (preem private rihgts) - -
1.6.4 To profit sharing bands - .
1.6.6 To holders of prefit or loss sharing certificates - .
1.7 DIVIDENDS TO PERSONNEL {-) -

18 DIVIDENDS TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS (-) -

1.9 SECOND DIVIDEND TO SHAREHOLDERS (-} -

1.9.1  To owner of ordinary shares - .
1.9.2 To owner of preferred shares - -
1.8.3 To owner of preferred shares {preem private rihgts) - .
1.8.4  To profit sharing bonds - .
1.9.5 To helders of profit or loss sharing certificates - .
110  SECOND LEGAL RESERVES (-) - -
111 STATUTORY RESERVES (-) - -
112 GENERAL RESERVES - -
1.13 OTHER RESERVES - -
1.14  SPECIAL FUNDS - -

I, DISTRIBUTION OF RESERVES

2.1 APPROPRIATED RESERVES - -
2.2 SECOND LEGAL RESERVES (-} - -
2.3 DIVIDENDS TO SHAREHOLDERS (-} - -
2.3.1 To owner of ordinary shares - -
2.3.2 To owner of preferred shares - -
2.3.3 To owner of preferred shares (preem private rihgts) - -
2.3.4 To profit sharing bonds - -
2.3.5 To holders of profit or loss sharing certificates - -
24 DIVIDENDS TO PERSONNEL {-) . -
2.5 DIVIDENDS TO BCARD OF DIRECTORS (=) - -

M. EARNINGS PER SHARE

3.1 TO OWNERS OF ORDINARY SHARES - -
3.2 TO OWNERS OF ORDINARY SHARES (%) - -
33 TO OWNERS OF PRIVILAGED SHARES -
3.4 TO OWNERS OF PRIVILAGED SHARES (%) -

V. DIVIDEND PER SHARE

4.1 TO OWNERS OF ORDINARY SHARES - -
4.2 TO OWNERS OF ORDINARY SHARES (%) - .
4.3 TO OWNERS OF PRIVILAGED SHARES - -
4.4 TO OWNERS OF PRIVILAGED SHARES (%) - -

(") According to Turkish Commercial Code, profit distribution is prepared based on unconsolidated financial statements and not on
consolidated financial statements.
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DENlZBANK ANON'M isKETl Convenience Transiation of

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Consolidated Financial Report
AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2017 Originally lssued in Turkish,
{Currency: Thousands of TL - Turkish Lira) See Note 3.1.¢
SECTION THREE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of presentation

Preparation of the consolidated financial statements and the accompanying footnotes in accordance with
Turkish Accounting Standards and Regulation on Principles Related to Banks’ Accounting Applications and
Preserving the Documents

Consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the regulations, communigués,
explanations and circulars published with respect to accounting and financial reporting principles by the
Banking Regulation and Supervision Authority ("BRSA") within the framework of the provisions of the
Reguiation on the Principles and Procedures Regarding Banks' Accounting Applications and Document
Keeping published in the Official Gazette no. 26333 dated 1 November 2006 in relation with the Banking Law
no. 5411, as well as the Turkish Accounting Standards (TAS") and Turkish Financial Reporting Standards
("TFRS") enforced by the Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority (*POA™ and the
annexes and commentaries relating to these Standards (hereinafter collectively referred to as “Turkish
Accounting Standards” or “TAS") if there are no specific regulations made by BRSA. The form and content of
the consoclidated financial statements which have been drawn up and which will be disclosed to public have
been prepared in accordance with the “Communiqué on the financial Statements to be Disclosed to the Public
by Banks and the Related Explanations and Footnotes” and “Communiqué On Disclosures About Risk
Management To Be Announced To Public By Banks” as well as the communiqués that introduce amendments
and additions to this Communigué. The parent shareholder Bank keeps its accounting records in Turkish Lira,
in accordance with the Banking Law, Turkish Commercial Law and Turkish Tax legisiation.

Consolidated financial statements have been prepared based on historical cost principle, except the financial
assets and liabilities indicated at their fair values.

The amounts in the consolidated financial statements and explanations and footnoies relating to these
statements have been dencted in Thousand Turkish Liras unless otherwise stated.

In the preparation of consolidated financial statements according to TAS, the management of the parent
shareholder Bank should make assumptions and estimations regarding the assets and liabilities in the balance
sheet. These assumptions and estimations are reviewed regularly, the necessary corrections are made and
the effects of these corrections are reflected in the income statement. The assumptions and estimations used
are explained in the related foot notes.

The accounting policies followed and revaluation principles used in the preparation of consolidated financial
statements have been determined and implemented in accordance with the regulations, communiqués,
explanations and circulars published by BRSA with respect to accounting and financial reporting principles and
principles covered by TAS/TFRS in cases where there were no specific regulations made by BRSA and they
are consistent with accounting policies implemented in consolidated financial statements prepared for the
period ending on 31 December 2016,

The Parent Bank and its consolidated subsidiaries are classified as "DFS Group” in the footnotes related to the
consglidated financial statements.

These accounting policies and valuation principles are disclosed between the footnotes numbered Il through
XXIV. The amendments to TAS/TFRS effective from 1 January 2018, except for the effects of TFRS 9 Financial
Instruments that are explained below, do not have a significant impact on DFS Group’s accounting policies,
financial position and performance.

Disciosures of TFRS 9 Financial Instruments Standard

TFRS 8 “Financial Instrumenis”, which is effective as at 1 January 2018 is published by the Public Oversight
Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority (“POA") in the Official Gazette numbered 29953 dated 19
January 2017. TFRS 9 will replace TAS 39 Financial instruments: recognition and measurement, related to the
classification and measurement of financial instruments.

TFRS 9 sets out the new principles for the classification and measurement of financial instruments, impairment
for credit risk on financial assets and general hedge accounting.

The Parent Bank will recognize an adjustment to opening retained earnings at 1 January 2018, to reflect the
application of the new requirements at the adoption date. Additionally, the Parent Bank will calculate deferred
tax assets on expected credit losses related to Stage 1 and Stage 2 loans, which wili also be reflected to the
opening retained earnings.
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DENIZBANK ANON |M $|RKET| Convenience Transiation of

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Consolidated Financial Report
AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2017 Originally Issued in Turkish,
(Currency: Thousands of TL - Turkish Lira) See Note 3.1.c

Classification and measurement of financial assels

According to TFRS & requirements, classification and measurement of financial assets will depend on the
business model within which financial assets are managed and their contractual cash flow characteristics
whether the cash fiows represent “solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI).

Upon initial recognition each financial asset will be classified as either fair value through profit or loss,
amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive income. The classification and measurement of
financial liabilities remain largely unchanged under TAS 398,

Impairment of financial assefs

As of 1 January 2018, the Bank will recognize provisions for impairment in accordance with the TFRS 9
requirements according to the “Regulation on the Procedures and Principles for Classification of Loans by
Banks and Provisions to be set aside” published in the Official Gazette dated 22 June 2016 numbered 29750.
In this framewaork, method of provisions for impairment as set out in accordance with the related legisiation of
BRSA will be changed by applying the expected credit loss model under TFRS 9 as of 31 December 2017.

These financial assets will be divided into three categories depending on the gradual increase in credit risk
observed since their initial recognition:

Stage 7

For the financial assets at initial recognition or that do not have a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. Impairment for credit risk will be recorded in the amount of 12-month expected credit losses.

Stage 2

In the event of a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the financial asset will be transferred
to Stage 2. Impairment for credit risk will be determined on the basis of the instrument's lifetime expected credit

losses.
Stage 3

Stage 3 includes financial assets that have objective evidence of impairment at the reporting date. For these
assets, lifetime expected credit losses are recognized.

The effects of TFRS 9 on the prior period financial statements are under review and it is expected that there
will be 1% to 3% positive effect on the consolidated sharehoiders’ equity. The impact of implementation for this
standard is based on the assessments made so far. As of the transition date, revisions are still ongoing on the
accounting policies, relevant processes and internal controls. Accordingly, there might be changes in the
anticipated impact of TFRS 9 on the financials until announcement of the first time adoption financial statement
including the opening balance sheet as of 1 January 2018.

Accounting policies and valuation principles used in the preparation of the financial statements
None (31 December 2016: None).

Additional paragraph for convenience translation:

The effects of differences between accounting principles and standards set out by BRSA Accounting and
Financial Reporting Regislation the accounting principles generally accepted in countries in which the
accompanying consolidated financial statements are fo be distributed and International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) have not been quantified in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
Accordingly, the accompanying consolidated financial statements are not intended to present the financial
position, results of operations and changes in financial position and cash flows in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in such countries and IFRS.
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DEN'ZBAN K ANON[M $|RKET| Convenience Translation of

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Consolidated Financial Report
AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2017 Originally Issued in Turkish,
(Currency: Thousands of TL - Turkish Lira) See Note 3.l.c

Explanation on the strategy for the use of financial instruments and transactions denominated in
foreign currencies

Strategy for the use of financial instruments

DFS Group's external scurces of funds are comprised of deposits with various maturity periods, and short-term
berrowings. These funds are fixed rate in general and are utilized in high yield financial assets. The majority of
the funds are allocated to high yield, floating rate instruments, such as Turkish Lira and foreign currency
government securities and Eurobonds, and to loans provided to customers on a selective basis in order to
increase revenue and support liquidity. The liguidity structure that ensures meeting all liabilities falling due, is
formed by keeping sufficient levels of cash and cash eguivalents by diversifying the sources of funds. The Bank
assesses the maturity structure of the sources, and the maturity structure and yield of placements at market
conditions and adopts a high yield policy in long-term placements.

DFS Group assumes risks within pre-determined risk limits in shorl-term currency, interest and price
movements in money and capital markets and market conditions.

These positions are closely monitored by the Risk Management System of the Parent Bank and the necessary
precautions are taken if the limits are exceeded or should there be a change in the market environment.

In order to aveid interest rate risk, assets and liabilities with fixed and floating interests are kept in balance,
taking the maturity structure into consideration.

The asset-liability balance is monitored on a daily basis in accordance with the maturity structure and foreign
currency type. The risks associated with short-term positions are hedged through derivatives such as forwards,
swaps and options.

No risks are taken as far as possible on foreign currencies other than US Dollar and Euro. Transactions are
made under the determined limits to cover the position.

Net foreign currency position of DFS Group in foreign enterprises is considered along with the position of the
Parent Bank and the specific position is evaluated within the risk limits.

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies

Foreign currency exchange rates used in converting transactions denominated in foreign currencies and their
presentaticn in the financial statements

DFS Group accounts for the transactions denominated in foreign currencies in accordance with TAS 21 “The
Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates”. Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from transactions
that are completed as of the balance sheet date are translated to TL by using historical foreign currency
exchange rates. Balances of the foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities are transiated into TL by
using foreigh currency exchange rates of the Parent Bank and the resulting exchange differences are recorded
as foreign exchange gains and losses. The Parent Bank's foreign currency exchange rates are as follows.

31 December 2017 31 December 2016
US Dollar TL 3,7718 TL 3,5192
Euro TL 4.5155 TL 3,7099

Foreign exchange gains and losses included in the income statement

As of 31 December 2017, net foreign exchange gain included in the income statement amounts to Tl 38.161
(1 January - 31 December 2016 net foreigh exchange loss of TL 595.624).

Total amount of valuation fund arising from foreign currency exchange rate differences

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated to TL at foreigh exchange rates of the Parent
Bank ruling at the balance sheet date. The revenues and expenses of foreign operations are translated to TL
at yearly average foreigh exchange rates of the Parent Bank. The foreign exchange differences derived from
translation of income statements of consolidated subsidiaries, and arising from the difference between TL
equivalent of their equities and the Parent Bank's share in their net assets are recorded in "other profit
reserves”.

As of 31 December 2017, total foreign exchange differences in equity amount to TL 2.105.383 (31 December
2016: TL 1.128.050).
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The foreign exchange difference of TL 46.163 (31 December 2016 TL 36.673) arising from the translation of
the financial statements of Bahrain branch of the Parent Bank to Turkish Lira per TAS 21 is recorded in "other
profit reserves”.

DFS Group applies net investment hedge accounting to hedge from the foreign currency exchange risk arising
from conversion of its investments in foreign currency denominated subsidiaries on a consolidated basis. Part
of foreign currency deposits to the net investment amount is designated as hedging instrument and the effective
portion of the foreign exchange difference of these financial liabilities is recognized under hedging funds in

equity.

Information regarding the consolidated subsidiaries

Consulidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with TFRS 10, the “Turkish Accounting
Standard for Consolidated Financial Statements”.

The Parent Bank owns, directly or indirectly, the shares of Denlz Yatnm Menkul Kiymetler AS.
{Deniz Yatinm), Eurodeniz International Banking Unit Ltd. {Eurodeniz), Deniz Portfdy Yonetimi A.S. (Deniz
Portféy), Denizbank AG, JSC Denizbank, Deniz Finansal Kiralama A.$. (Deniz Leasing), Deniz Faktoring A.S.
{Deniz Faktoring), Deniz Gayrimenkul Yatinm Ortakligh A.S. {Deniz GYO), and CR Erdberg Eins GmbH & Co
KG (CR Erdberg) and these subsidiaries are consolidated fully.

DFS Funding Corp., which is a structured entity, is also included in the scope of consolidation.

It was decided o change type and title of Ekspres Menkul Dederler A.3. (Ekspres Menkul Degerler) in
Extraordinary General Assembly meeting held on 5 August 2016 and the decision has been registered at
istanbul Trade Registry Cffice on 10 August 2016 and title of Ekspres Menkul Dederler has changed as
Ekspres Bilgi islem ve Ticaret Anonim Sirketi (Ekspres Bilgi islem) and it was excluded from consolidated
subsidiaries in scope of BRSA regulations since it has a non-financial subsidiary status.

In addition, the non-financial subsidiaries of the parent bank; Intertech Bilgi is[em ve Pazarlama Ticaret A.S.
(“Intertech”), Deniz Klltlir Sanat Yaymncilik Ticaret ve Sanayi A.S. (“Deniz Kiltlr") and Bantag Nakit ve Kiymetli
Mal Tasima ve Giivenlik Hizmetleri A.S. ("Bantas”) which is jointly controlled company and affiliates of
Intertech; Deniz Karth Odeme Sistemleri A.S. and Agik Deniz Radyo ve Televizyon lletisim Yayincilik Ticaret
ve Sanayi A.S., Deniz Immobilien Service GMBH {*Deniz Immobilien") subsidiary of Denizbank AG, Giindem
Otel Turizm A.S., subsidiary of Deniz GYGQ, since they are non-financial subsidiaries are excluded from the

consolidation process.
Important changes on consolidated subsidiaries in repotting period

On 26 September 2017, the Parent Bank increased the share capital of Denizbank AG by Eurg 50 miilion in
cash.

Consclidation principles for subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are the entities controlled directly or indirectly by the Parent Bank. Subsidiaries are consolidated
using the full consolidation method.

Control is defined as the power over the investee, exposure or rights to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee and the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of the Bank’s returns.

According to this method, the financial statements of the Parent Bank and its subsidiaries are combined on a
line-by-line basis by adding together like itermns of assets, liabilities, income, expenses and off-halance sheet
items, in preparing consolidated financial statements. Minority interests are presented separately in the
consolidated balance sheet and consclidated income statement.

The carrying amount of the Parent Bank’s Investment in each subskdiary and the Parent Bank’s portfon of equity
of each subsidiary are eliminated.

All intercompany transactions and intercompany balances between the consolidated subsidiaries and the
Parent Bank are eliminated.

The financial statements which have been used in the consolidation are prepared as of 31 December 2017
and appropriate adjustments are made to financial statements to use uniform accounting policies for
transactions and events alike in similar circumstances, in accordance with the principal of materiality.
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Explanations on forward transactions, options and derivative instruments

DFS Group’s derivative transactions mainly consist of foreign currency and interest rate swaps, foreign
currency options and forward foreign currency purchase/sale contracts.

In accordance with TAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”, forward foreign currency
purchase/sale contracts, swaps, options and futures are classified as "trading purpose” transactions. Derivative
transactions are recorded with their fair values at contract date. Also, the liabilities and receivables arising from
the derivative transactions are recorded as off-balance sheet items at their contractual notional amounts.

The derivative transactions are vaiued at fair value using market prices or pricing models subsaquent to initial
recognition and are presented in the “Positive Value of Trading Purpose Derivatives” and “Negative Value of
Trading Purpose Derivatives” items of the balance sheet depending on the resulting positive or negative
amounts of the computed value. Gains and losses arising from a change in the fair value are recoghized in the
income statement. Fair values of derivatives are calculated using either discounted cash flow model or market
value,

Explanations on interest income and expenses

Interest income and expenses are recognized as they are accrued taking into account the internal rate of return
method. Interest accrual is not made for non-performing loans until non-performing loans become performing
and are classified as performing loans or until collection in accordance with the “Regulation on the Principles
and Procedures Related to the Determination of the Loans and Other Receivables for which Provisions Shall
be Set Aside by Banks and to the Provisions to be Set Aside”, published in the Official Gazette No. 26333
dated 1 November 20086, which was prepared on the basis of the provisions of Articles 53 and 83 of the Banking
Law no. 5411.

Explanations on fees and commissions

Fees and commissions received and paid, and other fees and commissions paid to financia! institutions are
either recognized on an accrual basis over the period the service is provided or received or recognized as
income or expense when collected or paid depending on their najure.

Explanations on financial assets

Financial assets include cash; acquisition right of cash or acquisition right of other financial asset or bilateral
exchange right of financial assets or equity instrument transactions with the counterpart. Financial assets are
classified in four categories; as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, financial assets available-
for-sale, investmenis held-to-maturity, and loans and receivables.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets held for trading

Trading financial assets are financial assets which are either acquired for generating a profit from short-term
fluctuations in prices or are financial assets included in a portfolio aimed at short-term profit making.

Trading financial assets are recognized af their fair value in the balance sheet and remeasured at their fair
value after recognition.

All gains and losses arising from valuations of trading financial assets are reflected in the income statement.
In accordance with descriptions of the uniform chart of accounts, favorable difference between acquisition cost
of a financial asset and its discounted value are recognized in “Interest Income”; and in the case of fair value
of asset is above its discounted value, favorable difference between them are recognized in “Capital Market
Transactions Profits” account, in the case of fair value is below discounted value, unfavorable difference
between them are recognized in “Capital Market Transactions Losses” account. In the case that the financial
asset is sold before its maturity, consisted gains or losses are accounted with the same principals.

Derivative financial assets are classified as trading financial assets unless they are used for hedging purposes.
The accounting of derivative financial assets is explained in Note IV of Section Three.
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Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss .
DFS Group does not have any securities designated as “financial assets at fair value through profit or loss”.

Investment securities available-for-sale

Available-for-sale assets are financial assets that are not loans and receivables, held to maturity investments
and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,

After the recognition, financial assets available for sale are remeasured at fair value. Interest income arising
from available for sale calculated with “Effective interest method” and dividend income from equity securities
are reflected to the income statement. Unrealized gains and losses arising from the differences of fair value of
securities classified as available for sale and that is representing differences between amortized cost
calculated with effective interest method and fair value of financial assets are recognized under the account of
“Marketable securities valuation differences” under shareholder's equity. Unrealized profits and losses are not
reclassified to the income statement until these securities are sold or matured and the related fair value
differences accumulated in the shareholders’ equity are then transferred to the income statement.

Investment securities held-to-maturity

Held to maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturity that an entity has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity other than those that the entity
upon initial recognition designates as at fair value through profit or loss, those that the entity designates as
available for sale; and those that meet the definition of loans and receivables.

Held to maturity financial assets are initially recognized at acquisition costinciuding the transaction costs which
reflects the fair value of the those instruments and subsequently recognized at amortized cost by using effective
interest rate method.

Interest income obtained from held to maturity financial assets are presented in the line of “interest received
from securities porifolio - investment securities held-to-maturity” in the consolidated statement of income.

There are no financial assets that are banned from being classified as investment securities held-to maturity
for two years due to the violation of the tainting rule.

DFS Group has government securities with a maturity of 5-10 years and indexed to CPlin the 3 month real
coupon ratios that remain constant throughout the maturity in the available for sell and held to maturity
securities portfolios. As stated by Secretary of Treasury in CPl indexed investor guide, the refence indexes
used in calculating the actual coupon payment amounts of these securities are based on the CPl indexes of 2
months ago. DFS Group predicts the inflaton rate in parallel to those,

Loans and specific provisions

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets that are not classified as either financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss or financial assets available for sale, are unlisted in an active market and whose
payments are fixed or can be determined. Loans and receivables are carried initially by adding acquisition cost
to transaction costs which reflect fair value and subsequently recognized at the discounted value calculated
using the "Effective interest method”.

Foreign currency loans are subject to evaluation and currency exchange differences arising from such re-
measuremenis are reflected in “Foreign Exchange Gains/Losses” account in the consolidated income
statement. Foreign currency-indexed loans are initially recognized in their Turkish Lira equivalents; repayments
are calculated with exchange rate at payment date, and currency exchange differences occurred are reflected
in profit/loss accounts.

Specific and general allowances are calculated in accordance with the "Regulation on the Principles and
Procedures Related to the Determination of the Loans and Other Receivables for which Provisions Shall be
Set Aside by Banks and to the Provisions to be Set Aside” published in the Official Gazette numbered 26333
dated 1 November 2006.

When collections are made from loans that have been provided for, they are credited to the income statement
accounts “Provision for Loan Losses or Other Receivables” if the provision was made in the current year,
otherwise such collections are credited to “Other Operating Income” account with respect to allowances made
in prior years. The interest income recovered is booked in “Other Interest Income” account.
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Explanations on impairment of financial assets

The existence of objective evidence whether a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired, is
assessed at each balance sheet date. If such evidence exists, impairment provision is provided.

Impairment for held-to-maturity financial assets carried at amortized cost is calculated as the difference
between the present value of the expected future cash flows discounted based on the “Effective interest
method” and its carrying value. Regarding available-for-sale financial assets, when there is objective evidence
that the asset is impaired, the cumulative loss that had been recognized in other comprehensive income shall
be reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment even though the financial asset has
not been derecognized. An explanation about the impairment of loans and receivables is given in Note VII-d of
Section Three.

Explanations on offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liahilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet when the DFS
Group has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to collect/pay
the related financial assets and liabilittes on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Explanations on sale and repurchase agreements and transactions related to the lending of
securities

Government bonds and treasury bills sold to customers under repurchase agreements are classified according
to purpese of being hold into portfolio on the assets side of the accompanying consolidated bafance sheet
within “Financial Assets Held for Trading”, “Investment Securities Available for Sale” and “Investment
Securities Held to Maturity” and are measured according to valuation principles of relating portfolio. Funds
obtained from repurchase agreements are presented on the liability side of the consolidated balance sheet
within the account of “Funds Provided under Repurchase Agreements”. The accrual amounts corresponding
to the period is calculated over the sell and repurchase price difference determined in repurchase agreements,
Accrued interest expenses calculated for funds obtained from repurchase agreements are presented in
“Reverse Repurchase Agreements” account in liability part of the consolidated balance sheet.

Securities received with resale commitments are presented under “Reverse Repurchase Agreements” line in
the balance sheet. The accrual amounts for the corresponding part to the period of the resale and repurchase
price difference determined in reverse repurchase agreements are calculated using the “Effective interest
method”. The Parent Bank has no securities which are subject to borrowing activities.

Explanations on assets held for sale and discontinued operations and and related liabilities

An asset is regarded as “Asset held for resale” only when the sale is highly propable and the asset is available
for immediate sale in its present condition. For a highly probable sale, there must be a valid plan prepared by
the management for the sale of asset including identification of possible buyers and completion of sale
process. Various events and conditions can prolong completion period of sale transaction to mere than 1
year, This ioss of time is realized due to events and conditions out of contol of an enterprise and in the position
of competent evidence about sales plan of an enterprise for sale of relevant asset continuing, assets mentioned
continuing to be classified as assets held for sale.

The liabilities of a disposal group classified as held for sale shall be presented separately from other liabilities
in the statement of financial position. Those assets and liahilities shall not be offset and presented as a single
balance.

A discontinued operation is a division of a bank that is either disposed or held for sale and represents a
separate major line of business or geographical area of operations; oris partof a singie coordinated plan to
dispose of a separate major line of business or geographlcai area of operations; or is a subsidiary acquired
exclusively with a view to resale.

Shares of Destek Varlk Yénetim A.S., owned at 100% rate by Deniz Yatinm, Ekspres Bilgl istem, Deniz
Finansal Kiralama, Deniz Faktoring and Intertech, were sold to Lider Faktoring and Merkez Faktoring with a
total consideration of TL 12.320 on 29 December 2016 in accordance with the Board of Directors’ decision
dated 14 July 2016.

As 31 December 2017, DFS Group does not have non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations
{31 December 2016: None).
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Explanations on goodwill and other intangible assets

Goodwill

CGoodwili represents the excess of the total acquisition costs over the shares owned in the net assets of the
acquired company at the date of acquisition. The “net goodwill” resulted from the acquisition of the investment
and to be included in the consolidated balance sheet, is calculated based on the financial statements of the
investee company as adjusted according to the required accounting principles. Assets of the acquired company
which are not presented on financial statements but seperated from goodwill represented with fair values of
tangible assets (credit card brand equity, customer portfolio etc.) and/or contingent liabilities to financial
statements in process of acquisition.

In accordance with “TFRS 3 - Business Combinations”, the goodwill is not amortized. It is tested yearly or if
there is any indication of impairment according to “Turkish Accounting Standard 36 (TAS 36) - Impairment of
Assets”.

Other intangible assets

Intangible assets are initially measured at acquisition cost and other costs which are required for activation of
the financial asset in accordance with TAS 38 “Intangible Assets” standard. Intangible assets are evaluated
over excess value of net cost that derived from accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment after
recognition period.

The Group's intangible assets consist of software, license rights, dataftelephone line, total values of credit
cards and personal loans portfolio.

Intangible assets purchased hefore 1 January 2003 and after 31 December 2006 are amortized on a straight-
line basis; and those purchased between the aforementioned dates are amortized by using the double-
declining method. Usefu! life of an asset Is estimated by assessment of the expected life span, technical, and
technological wear outs of the asset. The amortization rates used approximate the useful lives of the assets,

Maintenance costs associated with the computer software that are in use are expensed at the period of
occurrence.,

Explanations on tangible assets

DFS Group has passed to revaluation model from cost model in the framework of TAS 16 “Tangible Fixed
Assets” in valuation of properties in use as of
31 December 2016, while it tracks all of its remaining tangible fixed assets by cost model in accordance with
TAS 186. Positive differences between property value in expertise reports prepared by licenced valuation firms
and net carrying amount of the related property are recorded under equity accounts while negative differences
are posted to the income statement.

Estimated Economic Life (Year) Depreciation Rate
Movables
- Office machinery 4 Years 10 %-50%
- Fugniture and fixtures 5 Years 10%-50%
- Motor vehicles 5 Years 20%-50%
- Other equipment 10 Years 250%-50%
Real estate 50 Years 2%-3,03%

Maintenance and repair costs that are routinely made on tangible assets are expensed. The capital
expenditures incurred in order o increase the capacity of the tangible asset or to increase the future benefit of
the asset are capitalized on the cost of the tangible asset.

There are no restrictions such as pledges and mortgages on tangible assets or no purchase commitments.

20



XIV.

XVII.

DEN'ZBANK ANONIM S'RKE-“ Convenience Transiation of

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Consolidated Financial Report
AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2017 Originally Issued in Turkish,
{Currency: Thousands of TL - Turkish Lira) See Note 3.1.c

Explanations on investment properties

L.and and buildings that are held for rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, rather than held in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes or for the sale in the ordinary course
of business are classified as "investment property”. Investment property is carried at fair value. Gains or losses
arising from a change in the fair value of investment property are recognized in the income statement in the
period in which they occur.

Investment property is derecognized through disposal or withdrawal from use and when no future economic
benefit is expected from its disposal. Gains or losses arising from the disposal of investment property are
recognized in the related statement of income or expense accounts in the period in which they occur.

Due to sale of a Bank's real estate to its subsidiary, Deniz GYQ, in 2015, this property has been classified as
investment property in the Group's consolidated financial statements, and the difference of
TL 13.397 between the net book value and fair value as of the date of sale has been classified in “Investment
Properties Revaluation Differences” under shareholders' equity according to TAS 16.

Explanations on leasing activities

Fixed assets acquired through financial leasing are recognized in tangible assets and depreciated in line with
the fixed assets group they relate to. The obligations under finance leases arising from the lease contracts are
presented under “Finance Lease Payables” account in the balance sheet. interest expense and currency
exchange rate differences related to leasing actlvities are recognized in the income statement.

DFS Group has finance lease transactions as “lessor” via its subsidiary, Deniz Leasing. The lease receivables
related to leased assets are recorded as finance lease receivables. The asset subject to the financial leasing is
presented in the balance sheet as receivable equal to the net leasing amount. Interest income is recognized
over the term of the lease using the net investment method which reflects a constant periedic rate of return and
the unrecognized portion is followed under unearned interest income account.

Specific provisions for non-performing financial lease receivables of DFS Group are provided for in accordance
with the “Communiqué On Procedures and Principies For The Provisions To Be Set Aside By Financial
Leasing, Factoring and Financing Companies For Their Receivables” published in the Official Gazette
numbered 28361 dated 24 December 20113 and are represented under loans and specific provision for
receivables in the consolidated balance sheet.

Transactions regarding operational agreements are accounted on an accrual basis in accordance with the
terms of the related contracts.

Explanations on provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions other than specific and general provisions for loans and other receivables and free provisions for
probable risks, contingent liabilities are provided for in accordance with TAS 37 "Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets”. Provisions are accounted for immediately when obligations arise as a result
of past events and a reliable estimate of the obligation is made by DFS Group management. Whenever the
amount of such obligations cannot be measured, they are regarded as “Contingent”. If the possibility of an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits becomes probable and the amount of the obligation can be
measured reliably, a provision is recognized. If the amount of the obligation can not be measured reliably or
the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote, such liabilities are disclosed
in the footnotes.

Based on the representations of the Parent Bank's attorneys, there are 6.102 lawsuits against DFS Group with
total risks amounting to TL193.276, US Dollar 3.063.070 and Euro 866.023 as of 31 December 2017. There
are also 14.211 follow-up cases amounting to TL 600.850, US Dollar 4.795.625 and Euro 498.7889 in total that
are filed by DFS Group and are at courts. DFFS Group booked a provision amounting to TL 38,146 for the
continuing lawsuits {31 December 2016: TL 23.959).

Explanations on obligations for employee benefits
Provision for employee benefits has been accounted for in accordance with TAS 19 "Employee Benefits”,

The Parent Bank in accordance with existing legislation in Turkey, is required to make retirement and notice
payments to each employee whose employment is terminated due to reasons other than resignation or
misconduct. Except to the this extents, the Parent Bank is required to make severance payment to each
employee whose employment is terminated due to retirement, death, miliary service and to female employees
following their marriage within one year leave the job of thelr own accords by fourteenth clause of Labour Law.
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DFS Group, in accordance with TAS 19 "Employee Benefits” realized provision registry under the condition of
prediction of present vatue of possible liability in the future related to employee termination benefits. Losses
and gains which occur after 1 January 2013 are adjusting under the Equity Accounts in accordance with
updated TAS 19 Standard.

The Bank has recognized vacation pay liability amount which is calculated from unused vacation to financial
statement as a provision.

Explanations on taxation

Current taxes

In accordance with the Corporate Tax Law No: 5520 published in the Official Gazette numbered 26205 dated
21 June 2006, the corporate tax rate is levied at 20% beginning from 1 January 2006.

Companies file their corporate tax returns between the 1st and 25th days of the following four months period
after to which they relate and the paymenis are made until the end of that month.

The provision for corporate tax for the period is reflected as the "Current Tax Liability” in the liabilities and
“Current Tax Provision” in the income statement.

in accordance with the Corporate Tax Law, tax losses can be carried forward for five years. The tax authorities
can inspect tax returns and the related accounting records back to a maximum period of five years.

Besides institutions reside in Turkey, dividends pald to the offices or the institutions earning through their
permanent representatives in Turkey are not subject to withholding tax. According to the decision no.
2006/10731 of the Council of Ministers published in the Official Gazette no, 26237 dated 23 July 2008, certain
duty rates included in the atticles no.15 and 30 of the new Corporate Tax Law no.5520 are revised. In this
respect, the withholding tax rate on the dividend payments other than the ones paid to the nonresident
institutions generating income in Turkey through their operations or permanent representatives and the
institutions residing in Turkey is 15%. While applying the withholding tax rates on dividend payments to the
foreign based institutions and the real persons, the withholding tax rates covered in the related Avoidance of
Double Taxation Treaty are taken into account. Addition of profit to capital is not considered as profit distribution
and therefore is not subject to withholding tax.

The foreign subsidiaries of DFS Group that operate in Austria, the Russian Federation and Cyprus are subject
to corporate tax rates of 25%, 20% and 2%, respectively.

By the provisional article added to Corporate Tax Law no.5520 by the Clause 91 of law no.7061, current tax
rate is declared to be 22% for corporations in 2018, 2019 and 2020 taxation periods.

Tax effects of items that are accounted for under the shareholders’ equity are also recorded under equity
accounts.

Deferred taxes

In accordance with TAS 12 “Income Taxes”, DFS Group accounts for deferred taxes based on the tax effect of
temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and the amounts used for taxation purposes.

Individual deferred tax assets and liabilities of the consolidated entities have been offset in their separate
financial statements, but have not been offset in the consolidated balance sheel. As a result of offsetting, as of
31 December 2017 deferred tax assets of TL 216.618 (31 December 2016: TL 153.176) and deferred tax
liabilities of TL 27.217 {31 December 2016: TL 15.446) have been recognized in the accompanying financial
statements.

Deferred taxes directly related to equity items are recognized and offset in related equity accounts.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary and deferred tax assets are
recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
avallable against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Deferred tax asset is not
computed over provisions for possible risks and general loan loss provisions according to the circular of BRSA
numbered BRSA.DZM.2/13/1-a-3 and dated 8 December 2004.

By the provisional article added to Corporate Tax Law no.5520 by the Clause 91 of law no.7061, current tax
rate is declared to be 22% for corporations in 2018, 2019 and 2020 taxation periods.
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Transfer pricing

In the framework of the provisions on “Disguised Profit Distribution Through Transfer Pricing” regulated under
article 13 of Corporate Tax Law no. 5520, pursuant to the Corporate Tax Law General Communigué no. 1,
which became effective upon its promulgation in the Official Gazette dated 3 April 2007 and numbered 26482,
Corporate Tax Law General Communigué no. 3, which became effective upon its promulgation in the Official
Gazetie dated 20 November 2008 and numbered 27060, Council of Ministers Decree no. 2007/12888, which
became effective upon its promulgation in the Official Gazette dated 6 December 2007 and numbered 26722,
Council of Minister Decree no. 2008/13490, which became effective upon its premulgation in the Official
Gazette dated 13 April 2008 and numbered 26846, “General Communiqué No. 1 on Disguised Profit
Distribution Through Transfer Pricing”, which became effective upon its promulgation in the Official Gazette
dated 18 November 2007 and numbered 26704 and “General Communiqué No. 2 on Disguised Profit
Distribution Through Transfer Pricing”, which became effective upon its promulgation in the Official Gazette
dated 22 April 2008 and numbered 26855, “General Communiqué No. 3 on Disguised Profit Distribution
Through Transfer Pricing”, which became effective upon its promulgation In the Official Gazetie dated 7
December 2017 and numbered 30263, profits shall be deemed {o have been wholly or partially distributed in a
disguised manner through transfer pricing if companies engage in the sales or purchases of goods or services
with related parties at prices or amounts defined contrary to the arm's length principle. Buying, selling,
manufacturing and construction operations and services, renting and leasing iransactions, borrowing or
lending money, bonuses, wages and similar payments are deemed as purchase of goods and services in any
case and under any condition.

Corporate taxpayers are obliged to fill in the “The Form on Transfer Pricing, Controlled Foreign Corporation
and Thin Capital” regarding the purchases or sales of goods or services they perform with related parties during
a fiscal pericd and submit it to their tax office in the attachment of the corporate tax return.

Furthermore, the taxpayers registered in the Large Taxpayers Tax Administration (Bliyik Mikellefler Vergi
Dairesi Baskanhg) must prepare the "Annual Transfer Pricing Report” in line with the designated format for
their domestic and cross-border transactions performed with retated parties during a fiscal period until the filing
deadline of the corporate tax return, and if requested after the expiration of this period, they must submit the
report to the Administration or those authorized to conduct tax inspection.

Additional explanations on borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognized at cost representing their fair value and remeasured at amortized cost based
on the internal rate of return at next periods. Foreign currency borrowings have been translated using the
forelgn currency buying rates of the Parent Bank at the balance sheet date. Interest expense incurred for the
period has been recognized in the accompanylng financial statements.

General hedging techniques are used for borrowings against liquidity and currency risks. The Parent Bank, if
required, borrows funds from domestic and foreign institutions. The Parent Bank alsc borrows funds in the
forms of syndication loans and securitization loans from foreign instiutions.

Explanations on issuance of share certificates

No share certificate has been issued in 2017 (31 December 2016: T 50.418.5910).

Explanations on acceptances

Acceptances are realized simultaneously with the customer payments and recorded in off-balance sheet
accounts, if any.

As of the balance sheet date, there are no acceptances recorded as liability in return for assets.

Explanations on government grants
As of the balance sheet date, DFS Group does not have any government grants.

Explanations on segment reporting
Segment reporting is presented in Note X of Section Four,

Explanations on other matters
None (31 December 2016: None).
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SECTION FOUR
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Explanations related to the consolidated shareholders’ equity

Capital and capital adequacy ratio are calculated in accordance with the "Regulation on Equities of Banks” and
“Regulation on Measurement and Assessment of Capital Adequacy Ratios of Banks™.

The current period equity of the Bank is TL 18.383.397 (31 December 2016: TL 15.803.437) while its capital
adequacy standard ratio is 15,30% as of 31 December 2017 {31 December 2016: 14,17%).

Components of consolidated capital

Current Amounts Amounts
Period subjectto  Prior Period subject to
3 treatment 3 treatment
December before December before
2017 1/1/2014 2016 1/1/2014
Common Equity Tier 1 capital
Directly issued qualifying common share capital plus related stock surplus 3.316.100 3.316.100
Share premium 15 15
Legal reserves 4.184.425 3.968.080
Projected gains to shareholders’ equity of the accounting standards in Turkey 545.662 212376
Profit 5.253.883 3.646.324
Net current period profit 1.800.758 1.400.027
Prior period profit 3.363.125 2.246.297
Free shares from investments and associates, subsidiaries and joint ventures that is not
recognised in profit 708 11
Minority shares 9.644 8.270
Common Equity Tier 1 capital before regulatory adjustments 13.320.437 11.151.170
Common Equity Tier 1 ¢apital: reguiatory adjustments
Prudential valuation adjustments - --
Sum of current year net loss and prior period's loss that is not covered with reserves and losses
on shareholders' equity of the accounting standards in Turkey 467.030 560.456
Development ¢ost of operating lease 110176 §1.733
Goodwill (net of related tax liability) 695 869 522 869
Other intangibles other than mortgage-servicing rights (net of related tax lial¥lity) 150,304 187.882 122.370 203.95C
Deferred tax assets that rely on future profitability excluding those arising from temporary
differences (net of related tax liabiiity) 1.154 378
Cash-flow hedge reserve - -
Gains and losses due to changes in own credit risk on fair valued liabilities - -
Gains from securitisation transactions - -
Gains and losses due tc changes in own credit risk on fair valued liabilities - -
Defined-benefit pension fund net assets - -
Invesiments in own shares (if not already netted off paid-in capital on reporied batance shest) -
Reciprocal cross-holdings in common equity - -
Investments in the capital of banking, financial and insurance entities that are outside the scope
of regulatory consolidation, net of efigible short positions, where the bank does not own more
than 10% of the issued share caphial {amount above 10% thresh - -
Significant investments in the common stock of banking, jinancial and insurance entities that
are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation, net of eligible shert positions (amount above
10% threshoeld) - -
Mertgage servicing rights (amount above 10% threshold) - -
Deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences (ameunt above 10% threshold, net of
retated tax liability) B -
Amount exceeding the 15% threshold - -
of which: significant investments in the cornmen stock of financials - -
of which: mortgage servicing rights - -
of which: deferced tax assets arising from terporary differences - -
National specific regulatory adjustments - --
Regelatory adjustments applied te Common Equity Tier 1 due to insufficient Additional Tier 1
and Tier 2 to cover deductions - -
Total regulatory adjustments to Common equity Tier 1 728.358 775.459
Common Equity Tier 1 capital (CET1} 12.591.078 10.375.711
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Additional Tier 1 capital: instruments

Directly issued qualifying Additienal Tier 1 instruments pius related stock surplus of which:
classified as equity under applicable accounting standards
Directly issued qualifying Additional Tier 1 instruments pius related stock surplus of which:
classified as liabifities under applicable accounting standards
Additional Tier 1 instruments {and CET1 instruments not inciuded In row 5) issued by
subsidiaries and held by third parties (amount allowed In group AT 1} of which: instruments
issued by subsidiaries subject to phase out
The additional Tier  capital shares of third parties
The additional Tier 1 capilal shares of third parties (Gegici Madde 3 kapsaminda olanlar}

Additional Tier 1 capital before regulatory adiustments

Additional Tier 1 capital: regulatory adjustments

Investments in own Additional Tier 1 instruments

Reciprocal cross-holdings in Additional Tier 1 instruments

Investmenis in the capilal of banking, financial and insurance entities that are outside the scope
of regulatory consalidation, net of eligible shont positions, where the bank does not own more
than 10% of the issued common share capital of the entity (am

Significant investments in the capitat of banking, financial and insurance entities that are
oulside the scope of regulatery consolidation (net of eligible short positions)

Naticnal specific regulatery adjustments

The pracess of transition will continue to reduce from Tier 1 Capital

Goodwill or other intangibles and deferred tax liabilities of which the regulation concerning
transitional Anticle 2 of subsection of core capitat not reduced from (-}

Net deferred tax asseUliabi)ty which is not deducted trom Common Eguity Tier 1 oapitat for the
purposes ot the sub

paragraph ot the Provisionat Arlicle 2 of the Regutation on Banks Own Funds (-)

Regutatory adjustments apptied to Additionat Tier 1 due o insutficient Tier 2 to cover
deductions

37752

289

252

Total regulatory adjustments to Additional Tier 1 capital

38.041

82.179

Additioral Tier 1 capital (AT1)

(38.041)

(82.179)

Tier 1 capital (T1 = CET1 + AT1)

12.553.037

10.293.532

Tier 2 eapital: Instruments and provisions
Directly issued qualifying Tier 2 instruments plus related stack surplus
Directly issued qualifying Tier 2 instruments plus related stock surplus
The additional Tier 1 capital shares of third parties
The additional Tier 1 capital shares of third parties ((Covered by Temporary Ailicte 3)
Provisions

4.479.778

1.376.307

4.262.567
140.768

1.269.354

Tier 2 capital before regulatory adjustments

Tier 2 capital: regudatory adjistments

Investments in own Tier 2 instruments ()

Reciprocal cross-holdings In Tier 2 instruments

Investments in the capital of banking, financial and insurance entities that are cutside the scope
of regulatory consolidation, net of efigible short positions, where the bank dees nol own mere
than 10% of the issued common share capital of the entity {fam

Significant investments in the capital banking, financial and insurance entities that are outside
the scope of regulatory consolidation {ret of efigible short pasitions)

National specific regulatory adjustments (-)

5.856.085

5.531.921

Total requlatory adjustments to Tier 2 capital

Tier 2 capital (T2)

5.856.086

5.631.921

Total capital {TC=T1 +T2)

Total risk weighted assets

Loans extended being non compliant with articles 50 and 51 of the Law

The Net Book Value of Properties Exceeding Fifty Percent of Equity and Properties Held for
Sale and Properties and Commodity to be Disposed, Acquired in Exchange of Loans and
Receivables According to the Article 57 of the Banking Law and have not been Disposed yet
After & Years After Foreclosure

Nationa! specific regulatory adjustrnents

The process of transition will continue to reduce from Common Equity Tier 1 capital and
Additional Tier 1 capitat

of which: The sum of partnership share on banks and financial instilutions (domestic and
abroad), with shareholding of less than 10%

of which: Partnership share on banks and financial instituticns {domestic and abroad} that are
nct consolidated, with a shareholding of 10% aad above

of which: Partnership share on banks and financial institutions {domestic and abroad} that are
not consolidated, with a shareholding of 10% and above

18.408.122

16.726

15.825.453

9.825
12,191

Capital

Total capital

Tolal risk weighted items

CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIOS

Consciidated Core Capital Adequacy Ratio {%)
Consofidated Tier 1 Capital Adequacy Ratio (%}
Consolidated Capital Adequacy Standard Ratic (%)

18.393.397
120.2%1.5%4

10,47
10,44
15,30

15.803.437
111.503.228

9,31
9,23
14,17

BUFFERS
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Instiwtion specific buffer requirement 1,302 3,647
Capital conservation buffer requirement (%} 1,250 0,625
Bank specific coguntercyclical buffer requirement (%) 0,052 0,022
Systemically important Bank buffer (%) - -
Common Equity Tier 1 available to meet buffers (as a percentage of risk weighted assets) (%) 0,013

Amounts below the thrasholds for deduction (before risk weighting)

Nen-significant investiments in the capital of other financials - -
Significant investments in the common stock of financials - -
Mortgage servicing rights (net of related tax liability) - -
Deferred tax assets arising from lemporary differences (net of related tax lability) - -
Applicable caps on the inclusion of provisions in Tier 2

Provisions eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 in respect of exposures subject to standardised

approach {prior to application of cap) 1.440.765 1.269.354
Cap on inclusion of provisions in Tier 2 under standardised approach 1.376.307 1.269.354
Provisions efigible for inclusion in Tier 2 in respect of exposures subject to internal ratings-

based approach (prior to application of cap) - -
Cap for inclusion of provisions in Tier 2 under internat ratings-based approach - -
Capitat instruments subject ta phase-out arrangementa (ony appiicatie between 1 Jan 2018

and 1 Jan 2022)

Current cap on Additional Tier 1 capital instruments which subject to phase out - -
asrangements in the Provisionat Article 4 of the Requlation on Banks' Own Funds

Amount excluded from AT1 due 1o cap (excess aver cap after redemptions and maturities)

which subject to Provisional Article 4 of the Regulation on Banks' Own Funds - -
Cumrent cap on Tier 2 capital instruments which subject to phase out arrangements in the

Provisionat Article 4 of the Reguiation on Banks’ Own Funds (%) - -
Amount excluded from T2 due to cap (excess over cap after redemptions and maturities) which

subject te Provistonal Article 4 of the Regulation on Banks” Own Funds - -
- - ______________________________________________

{*) There are no credits included in Tier 2 capital related to *Temporary Article 47.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Consolidated Financial Report
AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2017 Originally fssued in Turkish,
{Currency: Thousands of TL - Turkish Lira) Sea Note 3.l.c

Main differences between “Equity” amount mentioned in the prior tables’ equity statements and "Equity”
amount in consolidated balance sheet arise from general provisions and subordinated loans. The portion of
main amount to credit risk of general provision up to 1,25% and subordinated credits are considered as
supplementary capital in the calculation of “Equity” amount included in equity statement as result of
deductions mentioned in scope of Regulation on Equity of Banks. Additionally, Losses reflected to equity are
determined through excluding losses sourcing from cash flow hedge reflected in equity in accordance with
TAS which are subjects of discount from Core Capital. On the other hand, leasehold improvement costs
monitored under Plant, Property and Equipment in balance sheet, intangible assels and deferred tax liabilities
related to intangible assets, net carrying value of properties acquired in return for receivables and kept for
over 3 years and certain other accounts determined by the Board are taken into consideration in the
calculation as assels deducted from capital.

Explanations related to the consolidated credit risk and risk management

Information on risk concentrations by debtors or group of debtors or geographical regions and sectors, basis
for risk limits and the frequency of risk appraisals

Credit risk is the risk and losses likely to incur due to the counterparties of the Parent Bank andfor its
consolidated subsidiaries and associates not meeting in full or in part their commitments arising from the

contracts.

Credit risk limits of the customers are allocated based on the customers’ financial strength and the credit
requirement, within the credit authorization limits of the branches, the credit evaluation group, the regional
directorates, the executive vice presidents responsible from loans, the general manager, the credit committee
and the Board of Directors; on condition that they are in compliance with the related regulations.

Credit risk Hmits are determined for debtors or group of debtors. Credit risk limits of the debtors, group of
debtors and sectors are monitored on a weekly basis,

Information on determination and distribution of risk limits for daily transactions, monitoring of risk
concentrations related to off-balance sheet items per customer and dealer basis

Risk limits and allocations relating o daily tfransactions are monitored on a daily basis. Off-balance sheet risk
concentrations are monitored by on-site and off-site investigations.

Information on periodical analysis of creditworthiness of loans and other receivables per legislation, inspection
of account vouchers taken against new loans, if not inspected, the reasons for it, credit limit renewals,

collaterals against loans and other receivables

The Group targets a healthy loan portfolio and in order to meet its target there are process instructions, follow-
up and centrol procedures, close monitoring procedures and risk classifications for loans in accordance with

the banking legislation.

In order to prevent the loans becoming non-performing either due to cyclical changes or structural problems,
the potential problematic customers are determined through the analysis of early warning signals, and the
probable performance problems are aimed 1o be resolved at an early stage.

It is preferred to obtain highly liquid collaterals such as bank guarantees, real estate and ship mortgages,
pledges on securities, bills of exchange and sureties of the persons and companies.

Descriptions of past due and impaired loans as per the accounting practices

Loans which were transferred to second group loans based on the “Regulation on Procedures and Principles
for Determination of Qualifications of Loans and Other Receivables By Banks and Provisions to be Set Aside”
and whose principal and interest payments were not realized at the relevant due dates are regarded as past
due loans by the Parent Bank.Loans whose principal and interest payments were late for more than 90 days
and the loans whose debtors have suffered deterioration in their creditworthiness as per the Bank’s
evaluations are regarded as impaired loans.
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Methods and approaches regarding valuation adjustments and provisions

Based on the “Regulation on Procedures and Principles for Determination of Qualifications of Loans and Other
Receivables By Banks and Provisions to be Set Aside” the Parent Bank calculates general provision for past
due loans and specific provision for impaired loans.

Total amount of exposures after offselting transactions but before applying credit risk mitigations and the
average exposure amounts that are classified in different risk groups and types

Current Average Prior Perlod  Average
Risk classifications Period (*} *") * (")
1 Receivables from central governments and Central Banks 36.203.725 31.836.789 29.206.638 26.258.918
2 Receivables from regional or lecal governments 415,902 453.970 546.445 656,152
3 Receivables from administrative hodies and non-commercial . . _ 1
enterprises
4 Receivables from multilateral development banks - - - -
5 Receivables from international organizations -- -- -- -
B8 Receivables from banks and brokerage houses 6.281.976 6.201.393  5.027.705 4.917.235
7 Receivables from corporate perifolio 71.888.308 ©66.127.326 60.730.447 57.177.588
8 Receivables from retail portfolio 45.325.335 42.804.165 35.166.384 28.627.101
9 Receivables secured by residential mortgages 5,122,699 5387.267 5.383.060 5.028.243
10 Receivables secured by commercial mongages 10.289.215 11,387.785 11.679.326  9.031.700
11 Past due receivables 1.003.419  1.059.195  1.155.948 981.167
12 Receivables defined in high risk category by BRSA - 2489 - 790.630
13 Securities collateralized by mortgages - - - -
14 Short-term receivables from banks, brokerage houses and corporate . _
portfolio - -
15 Investments similar ta collective investment funds 219 193 2.255 2.004
16 Other receivables 4.530.843  4.579.635 4.435.243 3.984.588
17 Equity investments 266.425 81.765 26.709 2811
18 Total 180.337.066 170.029.732 153.371.546 137.456.238

e
(") Includes risk amounts in banking book before the effect of credit risk mitigation but after the credit conversions.
(**) Arithmetical average of the guarterly reporied amounts.

Information on the control limits of the Group for forward transactions, options and similar contracts,
management of credit risk for these instruments together with the potentiai risks arising from market conditions

The Group has control limits defined for the positions arising from forward transactions, options and similar
contracts. Credit risk for these instruments is managed together with those arising from market conditions.

Information on whether the Group decreases the risk by liquidating its forward transactions, options and similar
contracts in case of facing a significant credit risk or not

Forward transactions can be realized at maturity. However, if it is reguired, reverse positions of the current
positions are purchased to decrease the risk.

Information on whether the indemnified non-cash loans are evaluated as having the same risk weight as non-
performing loans or not

Indemnified non-cash loans are treated as having the same risk weight as non-performing loans.
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information on whether the loans that are renewed and rescheduled are included in a new rating group as
determined by the Bank's risk management system, other than the follow-up plan defined in the banking
regulations or not, whether new precautions are considered in these methods or not; whether the Bank’s risk
management accepts long term commitments as having more risk than short term commitments which results
in a diversification of risk or not

Loans that are renewed and rescheduled are included in a new rating group as determined by the risk
management system, other than the follow-up plan defined in the banking regulations.

Long term commitments are accepted as having more risk than short term commitments which results in a
diversification of risk and are monitored periodicaily.

Evaluation of the significance of country specific risk If the banks have foreign operations and credit
transactions in a few countries or these operations are coordinated with a few financial entities

There is no significant credit risk since the Parent Bank’s foreign operations and credit transactions are
conducted in OECD and EU member countries in considering their economic climate.

Evaluation of the Bank's competitive credit risk as being an active participant in the international banking
transactions market

Being an active participant in the international banking transactions market, the Parent Bank does not have
significant credit risk as compared to other financial institutions.

DFS Group's

The share of the top 100 and 200 cash loan customers in the total cash loans portfolio

The share of the top 100 and 200 cash loan customers comprises 30% and 36% of the total cash loans portfolio
(31 December 2016: 32%, 39%).

The share of the top 100 and 200 non-cash loan customers In the total non-cash loans portfolio

The share of the top 100 and 200 non-cash foan customers comprises 43% and 55% of the total non-cash
loans portfolio (31 December 2016: 46%, 58%).

The share of the total cash and non-cash loan balance of the top 100 and 200 loan customers in the total
assets and off-balance sheet items

The share of the total cash and non-cash lcans from its top 100 and 200 loan customers comprise 20% and
26% of the total assets and off-balance sheet items (31 December 2016:; 19%, 26%).

DFS Group’s general loan provision for its loans

As at 31 December 2017, DFS Group’s general loan provision amounts to TL 1.440.765 (31 December 2016:
TL 1.269.354}.
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DEN|ZBANK ANON|M $|RKET| Convenience Transiation of

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Consolidated Financial Report
AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2017 Originally Issued in Turkish,
{Currency: Thousands of TL - Turkish Lira) See Note 3.1.c

Analysis of maturity-bearing exposures according to remaining maturities

Current Period

Undistributed 3-6 612
Risk classifications * 1 month 1-3 months __months menths ~ Over 1 Year
1 Receivables from central goverznments and Central Banks 2.568.859 12.566.417 7.796.184 385815 270.566 11.615.884
2 Receivables from regional or local governments - 1.578 641 2.615 52,384 358.686
3 Receivables from administrative bodies and non- . . . . .
commercial enterprises
4 Receivables from multilateral development banks - - - - -
5 Receivables from international organizations - - - - - -
& Receivables from banks and brokerage houses 1.033.951% 1.613.578 1.433.516  319.027 489,201 1.382.705
7 Receivables from corporate portfolio 58.159 4.534.876 6.002.028 3.035.82¢ 8.227.044 50.028.472
8 Receivables from retail portfolio - 8.121.430 2,017,180 2.543.395 6.543.339 26.099.991
9 Receivables secured by residential mortgages - 152.681 172.865  195.438 252.488  4.345.226
10 Receivables secured by commercial mortgages - 349,126 350171 350411 864.121 8,375,386
11 Past due receivables 931.572 4.478 566 1.927 1.892 62.984
12 Receivables defined in high risk category by BRSA - - - - - .
13 Securities collateralized by mortgages - - - - - -
14 Short-term receivables from banks, brokerage houses and . . . ~ R _
corporate portfolio
15 Investments similar to collective investment funds - 174 45 - - -
16 Other receivables 4.395.485 144.358 - - - -
17 _Equity investments 266.425 - - - - --
18 Total 9.255.451 27.488.692  17.774.096 6.838.458 16.711.035 102.269.334
. ______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ ]
(*y Amounts without determined maturities are included.
Prior Period
| 1]
Undistributed 612 Over 1
Risk classifications ) 1 month 1-3 months 3-6 months  months Year
1 Receivables from central governments and Central Banks 6.345.933 10.300.402 69.142 - - 12.491.161
2 Receivables from regional or local governments - 254 3.256 9.187 21.830 511,908
3 Receivables from adminisirative bodies and non-commercial . _ . - B .
enterprises
4 Receivables from multilateral development banks - - - - - -
5 Receivables from international organizations - - - - - -
6 Receivables from banks and brokerage houses 1.372.922 850,892 656.680 275.525 565.681  1.306.005
7 Receivables from corporate portfolio 62.590 4.697.007 3928743 3.032.307 7.249.025 41.76%.775
8 Receivables from retail portfolio 1.77% 6.604.723  1.802.017 2.257.312 6.013.387 18.487.148
9 Receivables secured by residential mortgages - 218.525 147.123 208.799 330.330 4.478.283
10 Receivables secured by commercial mortgages - 536,288 550.195 520.459 616.952 9.455.432
11 Pastdue receivables 1.061.812 5.381 839 1.281 2.984 83.851
12 Receivables defined in high risk category by BRSA - - - - - -
13 Securities collateralized by mortgages -- - - - - -
14 Short-term recelvables from banks, brokerage houses and N - N B
corporate partfolic - =
15 Investments similar to collective investment funds - 2.089 - - 166 -
16 Other receivables 4,404,835 11.608 - - - 18.808
17 _Equity investments 29.108 - - - - -
18 Total 13.278.978  23.227.169 7.157.935 6.304.880 14.800.355 8B.602.169
b |

(") Amounts without determined maturities are included.

Risk Classifications

Ratings issued by Fiich, international credit rating agency, are being used in determining risk weights for the
regulatory calculation of capital adequacy.

The scope of asset classes that the credit ratings are considered are receivables from Central Governments
or Central Bank, receivables frorn Banks and Brokerage Houses as being limited with those residing abroad
and Corporate receivables from residing abroad.
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DEN|ZBAN K ANON'M $|RKET| Convenience Transiation of

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Consolidated Financial Report
AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2017 Originally fssued in Turkish,
{Currency: Thousands of TL - Turkish Lira) Soe Note 3.1.c
Current Period
Risk Classifications
Risk Rating Receivables from Banks and Brokerage Houses
Credit Quality Recelvables from Cantral Recelvables with
Grade Fitch Governments or Central Receivables with Remaining Remaining Maturities Corporate
Barks Maturities Less Than 3 Months More Than 3 Months Receivables
AAA
1 £ %0 %20 %20 %20
AA-
At
2 A %20 %20 %50 %50
A-
BEB+
3 BBR %50 %20 %50 %100
BBB-
BB+
4 BB %10G %50 %100 %100
BR-
B+
5 3 %100 %50 %100 %150
B~
CCC
cc
] c %150 %150 %150 %150

D
- — —— — —— — _____ ______________________________________________________________ — |

Prior Period
b 1]
Risk Classifications
Risk Rating Recelvables from Banks and Brokerage Houses
Credit Quaiity Recelvables from Central Recelvables with
Crade Fitch Govemments or Cenitraf Receivables with Remaining Remaining Maturities Corporate
Banks Maturities Less Than 3 Months More Than 3 Months Receivables
AAA
1 & %0 %20 %20 %20
AA-
A+
2 A %20 %20 %50 %50
A-
BB+
3 B2B %50 %20 %50 %100
BBR-
BB+
4 BB %100 %50 %100 %100
BB-
B+
5 B %100 %50 %100 %150
8-
CCC
cc
& p %150 %150 %150 %150
D
Exposures by risk weights
Current Period
Equity
Risk Weight %0 %10 %20 %35 %50 %75 %100 %150 %200 %250 %1250 Deduction
Exposures before . _ . .
CreditRisk Migation 34.149.665 3.447.421 2479.456 51.137.641 88.700.410 205.854 216.619 783.125
Expasures after 43.116,345 - 4.006.058 4916423 9.815.018 40.115.076 71.200.716 204.646 - 216619 - 783.125

Credit Risk Mtigation




DENIZBANK ANONIM SIRKETI Convenisnce Translation of

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Consolidated Financlal Report
AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2017 Originally Issued in Turkish,
(Currency: Thousands of TL - Turkish Lira) See Note 3.l.c
Prior Period
Equity
Risk Welght %0 %10 %20 %35 %50 %75 %100 %150 %200 %250 %1250 Deduction
Exposures = before g jaq 368 L. 1,870.339 ~ 18.517.089 41.035.264 75.067.892 287.17% -~ 184,415 -~ B79.554

CreditRisk Mtigation
Exposures after 17.241861  — 1.870.330 5341774 28577.710 33.874.791 53.873.168 284.184 - 154415 ~  B79.554
CreditRiskMugation "~~~ T T v o T o Tt

Credit Risk Mtigation
Information by major sectors and type of counterparties

Impaired Loans,; are the loans either overdue for more than 90 days or loans regarded as impaired due fo their
creditworthiness. For such loans, “specific provisions” are allocated as per the Provisioning Regulation,

Past Due Loans; are the loans those are overdue up to 80 days but not impaired. For such loans, "general
provisions” are allocated as per the Provisioning Regulation.

Current Period: 31 December 2017

Loans
Important Sectors/Counterparties impaired Past Due  Value Adjustments(*)  Provisions{**}
Agricultural 225.754 771.314 14.314 150.663
Farming and Cattle 217.958 770.123 14.285 147.822
Forestry 454 98 2 427
Fishing 7.342 1.083 17 2414
Manufacturing 416.964 167.318 28.288 279.707
Mining 54.689 32.326 424 34.336
Production 280.046 120.427 27.648 211.461
Electric, Gas, Water §2.229 14.565 215 33.810
Construction 285.778 238.013 4.493 185.285
Services 1.472.510 1.786.881 334.212 1.087.060
Wholesale and Retail Trade 905.4189 486.790 7.131 707.687
Hoted and Restaurant Services 154.223 503.807 204.590 53.238
Transportation & telecommunication 272195 729.418 121.802 208.712
Financial institution 20.562 5.178 54 13.668
Reatl estate and leiting services 11.044 12.123 190 8.769
Self-employement services -- - - -
Education services 20.898 21.836 253 18.398
Health and social services 88.171 17.729 182 76.588
Other 1.623.608 2.506.963 66.274 1.425.808
Total 4.024.614 5.470.489 447.581 3.128.523

{(*) Representing the general and free provision of past due loans.
(**} Representing specific provision amounts,

Prior Period: 31 December 2016

Loans
Important Sectors/Counterparties Impalred Past Due  Value Adjustments(*)  Provisions (**)
Agricultural 200.083 602.684 11.585 137.753
Farming and Cattle 187.139 601.564 11,542 135.004
Forestry 527 144 3 460
Fishing 2427 976 40 2.289
Manufacturing 357.990 310.924 23.774 215.052
Mining 39.933 24.608 511 27.911
Production 235.915 243.258 22,572 166.601
Electric, Gas, Water 82.142 43.018 691 20.540
Construction 232.278 144,616 2.654 156.120
Services 1.157.129 1.291.457 167.663 787.920
Wholesale and Retail Trade 748.500 474,126 12.261 495,120
Hotel and Restaurant Services 41.453 230.435 117.210 16.764
Transportation and telecommunication 216.466 543.229 36.928 154.069
Financial institution 28.667 6.687 104 17.282
Real estate and letting services 9.604 7.776 135 6.209
Self-employement services - - -- -
Education services 21.522 2461 48 16.673
Hesglih and social services 20.917 26.743 977 81.803
QOther 1.704.149 2.389.469 141.880 1.351.110

Total 3.651.639 4.738.150 347.556 2.647.955
. _._______________________________________________________________________— |

{*) Representing the generai and free provision of past due loans.
(**) Representing specific provision amounts.
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Movements in valuation adjustments and provisions

Opening  Charge fort he Releases for Other
Current Period: 31 December 2017 Balance period provisions _ Adjusiments(*} Ending Balance
Specific Provisions 2.647.955 1.449.404 (273.546) (695.290) 3.128.523
General Provisions 1.269.354 171.411 — - 1.440.765

{*) It includes sales made from non-performing loans and exchange differences amount of TL 1,032,

Opening  Charge fort he Releases for Other
Prior Period: 31 December 2016 Balance period provisions  Adjustments(*) Ending Balance
Specific Provisions 2.278.183 1,241,892 (269.966) {602.154) 2.647.955
General Provisions 975.339 284.015 - - 1.269.354

(") It includes sales made from non-performing loans and exchange differences amount of TL 2.383.

Risk involved in counter-cyclical capital buffer calculations:
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Private sector credit  Risk weighted equivalent trading

Country of ultimate risk exposure in banking book book Total
Turkey 92.031.191 27.881 92.059.072
Malta 2.815.516 - 2.815.516
Germany 2.152.017 149 2.152,166
Netherlands 1.629.446 - 1.629.446
Other 5.653.288 -- 5.653.288

o
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Private sector credit  Risk weighted equivalent trading

Country of ultimate risk exposure in banking book book Total
Turkey 86.029.159 25.542 86.054.701
Malta 1.452.193 - 1.452.193
Germany 1.177.841 -- 1.177.841
Netherlands 1.169.288 - 1.169.288
Other 3.895.763 - 3.895.763

Distribution of credit risk according to the operational segments

Commercial Consumer
Current Period: 31 December 2017 Loans (*) Loans Credit Cards Other Total
Standard Loans 82.743.479 15.051.910 5.830.718 65.824 103.691.931
Closely Menitored Loans 8.502.419 1.347.718 391.233 - 10.241.370
Non-performing Loans 2.851.434 735,175 438.005 - 4.024.614
Specific Provisions(-) 1.989.404 701.408 437.713 - 3.128.523
Total 92.107.928 16.433.397 6.222.243 65.824 114.829.392

{*) Infermations on the table include receivables of Deniz Leasing and Deniz Factoring.
**y Commercial loans include commercial, corporate and SME loans.

—

Commercial Consumer
Prior Period: 31 December 2016 Loans (*) Loans Credit Cards Other Total
Standard Loans 70.296.983 12.204.822 4.801.357 26.643 87.328.805
Closely Monitored Loans 5.213.186 1.190.519 285.322 - 6.689.027
Non-performing Loans 2.331.997 848.256 471.386 - 3.651.639
Specific Provisions(-) 1.600.858 654.233 392.864 - 2.647.855
Total 76.241.308 13.589.364 5.165.201 26.643 85.022.516

(* Informations an the table include receivables of Deniz Leasing and Deniz Factoling.
(™) Commercial loans include commercial, corporate and SME loans.

The loans of DFS Group amounting to TL 69.261.243 (31 December 2016: TL 60.734.592) are collateralized
by cash, mortgage, cheques and notes obtained from customers.
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Explanations related to the consolidated foreign exchange rate risk

Foreigh exchange rate risk the Group is exposed to, related impact estimations, and the limits set by the Board
of Directors of the Parent Bank for positions which are monitored daily

Foreign currency exchange rate risk can be taken by DFS Group within defined pesition and value at risk limits.
Measurable and manageable risks are taken within legal limits.

Foreign exchange rate risk is monitored along with potential evaluation differences in foreign currency
transactions in accordance with "Regulation on Bank's Internal Systems and Internal Capital Adequacy
Assessment Process”. Value at Risk approach is used to measure the exchange rate risk for trading positions
and calculations are made on a daily basis.

Based on general economic environment and market conditions the Parent Bank’s Board of Directors reviews
the risk limits and makes changes where necessary.

The magnitude of hedging foreign currency debf instruments and net foreign currency investments by using
derivatives

In accordance with TAS 38, DFS Group applies net investment hedge accounting to avoid foreign currency
exchange rate risk arising from retranslation of its foreign investments in its consolidated financial staternents.

Informations relating to investment hedge to avoid foreign currency exchange rate risk arising from
refranslation of its foreign investments are explained in Note Vlll-a of Section Four.

Foreign currency risk management strategy

Foreign exchange risk can be taken by DFS Group within defined position and value at risk limits. Measurable
and manageable risks are taken within legal limits.

The Parent Bank’s spot foreign exchange bid rates as of the balance sheet date and for each of the five days
prior to that date

US Dollar purchase rate as at the balance sheet date TL 3,7719
Euro purchase rate as at the balance sheet date TL 4,5155

Date US Dollar Euro

25 December 2017 3,8087 45205

26 December 2017 3,8029 4.5116

27 December 2017 3,8197 4,5385

28 December 2017 3,8104 45478

29 December 2017 37719 4,5155

The basic arithmetical average of the Parent Bank's foreign exchange bid rate for the last thirty days prior to
the balance sheet date

The arithmetical average US Dollar and Euro purchase rates for December 2017 are TL 3,8417 and TL 4,546,
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f. Information on currency risk

Current Period EUR usD Other FC ® Total
Assetls
Cash and Balances with the Central Bank of the Republic of
Turkey 2,512.307 8.169.286 3.220.382 13.801.975
Due from Banks and Other Financial Institutions 8.408.798 1.120.448 219.246 9.838.492
Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (" 154.793 47.729 1 202.523
Interbank Money Market Placements - - - -
Investment Securities Available-for-Sale 272.128 854.144 159.134 1.285.406
Loans 28.747.962  23.881.318 1.077.800 53.707.180
Investments in Subsidiaries and Associates 158 - -- 158
Investment Securities Held-to-Maturity 123.003 1.656.779 - 1.779.782
Hedging Purpose Financial Derivatives - - - -
Tangible Assets 145.409 89 8G0 146.298
intangible Assets ) - - - -
Other Assets 2.107.584 1.045.210 $7.331 3.250.125
Total Assels 42.562.142 36.775.003 4.774.794 84.111.939
Liabilities
Bank Deposits 1.518.105 1.303.370 931.737 A.751.212
Foreign Currency Deposits 42.134.819 22.356.602 1.230.872 65.722.293
Interbank Money Markets - 391.047 - 391.047
Funds Borrowed from Other Financial Institutions 3.448.828 13.400.749 983.991 17.833.568
Marketable Securities Issued 1.037.205 62.865 - 1.100.070
Miscellaneous Payables 121.227 88.244 23.184 232.655
Hedging Purpose Financial Derivatives - - - -
Other Liabilities © 548.599 1.379.718 8.053 1.936.770
Total Liabilities 48.807.183 38.982.595 3.177.837 90.957.615
Net “On Balance Sheet Position™ {6.245.041) {2.207.592) 1.596.957 (6.855.676)
Net “Off-Balance Sheet Position” 7! 5.715.095 3.306.105  (1.272.938) 7.748.262
Financial Derivatives {Assets) 16.825.304 22.833.827 1.008.750 40.665.981
Financial Derivatives (Liabilities) {11.110.209) (19.527.822) {2.273.688) (32.917.719)
Net Position : {529.945) 1.098.513 324.019 892.586
Non-Cash Loans 7.838.497 8.900.181 477,349 17.216.027
(6.245.041) (2.207.592) 1.596.957 (6.855.676)
Prior Period
Total Assets 32.181.703 35.331.989 3.317.138 70.830.830
Total Liabilities 43,329,377 29.648.915 1.657.128 74.635.420
Net “On Balance Sheet Position” (11.147.674) 5.683.074 1.660.010 (3.804.590)
Net “Off-Balance Sheet Position™ 11.032.843 (5.646.113) (1.418.136) 3.568.594
Financial Derivatives (Assets) 19.896.141 16.210.215 886.959 36.993.315
Financial Derivatives (Liabilities) (8.863.298) {21.856.328) {2.305.095) (33.024.721)
Net Position (114.831) 36.961 241.874 164.004
Non-Cash Loans 7.005.000 11,257.796 477.555 18.740.351

(1) : Foreign currency differences of derivative assets amounting to TL 295.190 are excluded.

(2} : Foreign currency indexed loans amounting to TL 3.554.147 are included.

(3) : Intangible assets amounting to TL 15.184 are excluded.

(4} : Factoring receivables indexed to forelgn currency, amounting to TL 151.210 are included. Prepaid expenses at the amount of TL
34.548 are not included.

(5) : There are gold amounis in total assets amounting to TL 3.951.408 and in total liabilities amounting to TL 2.510.161.

(6) : Notincluding the exchange rate difference of TL. 425.954 pertaining to derivative financial loans and the FX equity of TL 4.581.385
and the free reserve of TL 11.797.

(7} : Net amount of receivables and liabilities from financial derivatives is shown on the table. FX swap transactions that are reported
under the “Financial Assets Purchase Pledges” is included in “Net Off-Balance Sheet Position”,
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Informations on currency risk exposure

The table below demonstrates prospective increase and decrease in equities and the staternent of income as
of 31 December 2017 and 2016 (excluding tax effect) on condition that 10 percent devaluation of TL against
the currencies below. This analysis has been prepared under the assumption that all other variables, especially
interest rates, to be constant.

Current Period Prior Period
Period Profit Loss Equity Period Profit Loss Equity
SO Dollar 34.873 30.029 (3.718) (14.628)
Euro (65.273) (64.484) (19.276) {19.504)
Total (Net 30.400 34.455 22.992 34.132

Explanations related to the consolidated interest rate risk

Interest rate sensitivity of the assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items

Sensivitity calculations based on standard shock method and value at risk method is used in measuring the
interest rate risk of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items.

The expected effects of the fluctuations of market interest rates on the Group’s financial position and cash
flows, the expectations for interest income, and the limits the board of directors has estahiished on daily interest
rates

The Parent Bank relies on sensitivity in determining limits against negative market conditions and monitors the
risk within this context. Sensitivity calculations are made and limits are monitored on a weekly basis.

Market interest rates are monitored daily and interest rates are revised where necessary.

The precautions taken for the interest rate risk the Group was exposed to during the current year and their
expected effects on net income and capital in the future periods

The Group uses sensitivity analysis, historical stress-testing and value at risk methods to analyze and take
precautions against interest rate risk faced during current period. Interest sensitivity limits bave been defined
and limits are being monitored on a weekly basis.

“Interest rate sensitivity of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items {Based on repricing dates)”:

Upto 5Yearsand Non-Interest

Current Pericd 1 Month 1-3 Months _ 3-12 Months 1-5 Years Qver Bearing Total

Assets
Cash and Balances with the Central Bank

of the Republic of Turkey 4.572.371 - - - - 12,396,441  16.968.812
Due from Banks and Other Fin, Inst. 1.887.910 484,599 199.314 - - 8.085.805  10,657.628
Financial Assets at Fair Value Through

Profit or Loss 167.337 118.981 383.807 209,660 176.733 1.245 1.057.763
Interbank Money Market Placements 785.672 - -- - - - 785.672
Investment Securities Av.-for-Sale 289,270 §82.903 2.004.235 2.421,950 1.567.537 63.138 7.046.033
Loans 18.421.600 10.988.005 19.665.866 42,427,944  17.980.710 296.081 110.381.306
Investment Securities Held-to-Mat. 1.855.077 455,846 638.259 810.721 1.475.698 - 5.335.639
Other Assets (%) 774.512 367.881 475.626 1.642.184 1.187.985  3.742.089 8.180.277

Total Assels 28.763.749 13.106.3056  23.367.147 47.612459 22.388.661 25.184.809 160.423.130

Liabilities
Bank Deposits 2.608.919 48.222 917.119 322.762 - 184.537 3.981.559
Other Deposits 45.74(.406 12,807,163 13.344.675 11.880.997 765,612  22.890.052 107.428.905
Interbank Money Market Placements 4,007,166 - - - - - 4.007.166
Miscellaneous Payables - - 1.231 - - 1.948.176 1.948.407
Marketable Securities Issued 529.353 2.097.591 1.045.814 - - - 3.672.758
Funds Borrowed from Other Fin. Inst. 4,227.682 5.394.969 5.237.482 518.292 4,563,340 - 19.941.765
QOther Liabilities {**) 338.733 101.451 166.547 487.786 187.721  18.149.332  19.441.570

Total Liabilities 57.352.259  20.445.396  20.712.868 13.219.837 5.516.673  43.172.097 160.423.130
On Balance Sheet Long Position - - 2.654.279 34.392.622 16.871.988 -~ 53.918.889
On Balance Sheet Short Position {28.588.510) (7.343.091) - - - (17.987.288) (53.918.889)
Off-Balance Sheet Long Position 4.873.004 2.678.134 6.258,237 3.176.076 3.664.803 - 20.650.254
Off-Balance Sheet Short Position (2.904.585) (5.622.927)  {3.350.892) (4.217.443)  {4.649.295) - (20.745.142)

Total Interest Sensitivity Ga .620. .287. 5.561.624  33.351.255 15.887.496

{*) Other assetsinan-interest bearings include; Tangible Assets, Intangible Assets, Investmant Properties, Investments in Assaciates and Jaint Ventures, Tax
Assets, Investmeants in Subsidiaries, Assets to be sold and other assets with balances of TL 749.514, TL 188.751, TL 171.467, TL 13.633, TL 223,175, T,
41,701, TL. 132,302 and Tl 2.221.546 respectively.

{**) Cther liabifities/non-interest hearings inciude; Shareholders’ Equity, Tax Liabilities, Provisions, and Other Liabilities with batances of TL ; 12.853.407, TL
347.734, TL 2.227.812 and TL 2.720.37% respectively. 40
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Upto 5Yearsand Non-interest
Prior Period 1 Month 1-3 Months _ 3-12 Months 1-5 Years Over Bearing Total
Assets
Cash and Balances with the Central Bank
of the Republic of Turkey 3.690.409 - - - - 11.448.952 14.839.361
Due from Banks and Other Fin. Inst. 855.829 260.105 169.288 - -~ 4.287.521 5.572.743
Financial Assets at Fair Valug Through
Profit or Loss 415.670 188.658 267.341 365.926 169.717 9.947 1.447.859
Interbank Money Market Placements 3.001.571 - - - - - 3.001.571
Investment Securities Av.-for-Sale 305.338 549.893 1.320.671 2.509.948 2.769.411 41.72% 7.596.990
Loans 14.507.220 8.979.1G61 17.911.370 30.957.978  17.781.075 1.003.684 91.150.488
Investment Securities Held-10-Mat. 1.654.843 365.704 329.400 480.903 2.225.182 - 5.056.032
Other Assets (*} 573.602 187.879 527.646 1.540.244 1.042.657  3.016.926 5.888.954
Total Assets 25.004.482  10.631.400  20.526,316  35.854.950 24.028.042 19.508.759 135.553.598
Liabiliies
Bank Deposits 331.633 795.851 105.887 265,368 - 76.053 1.574.793
Other Deposits 36.855.198 10,782,700 14.062.585 9.506.576 526.631 18.887.471  90.621.158
Interbank Money Market Placements 5.397.576 - -- - - - 5.,397.576
Miscellaneous Payables - - - - - 1.962.214 1.962.214
Marketable Securities Issued 68B.505 1.894.739 456.230 266.086 185.495 - 3.491.055
Funds Borrowed from Other Fin. Inst. 3.821.181 3.889.867 3.131.408 1.742.145 4.157.611 - 16.742.192
Qther Liabilities (**} 280.887 228.536 91.714 460.544 186.7056  14.516.624  15.765.010
Total Liabiliies 47.374.957  17.591.693  17.847.824  12.240.720 5.056.442 35.442.362 135.553.993
On Balance Sheet Long Position - - 2.678.492 23.614.279  18.971.600 - 45.264.371
On Balance Sheet Short Position (22.370.475)  (6.9560.293) - - - (15.833.603) (45.264.371)
Off-Balance Sheet Long Position 3.281.977 3.160.110 2.450.357 4.068.624 4.273.732 - 17.234.300
Of-Balance Sheet Shert Position {2.501.356)  (5.676.746)  (3.307.900)  (2.165.234)  {2.910.824) ~ _(16.742.060)

Tota! Interest Sensitivity Ga) .679. .476. 1.730.848  25.517.669  20.334.508 (15.933.603 452,740

{*) Gther assets/non-interest bearings include; Tangible Assets, Intangible Assets, Investment Properties, [nvestments in Associates and Joint Ventures, Tax
Assets, Investments in Subsidiaries, Assels to be sold and other assels with balances of 664.579, TL 204.819, TL 164.527, TL 12,847, TL 254.864, TL 12,233,
TL 123.311 and TL 1.579.646 respectively.

(**) Otherliabilities -interestfree - include equities amourt of TL 10,590,098, tax debtamounting to TL 208.165, provision balances amounting to TL 1.748.151
and other foreign resources amount of TL 1.973.210.

Average interest rates applied to monetary financial instruments

Current Period: 31 December 2017 EUR % UsD % JPY % TL %

Assets
Cash and Balances with the Central Bank of the Republic of

Turkey - 1,29 - 4,00
Due from Banks and Other Financial Institutions 0,28 177 n 12,77
Financial Assels at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss 217 4,85 - 14,50
Interbank Money Market Placements - - - 12,75
Investment Securities Available-for-Sale 0,80 4,63 n 9,35
Loans 4,48 5,97 5,52 17,26
Investment Securities Held-to-Maturity 1,33 5,05 - 12,52

Liabilities
Bank Deposits 0,30 1,62 -- 14,09
Other Deposits 1,42 3,55 0,85 13,85
Interbank Money Market Placements -- 3,14 -- 10,76
Miscellaneous Payables - - - -
Marketable Securities Issued 2,29 3,00 - 13,10
Funds Borrowed from Other Financial Institutions 2,47 4,57 - 13,26

Prior Pericd: 31 December 2016 EUR % UsD % JPY % TL %

Assets
Cash and Balances with the Central Bank of the Republic of

Turkey - 0,45 - 5,00
Due from Banks and Other Financial Institutions 0,88 1,54 - 9,38
Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss 1,33 4,85 - 11,22
fnterbank Money Market Placements - -- - 3,49
Investment Securities Available-for-Sale 142 4,44 - 9,05
Loans 4,60 5,68 5,39 16,38
Investment Securities Held-to-Maturity 1,76 4,68 - 9,52

Liabilities
Bank Deposits 0,15 1,54 - 4,34
Other Deposits 1,64 3,10 0,30 10,74
Interbank Money Market Placements - = - 8,47
Miscellaneous Payables - - - -
Marketable Securities issued 2,75 3,75 -- 10,37
Funds Borrowed from Other Financial Institutions 2,74 3,74 - 12,56
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Interest rate risk on banking book

Nature of interest rate risk resulted from banking book, major assumptions including also early repayment of
loans and movements n deposits other than term deposits and frequency of measuring interest rate risk

Interest rate risk resulting from banking book is due to repricing maturity differences of assets and liabilities.
Considering repricing maturities, average maturity of asset items is higher than the average maturity of liability
items.

Interest rate risk resulting from banking book is evaluated weekly considering size, developments at maturity
structure and Interest movements relating to asset and liability items.Interest rate sensitivity analyses based
on maturity breakdown of assets and liabilities are performed for monitoring interest rate risk.

Limits are set by the Board of Directors within the “Risk Appetite Statement” based on the impact of interest
rate risk resulting from banking bock on economic value, interest income and capital. Interest rate risk exposed
by the bank is managed centrally by the Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO) in accordance with the risk
appetite set by the Board of Directors. Decisions and actions on the management of interest rate risk are taken
in weekly ALCO meetings and risk mitigation is carried out using interest rate derivatives when necessary.

Economic value differences resulting from interest rate movements and prepared based on the Parent Bank's
non-consolidated financial statements according to Regulation on Measurement and Evaluation of Interest
Rate Risk Resulting from Banking Book as per Standard Shock Method

In addition to internal approaches, the impact of potential interest rate changes on net present value is
calculated in accordance with the Regulation on the Measurement and Assessment of Interest Rate Risk
Resulting from Banking Book as per Standard Shock Method and reported monthly.

Calculations using the Standard Shock Method are performed for on and off balance assets and liabilities
based on the "Banking Book” scope defined in regulations.

The maturity assumption regarding non-maturity deposits are reviewed annually based on a historical data of
minimum 5 years. The stable part of non-maturity deposits that are insensitive to interest rate changes and
external factors, and the maturity breakdown of potential cash outflows are determined with the analysis.

The Group’s economic value differences arising from the interest rate fluctuations pursuant to the "Regulation
on the Measurement and Assessment of Interest Rate Risk Arising from Banking Accounts According to the
Standard Shock Method” in a manner separated by different currencies are demonstrated in the following table
as of 31 December 2017.

Current Period: 31 December 2017 Shocks Applied Gains/Equity
Type of Currency {+/- x basis points) Gains/Losses -Losses/Equity
1 TL {+) 500 bps {2.0858.734) {%11,36)
2 TL (-) 400 bps 1.820.936 %10,44
3 Euro (+) 200 bps (324.235) (%1,76)
4 Euro (-) 200 bps 802,248 %4,36
5 US Dollar (+) 200 bps (38.422) (%0,21)
6 US Dollar {(-) 200 bps 65.988 %0,36
Total (of positive shocks) (2.452.391) (%13,33)
Total (of negative shocks) 2.789.172 %15,16
Prior Period: 31 December 2016 Shocks Applied Gains/Equity
Type of Currency {+/- X basis points) Galns/Losses -Losses/Equity
1 TL (+) 500 bps (2.141.923) (%:13,55)
2 TL {-) 400 bps 2.099.329 %13,28
3 Euro (+) 200 bps {243.636) (%1,54)
4 Euro (-) 200 bps 504.133 %3,19
5 US Dollar (+) 260 bps {131.925) (%0,83)
6 US Dollar (=) 200 bps 159.674 %1,01
Total {of positive shocks) (2.517.484) {%15,92)
Total {of negative shocks 2.763.036 %17,48
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Position risk of equity shares on banking book

Comparison of carrying, fair and market values of equity shares

DFS Group does not have unconsolidated associates and subsidiaries traded at BIST markets as of 31
December 2017 (31 December 2016: None).

Realized gains/losses, revaluation surpluses and unrealized gains/losses on equity securities and results
included in core and supplementary capital

None (31 December 2016: None).

Explanations related to the consolidated liquidity risk

Liquidity risk can form as a result of significant changes which can happen in market liquidity or a general
funding risk. Funding risk states the risk of not meeting cash ouiflows completely because of maturity mismatch
between assets and liabilities while market liquidity risk states the risk of not liquidating assets because of a
collision in market conditions or insufficient market depth.

Within the Parent Bank, the procedures and principles regarding liquidity risk management are determined by
the “Liquidity Risk Management Policy ” approved by the Board of Directors. This policy includes the basic
duties and principles of liquidity risk management within the Parent Bank including the related methods,
procedures, controls, and reporting framework. The “Liquidity Emergency Action Plan” was established within
the Ligquidity Risk Management Policy , enclosing possible precautions which can be taken against unexpected
liquidity squeezes.

The securities portfolio of the Parent Bank carried in order to liquidity risk management is structured in a way
to consist of sovereign securities issued by Treasury of Turkey in order to reduce liquidity risk sourcing from
market to minimum level. Criteria and principles related to security investments which shall be received to this
portfolio are committed on paper and approved by the related committee.

Management of risk sourcing from funding presents the fundamental of liquidity management activities of the
Parent Bank. Main funding source of the Parent Bank is deposits since it is a more stable funding source
compared to other sources and it provides a diversified source of funding.. Additionally, security issuance and
borrowing activities are performed in order to extend the maturity of funding.

A large majority of Parent Bank's liabilities consist of TL, US Dollar, Euro and gold. The main foreign currency
funding source of the Parent Bank is deposit and borrowings provided from credit agencies. Foreign currency
liquidity risk is at a low level since the foreign currency sources of the Parent Bank are at a higher level and
have longer maturity than assets.

“Risk Appetite Statement” is reviewed annually in order {o manage risks in accordance with the Bank's strategy
and its financial power. Risk Appetite Statement includes limits towards liquidity risks besides other risk limits.
Risk appetite limits are reported to senior management monthly in scope of risk management activities.

Short-term liquidity management of the Parent Bank is under the responsibility of Treasury Group. Treasury
Group weekly reports to Assets and Liabilities Committee (ALCO) related to liquidity structure. ALCO has an
active role in establishing related systems and monitoring and decision making processes regarding liquidity
risk management. ALCO is also responsible and authorized for monitoring current liquidity position and legal
and internal liquidity indicators and taking decisions related o liquidity management taking risk appetite
framework info consideration.

Liquidity risk management is performed as par consolidated and non-consolidated. In this context, liquidity
monitoring and management in subsidiaries are performed by the related subsidiary and monitored closely by
the Parent Bank.

Scenario analyses, including specific conditions having significance with respect to liquidity which have been
experienced or which shall passibly be experienced, are performed in order to measure liguidity level under
stress conditions. A liquidity level at a sufficient amount to meet all liabilities even under stress conditions is
aimed in scope of this scenario analyses through evaluating measures which can be taken. Assumptions
related to liquidity stress tests are reviewed annually at minimum. Periodical stress tests are performed within
the determined scenatios and liquidity situation is monitored.
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Liguidity coverage rates calculated in accordance with the Regulation on Calculation of Parent Bank’s Liquidity
Coverage rate published in Official Gazette dated 21 March 2014 and numbered 28948 are as follows.
Consolidated foreign currency rate calculated for the last three months is at the lowest level in 205,88 in
November and at the highest level in December 247,66 while the liquidity coverage rate is at the lowest level
in November 114,47 and at the highest level in October 120,54.

Liquidity coverage ratio

Current Period Total unweighted value (*) Total weighted value(*)
TL+FC FC TL+FC FC
HIGH QUALITY LIQUID ASSETS (HQLA)
! Total High Quality Liquid Assets 29.588.220 21.836.573
CASH QUTFLOWS
2 Retall deposits and deposits from small
business customers, of which 79.681.377 47.869.830 7.382.518 4.786.983
3 Stable deposils 11.712.387 - 585.619 -
4 l.ess stable deposils 67.968.950 47.869.830 6.796.899 4.786.983
5 Unsecured wholesale funding, of which 26.919.148 15.164.032 14.948.253 7.893.744
3] Qperational deposits 4.930.096 2.626.273 1.232.524 656.568
7 Non-operational deposits 16.508.526 10.800.179 8.237.71 5.500.982
8 Unsecured debt 5.480.526 1.737.580 5.478.028 1.736.194
9 Secured wholesale funding 179.507 120.800
10 Additional requirements of which 5.751.147 9.046.967 2.642.176 6.184.247
1 Cutflows related 1o derivative
exposures and other collateral
reguirements 1.128.438 4.792.936 1.128.438 4.792.936
12 Qutflows refated to loss of funding
on debt products - - - -
13 Credit and liquidty facilities 4.622.709 4,254.031 1.513.738 1.391.311
14 Other contractual funding obligations 1.233.639 965.277 1.233.107 965.277
15 Other contingent funding obligations 57.406.703 14.970.641 4.285.681 1.443.235
16 TOTAL CASH OUTFLOWS 30.671.242 21.394.286
CASH INFLOWS
17 Secured lending i 250.297 -- - --
18 Inflows from fully performing exposures 7.988.540 3.209.828 5.419.228 2.283.171
19 Other cash inflows 260.185 9.420.758 260.185 8.420.758
20 TOTAL CASH INFLOWS 8.499.022 12.830.5868 5.675.413 11.703.929
Total adjusted value
21 TOTAL HQLA 29.588.220 21.836.573
22 TOTAL NET CASH OUTFLOWS 24,991.829 9.690.357
23 LIQUIDITY COVERAGE RATIO {% 118,4 226,6

L
(") Simple arithmetic average of [ast three months' month-end values for the last three months
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Prior Period Total unweighted value (*) Tota! weighted value(*)
TL+FC FC TL+FC FC
HIGH QUALITY LIQUID ASSETS (HQLA)
1 Total High Quality Liguid Assets 20.033.226  12.857.037
CASH OUTFLOWS
2 Retail deposits and deposits from small business customers, of
which 57.675.367 35.614.053 5.507.091 3.561.405
3 Stable deposits 5.208.907 - 260.445 -
4 Less stable deposits 52.466.460 35.614.053 5.246.648 3.561.405
5 Unsecured wholesale funding, of which 26.356.827 11.970.447 15.025.492 6.919.243
8 Operational deposits 5.601.040 2.437.107 1.400.260 608.277
7 Non-operational deposits 16.518.103 8.782.761 5.387.548 5.559.387
8 Unsecured debt 4.237.684 750.579 4.237.684 750.579
g Secured wholesale funding 173.464 173.464
10 Additional requirements of which 5.246.846 8.068.269 2.475.074 5.575.897
11 Qutflows refated to derivative exposures and other collateral
requirements 1.151.728 4.398.147 1.151.728 4.398.147
12 Outflows related to loss of funding on debt products - - - -
13 Credit and liquidty facilities 4.095.118 3.670.122 1.323.346 1.177.750
14 Other contractual funding obtigations 2.369.250 933.190 1.399.629 933.190
15 Other contingent funding obligations 51.564.631 15.057.850 4.221.827 1.505.275
16 TOTAL CASH OUTFLOWS 28.802.377 18.668.474
CASH INFLOWS
17 Secured lending 2.607.807 - - -
18 Infiows from fully performing exposures 10.988.785 6.898.849 8.708.864 6.387.496
19 Other cash inflows 445.904 5.652.432 445.904 5.652.432
20 TOTAL CASH INFLOWS 14.052.508 12.551.281 9.154.768  12.039.928
Total adjusted value
21 TOTALHQLA 20.033.226  12.857.037
22 TOTAL NET CASH OUTFLOWS 19.647.609 6.628.546
23 LIQUIDITY COVERAGE RATIO (% 101,9 187,1

(*} Simple arithmetic average of last three months’ month-end values for the [ast three months

Calculation table of liquidity coverage rate is reported to BRSA monthly and monitored daily in the Parent Bank.

High gquality liquid assets consist of cash assets, reserves kept in Central Bank of Republic of Turkey and
unrestricted marketable securities. Cash outflows consist of deposits, bank borrowings, non-cash loans,
derivatives and other liabilities without a certain maturity. Additionally, several bank borrowings are shown as
cash outflow regardless of their maturity since they include contingent early payment condition. Cash inflows
consist of credits having maturity less than 30 days and a cerlain payment due date and receivables from
banks and derivative products.
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Presentation of assets and liabilities according to their residual maturities

Upto1 312 5Years Non-Interest

Current Period Demand Month  1-3 Months Months  1-5Years _and Over _ Bearing (*) Total

Assets
Cash and Balances with the Central

Bank of the Republic of Turkey 5537.211  11.431.601 - - - - - 16.968.812
Due from Banks and Other Fin.Inst. 8.085.805 1.541.247 558.915 350.14% 120.512 - - 10.657.628
Financial Assets at Fair Value

Through Profit or Loss 1.245 153.625 51.558 367.117 267.485 176.733 - 1.057.763
Interbank Money Market Placements - 785.672 - - - - - 785,672
Investment Securities Av.-for-Sale £3.138 9.626 17.149 394.278 4431910 2.120.932 - 7.046.033
Loans - 10.487.632 5.227.765 17.070.100 46.238.371 30.460.347 896.091 110.381.306
Investment  Securities  Held-to-

Maturity - - 117.539 270,566  3.471.838 1.475.686 - 5,335,639
Other Assels 2.105.858 775.718 342.274 465.054  1.671.626  1.185.515 1.636.231 8.190.277

Total Assels 15.793.257  25.183.122 6.356.200 18.917.264 56.202.742 35438.223  2.532.322 160.423.130

Liabilities
Bank Deposits 184.537 2.508.687 48,222 917,119 322.994 -- - 3.981.559
Other Deposits 22.890.052  45.665.013  12.800.646 13.400.388 11.906.836 765.920 - 107.428.905
Funds Borrowed from Other Fin.Inst.

and Subordinated Loans - 2.911.079 4.241.443  7.317.733 908,198 4.563.312 -~ 19.941.765
Interbank Money Market Placements - 4.007.166 - - - - - 4.007.166
Marketable Securities Issued - 529.354 970.063  1.083.089 708.171 382.081 - 3.672.758
Miscellaneous Payables 1.948.176 - - 1.231 - -- - 1.948.407
Qther Liabilities 1.220.046 546.822 165.369  1.504.581 497.746 187,722 15.319.284  18.441.570

Total Liabilities 26.242.811  56.168.121 18.225.743 24.224.141 14.343.995 5.899.035 15.319.28B4 160.423.130

Net Liquidity Gap (10.445.554) (30.984.999) (11.869.543) (5.306.877) 41.858.747 29.539.188 (12.786.962) —~

Net “Off-Balance Sheet Position™ - (197.415) (854.628) 931.492  (240.567) - - (361.118)
Financial Derivatives {assets) - 21.015.000 7.846.563 9.836.542 7.215.896 6.470.097 - 52384098
Financial Derivatives (liabilities) - {21.212.415) (8.701.191) (8.805.050) (7.456.483) (6.470.097) - (52.745.216)

Non-Cash Loans - 3.152.762 2.504.401 7.590.951 4.219.580 10.803.572 - 28.371.266

Prior Period
Total Assets 10.401.399  24.219.299 4.511.490 16.990.685 42.006.901 34.756.277 2.667.947 135.553.998
Total Liahilities 22,056.804 45.740.749 15195787 20.372.752 14.141.045 5.593.805 12.452.996 135.553.998

Net Liguidity Gap {11.655.405) (21.521.450) (10.684.267) (3.382.067) 27.865.856 20.162.382 (9.785.049) --

Net “Off-Balance Sheet Position” - 874,059 (769.459) 117624  (174.300) - - 47.424
Financial Derivatives (assets) - 18.331.884 8.603.342 4.365.116 4.293.056 6.222.821 - 41.816.219
Financia! Darivatives {liabilities) —~ (17.457.825) {9.372.801} (4.247.492) (4.467.855) (6.222.821} -~ (41,768.795)

MNon-Cash Loans - 1.775.889 2.5890.671  7.421.050 4.255.244 12.736.12% - 28,782.015

e ___________________________________________________________________________________________________—_—
(*) Certain assets on the balance sheet that are necessary for the banking operations but not convertible into cash in the short run such
as tangihle assets, investments in associates, joint venturas and subsidiaries, stationary supplies, non- performing loans (net) and prepaid
expenses are included in this columin.

Financial liabilities according to contractual maturities

The maturity breakdown of the amounts at maturity for major financial liabilities excluding derivatives are
provided in below table. The interest payments of the liabilities are included in relevant time buckets.

5 Years and
Current Period Up to 1 Month 1-3 Months ~ 3-12 Months 1-5 Years Over Total
Liabilities
Deposits 72.228.707 13.007.275 15.448.784 12.346.795 922245 113.951.806
Funds borrowed 3.441.829 4.871.957 8.365.951 2.420.258 4.841.561 23.941.556
Interbank Money markets 4.008.352 - - - - 4,008.352
Securities issued 531.238 1.117.633 1.389.034 681.720 34.898 3.754.521
Total 80.208.126 18.996.865  25.203.769 15.448.773 5.798.702  145.656.235

5 Years and
Pricr Period Up to 1 Month 1-3 Months  3-12 Months 1-5 Years Over Total
Liabilities
Deposits 56.058.504 11.542.912 14.205.029 10.365.503 641.343 92.813.291
Funds borrowed 2.107.832 2.380.916 5.716.728 4,192.219 4.886.238 19.294.033
Interbank Money markets 5.398.898 - - an -- 5.398.898
Securities issued 551.356 1.020.781 832.168 1.121.541 86.548 3.612.394
Total 64.116.690 14.954.609 20.753.925 15.679.263 5.614.120 121.118.616
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Explanations related to leverage ratio
Information on matters causing difference between leverage ratios of current period and previous period:

Leverage ratio of DFS Group is 5,57% as of 31 December 2017 (31 December 2016: 5,51%). This ratio is over
minimum ratio. Difference between leverage ratios of current and previous period mainly sources from increase
in risk amounts regarding assets on balance sheet.

Comparison table of total assets and total risk amounts in the financial statements prepared in accordance with
TAS:

0000 0o |
Current  Prior Period
Period (**) [}
1 Total assels in the conselidated financial statements prepared in accordance with TAS () 158.181.296 131.643.936
Differences between the total assets in the consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance
2 with TAS and the otal assets in the consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with
Communique on Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements of the Banks (1.494.450) (3.916.000)
Differences between the balances of derivative financial instruments and the credit derivatives in the
3 consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with the Communique on Preparation of
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Banks and their risk exposures 686.824 485.213
Differences between the balances of securities financing transactions in the consolidated financial
4 statements prepared in accordance with the Communique on Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements of the Banks and their risk exposures - e
Differences between off- balance sheet itmes in the consolidated financial statements prepared in
5 accordance with the Communigue on Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements of the Banks
and their risk exposures (503) (503}
Other differences in the consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with the
6 Communique on Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements of the Banks and their risk
exposures 63.673.152 58.563.211
7 Total Risk 222.046.319 186.775.857
P ________________~— — |
(*) The consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with the sixth paragraph of the Article 5 in the Communique on
Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements of the Banks.

(**) Quarterly average amounts,

Leverage ratio common disclosure template:

— _  _ _  _ __ |
Current Prior
Period (*) Pericd (*)

On-balance sheet exposures

1 On-balance sheet items (exclude derivatives and SFTs; inciude collateral} 157.686.846 127.727.936
2 (Assets deducted in determining Basel Il Tier 1 capital) (279.116) {282.798)
3 Total on-balance sheet exposures (excluding derivatives and SFTs) (sum of 1 and 2 lines ) 157.407.730 127.445.138
Derivative exposures
4 Replacement cost 1.130.446 1.226.002
5 Add-on amount 686.824 485.213
8 Tolal derivalive exposures {sum of 4 and 5 lines ) 1.817.270 1.711.215
Securities financing transaction exposures
7 Gross SFT assats {with no recognition of accounting netting) 220.744 204,604
8 Agent transaction exposures
9 Total securities financing transaction exposures (sum of 7 and 8 lines) 220.744 204.604
Other off-balance sheet exposures
10 Off-balance sheet exposures with gross nominal amount 62.601.078 57.415.403
11 Adjustment amount off-balance sheet exposures with credit conversion factor {503} (503)
12 Total off-baiance sheel exposures (sum of 10 and 11 lines) 62.600.575 57.414.900
Capital and total exposures
13 Tier 1 capital 12.367.759 10.274.321
14 Total exposures {sum of 3.6.9 and 12 lines) 222.046.319 186.775.857
Leverage ratio
15 Leverage ratio 557 5,51

(*) Quarterly average amounts.
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Explanations on Risk Management

Notes and explanations in this section have been prepared in accordance with the Communiqué on Disclosures
about Risk Management t¢ be Announced to Public by Banks that have heen published in Official Gazette no.
25511 on 23 October 2015 and became effective as of 31 March 2016. As the Standard Approach is used in
calculating the Parent Bank's capital adequacy , the tables to be prepared under the Internal Rating Based
Approach (IRB} have not been presented yet as of 31 December 2017.

The risk management disclosures were prepared as to comply with the internal control process that is approved
by the Board of Directors.

Risk management and overview of risk weighted assets

Disclosures related to the risk management approach

Risks, exposed as a result of business model of the Bank, are determined on a consolidated basis through risk
identification and materiality assessment of the Bank. Risk mitigation factors and monitoring activities are
established for significant risks which are identified. Limits are identified for risks, considered to be significant,
in Risk Appetite Declaration of the Bank and those limits are approved by the Board of Directors. Developments
with respect to risk limits determined in Risk Appetite Declaration are monitored on a monthly basis and actions
which are pre-determined in risk appetite declaration if those limits are excessed.

Denizbank Risk Management Group Directorate is an internal systems unit responsible for carrying out risk
management activities working subject to Board of Directors. It directly reports to Board of Directors. Risk
Management Group is responsible to carry out processes such as definition and measurement of risks,
establishmeni and application of risk policies and implementation procedures, analysis, monitoring and
reporting of risks in the framework of principles determined by Senior Management of the Bank and Risk
Management Group and approved by Board of Directors.

Delegation levels of groups, formed by client and clients at the Bank, are determined in accordance with risk
categories established based on limit amount and credit grade components within the body of the Bank.

Rating process executed by Credit Analysis department and reviews of Credit Allocation department are
periodically audited by Credit Risk Control in line with determined rules and the related outputs are presented
to the Rating Committee.

Informative contents are presented in order to extend risk culture within the body of the Bank and
questionnaires towards reviewing of risk perception are performed. Risk sensitivity developments of
employees are monitored in line with outputs of aforementioned questionnaires and required actions are taken
through identifying weaker aspects. Training plans are established in this scope and it is aimed to provide
contribution to developments of employees in determined matters.

Main components of risk measurement systems and its scope

Identification of Risks

The Bank, including its subsidiaries, has a comprehensive risk identification process. The process aims to
determine significant risks specific to the Bank based on a broad list including inherent risks of banking and it
is performed on an annual basis. Opinions and reviews of expert individuals within the body of the Bank during
the determination of materiality leve! of risks. Review outputs are used in reports and form a basis to internal
capital adequacy assessment processes of the Bank.

Measurement of Risks

The purpose of the studies made in the scope of measurement of risks includes measuring of financial risks
exposed by the Bank and its subsidiaries in order fo prepare internal and legal reports and form a relation
between carried risks and estimated profitability and evaluation of validity of parameters and assumptions used
in risk measurement.

Controlling, reporting and management of Risks

It determines which type of reports shall be prepared as consolidated and unconsolidated. It ensures to
establish an effective internal audit system which shall prevent to take risk exceeding targeted risk level and
limits determined by regulatory authority. Risk limits, approved by Board of Directors for each type of risk types,
are taken into account while controlling and reperting of risks.
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Disclosures on risk reporting processes provided to Board of Directors and senior management, especially the
scope and main content of the reporting

Risk Management Group performs reporting to Senior Management and Board of Directors through Audit
Committee, ALCO and Rating Committees.

Audit Committee holds quarterly meetings in ordinary situations. Activities performed by the Risk Management
Group and risk indicators are presented to the Committee.

ALCO holds weekly meetings. Risk-limit follow-up and detailed analysis related to indicators such as interest
and liquidity risk, capital adequacy are presented.

Rating Committee: Rating Committee holds meetings on a quarterly basis. It is the Committee to which the
Risk Management presents its evaluation, analysis and findings regarding Internal Rating processes

Model Risk Management and Validation Committee: It is the committee that the Risk model validation results,
prepared within the frame of annual plan, are presented to and approved.

Disclosures on Stress Test

The Bank performs stress test studies evaluating its capital adequacy in scope of ICAAP. The stress tests,
using the scenarios determined by regulatory authority and bank and based on budget plan of the Bank for the
next three years projection, helps to identify additional capital need and buffer.

Risk management, hedging and mitigation strategies of the Bank sourcing from business model and menitoring
process with respect to continuing effectiveness of hedging and mitigating components

Limits, which are defined for risks considered to be significant, are monitored on a monthly basis and actions
included in risk appetite statement are taken, if required.

In addition, emergency plan related to capital adequacy in order to meet its strategic aims considering stress
conditions of the Bank.

Overview of RWA

Minimum capital
Risk Welghted Amount requirement
Current Period Prior Period Current Period
Credit risk (excluding counterparty credit risk) (CCR) 108.600.182 101.521.984 8.688.015
Standardised approach (5A) 108,600,182 101.521.984 2.688.015
Internal rating-based (IRB) approach - -
Counterparty credit risk 1.502.732 1.670.008 120.219
Standardised approach for counterparly credi risk (SA-CCH) 1.502.732 1.670.008 120.219
Intemnal model method (IMM) - - -
Basic risk weight approach to internal models equity position in the
banking account - - -
Investments made in collective investment companies - look-through
8 approach - - --
Investments made in collective investment companies - mandate-
g based approach (*) 1.369 9.843 110
Investments made in collective investment companies - %1250
10 weighted risk approach - - -
11 Settlement risk -- - -
12 Securitization positions in banking accounts e - -
13 /RB ratings-based approach (RBA) - - -
14 JRB Supervisory Formula Approach (SFA)} - - -
15 SA/simplified supervisory formula approach (SSFA) -- -
16 Market risk 772.600 399.825 61.808
17 Standardised approach (SA) T72.600 399.825 61.808
18  Internal model approaches (IMM) -- - -
19 Operational Risk 9.334.711 7.901.568 746.777
20 Basic Indicator Approach 9.334.711 7.801.568 746,777
21 Standart Approach - -- -
22  Advanced measurement approach - -~ -
23 The amount of the discount threshold under the equity (subjectto a
250% risk weight) - - -
24 Floor adjustment

25 Total (1+4+7+8+9+10+11+12+16+19+23+24) 120.211.594 111.503.228 9.616.929
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________—]

SN AW
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Linkages between financial statements and exposures

Mapping and differences between accounting and regulatory scopes of consolidation

Regulatory consolidation refers to the consolidation that includes the consolidation of subsidiaries which are
credit institutions or financial institutions in accordance with Article 5 paragraph 1 of the Communiqué on the
Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements of Banks published in the Official Gazette dated 8 November
2006 and numbered 26340. Accounting consolidation refers to the consolidation in which all of the subsidiaries
are included in the scope of consclidation in accordance with the Article 5 paragraph 6 of the same
communiqué, irrespective of whether these subsidiaries are credit institutions or financial institutions, or not.

a by [ d e f g
Carrying values of items under scope of TAS
Not subject
Carrying Canrying . Subject to . to capital
values values Subject to CSJI:thct;o the Su?ﬁf to requirement
Current Petiod asreporiedin asreportedin  credit risk oreditr? s:y securitisati market risk sar
published regutatory framework fc m lork on Framewark subject to
financial scope of ramew framework deduction
statements consolidation from capital
Assats
Cash and balances at central bank 16.968.813 16.968.812 16.968.812 - - - -
Financial assels held for trading 1.058.069 1.057.763 - 975.808 - 81.860 -
Finzncial assets designated at fair value . . . » .
through profit or loss - -
Banks 10.658.164 10.657.628 10.657.628 - - - -
Receivables from maoney maskets 785.672 785.672 34.886 750,786 - - -
Available for szle financial assets (net) 7.046.032 7.046.033 7.046,033 - - - -
Loans and receivables 110.367.723 110,381,306  110.381.306 - - - 158.725
Factoring receivables 1.846.145 1.846.145 1,846,146 - - - -
Held to maturity investments (net) 5.335.638 5.335.639 5,335,639 -- -- - -
Investments in associates (net) 10.833 10.833 10.833 - - - -
Investments in subsidiaries {net) 29.441 41.701 41.701 - - - -
Investments in joint ventures (net) 12.996 2.800 2.800 - - - -
t.easing receivables 2.601.941 2.601.941 2.601.941 -- - -
Derivative financial assets held for hedges - - - - - B -
Tangible assets (net) 812.914 749.514 749.514 - - - 110.176
Intangible assels (net} 206.226 188.751 188.751 - - - 188.751
Investment properties (net) 171.467 171.467 171.467 - - - -
Tax assets 227887 223.175 223.175 - - - 1443
Non-current assets and disposal groups _ . . ~ . . _
classified as held for sale (net)
Cther assets 2.389.065 2.353.950 2.353.950 - - - —
Total assets 160.528.826 160.423.130 158.614.581 1.726.594 - 81.860 316.095
Liabilities
Deposits 111.357.200 111.410.464 - - - - 111.410.464
Derivative financial liabilities held for trading 1.285.465 1.285.465 - - -- - 1285465
Loans 14.709.322 14.680.242 - - - -~ 14.680.242
Debt to money markets 4.007.167 4.007.168 - 3.977.111 - - 4007166
Debt securities in Issue 3.672.757 3.672.758 - - - - 3.672.758
Funds - - - - - . -
Various debts 2.035.715 1.949.407 - B - - 1.949.407
Other liabilities 2.729.683 2721152 - - - - 2727152
Factoring debts v - - - - - -
Debts from leasing transactions - - - - - - -
Derivative financial liabilities held for hedges - - e - - - -
Provisions 2242162 2227812 - - - - 2227812
Tax liability 360.878 347.734 - - - - 347,734
Liabilities included in disposal groups . . ~ - ~ .
classified as held for sale {net) -
Subordinated debts 5.261.522 5.261.523 - - - - 5261523
Equity 12.866.955 12.853.407 - - - — 12.853.407

Total liabilities 160.528.826  160.423.130 - 3.877.111 - — 160.423.130
———— — ———————————————————————————————————— ———— ____——————

50



DENIZBANK ANONIM SIRKETI Convenience Translation of

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Consolidated Financial Report
AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2017 Originally Issued in Turkish,
{Currency: Thousands of TL - Turkish Lira) See Note 3.l.c
a b [ d e f ']
Carrying values of items under scope of TAS
Not subject
Carrying Carrying . Subject to . to capital
values values Subject to ciﬁ: clatgy Sur:’::‘ to requirement
Prior Period asreported in asreportedin  credit risk creditr‘r)isk securitisati market risk sor
published regulatary framework framework framework subject to
financlal scope of framework deduction
statements  consolidation from capitai
Assets
Cash and balances at central bank 14.839.381 14.839.361 14.839.361 - - -- -
Financial assets held for trading 1.448.214 1.447.859 - 1.341.025 - 106.834 -

Financial assets designated al fair value
through profit or loss

Barnks 5.573.829 5.572.743 5.572.743 -- - - -
Receivables from monsy markets 3.001.570 3.001.57 175 3.001.385 - -

Avagitable for sale financial assets (net) 7.596.990 7.596.990 7.596.990 - - - -
l.oans and receivables 91.138.210 91.150.488 91.150.488 - - - 12.191
Factoring recelvables 1.234,721 1,234.721 1.234.721 - - -
Held to maturity investments (net) 5.056.032 5.056.032 5.056,032 - - - -
Investments in associates (net) 10147 10.147 10.147 - - -

Investments in subsidiaries {net) - 12.233 12,233 - - - -
investments in joint ventures (net) 9.735 2.800 2.800 - - - -
Leasing receivables 2.637.307 2.637.307 2.637.307 - - - -
Derivative financial assets held for hedges - - - - - - -
Tangible assets (net) 722.9713 §64.579 664.578 - - - 91.733
Intangible assets (net) 212.894 204,839 204.819 - - - 204.819
Investment propenties (net) 164.527 164.527 164.527 - - - -
Tax assets 258.362 254.864 254,864 - - - 630
Non-current assets and disposal groups - ~ _ . - - _
classified as held for szle (net)

Other assets 1.740.558 1.702.957 1.702.957 - - - 9.825
Total assets 135.645.431 135.553.998 131.104.743 4.342.421 - 106.834 319.198

Liabilities

Deposits 92.102.850 92,195.951 - - - —  92.195.951
Derivative financial liabilities held for frading 1.248.386 1.248.386 - - - - 1.248.386
Loans 11.292.338 11.258.691 - - - - 11.258.691
Debt to money markets 5.397.576 5.397.576 - 5.397.576 - -~ 5.397.576
Debt securities in issue 3.491.055 3.491.065 - - - - 3.491.055
Funds - - - - - - -
Various debts 2.082.030 1.862.214 - - - - 1962214
Other tiabilities 1.977.433 1.973.210 - - - - .973.210
Factoring debts - - - - - - S
Debts from leasing transactions - - - - - - -
Derivative financial liabilities held for hedges - - - - - - -
Provisions 1.757.572 1.748.151 - - - - 1748151
Tax liability 214.266 205.165 - - - - 205.165
Liabilities inciuded in disposal groups - . " . - . .
classified as held for sale {net)

Subordinated debts 5.483.501 §.483.501 - - - -« 5483.501
Equity 10.598.424 10.590.098 - - -~ 10.590.098

Total liabilities 135.645.431  135.563.998 - 5.387.576 - -- 135.5653.998

2. Main sources of differences between risk exposures and valued amounts in accordance with TAS in financial

statements
e A —
a b [ d e
ltems
ltems ltems subject subject to ltems subject
subject to o counterpart to
creditrisk  securitisation 'y credit risk market risk
Prior Period Total framework framework framework  framework (*)
1 Asset carrying value amourt under scope of TAS  160.423.130 158.544.808 - 1.726.594 81.860
2 Lisbilities carrying value amount under TAS - - 3.977.111 -
3 Total net amount under regulatory scope of
consolidation 160.423.130 158.544.809 - 5.703.705 81.850
4 Off-balance shest amounts (**) 80.366.644 19.820.274 - - -
5 Differences in valuations - - - -
6 Differences due to different netting rules, other _
than those already included in row 2 - - -
7 Differences due to consideration of provisions - - - -
8 Differences due to prudential filters - - - 690.740
9 Differences resulted from considering of the
financial guaraniees (6.745.166) - - -
10_ Risk exposures 220.789.774 171.618.917 - 5.703.705 772.600
- - _——____________________________________________________________

(") Financial instruments included in trading accounts according to "Communigue on Measuremnent and Evaluation of Bank's Capital Adequacy” and principal
amount subject to market risk sourcing from capital requirement calculated for foreign Exchange risk are included in line of risk amounts.
(**} it includes risk which are inclizded in credit risk calculation,
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a b c d e
ltems
ltems ltems subject subject to ltems subject
subject to to counterpart to
creditrisk  securitisation  y credit risk market risk
Prior Period Total framework framework framework  framework (*)
1 Asset carrying value amount under scope of TAS  135.553.998 131.104.743 - 4.342.421 106.834
2 Lisbilities carrying value amount under TAS - - 5.397.576 -
3  Total net amount under regulatory scope of
consolidation 135.553.998 131.104.743 - 8.738.997 106.834
4  COff-balance sheet amounts (**) 57.789.021 20.444.394 - - -
5 Differences in valuations - - - -
6 Differences due to different netting rules, other _ _ B _
than those already included in row 2
7  Differences due to consideration of provisions - - - -
8 Differences due to prudential filters - - - 292.991
9 Differences resulted from considering of the
financial guarantees (6.153.306) - - -
10 Risk exposures 193.343.019 145.395.831 - 9.739.997 399.825

e
(*) Financial instrements included in trading accounts according to “Communique on Measurement and Evaluation of Bank's Capital Adequacy” and principai

amount subject to market risk sourcing from capital requirement calculated for foreign Exchange risk are included in line of risk amoums.
(**} It includes risk which are included in credit risk calculation.

Disclosures on differences between amounts valued in accordance with TAS and risk exposures
bifferences between valued amounts in accordance with TAS and risk exposures:

It is obtained through addition of potential risk exposures according to type of transaction and maturity to risk
exposure renewal costs in derivative transactions included in counterparty credit risk and through offsetting of
cash amount subject to amount adjusted with volatility made to related security in repo and reverse repo
transactions.

Amounts of items which are value in accordance with TAS and subject to market risk indicate fair value of
financial instruments held for trade. Amounts in line of risk amount related to aforementioned transactions
indicate principal amount subject to market risk sourcing from capital requirement calculated related to potential
losses which can be caused by interest rate risk, share price risk, exchange rate risks in scope of “Communique
on Measurement and Evaluation of Bank’s Capital Adequacy”.

Disclosures on controls performed and systems used in order to ensure prudentiality and reliability of
valuations estimates of the Bank in accordance with prudential valuation principles and procedures included
in accompanying Annex-3 to Communique on Measurement and Evaluation of Bank’s Capital Adequacy:

if the financial instruments recognized through fair value have an active and deep market, valuation is
performed based on prices included in market in question. Reliability of market data used in valuations is
examined periodically. The Bank does not operate in markets which do not have a depth. Discounted cash
flow model is mainly used in the evaluation of derivative instruments and generally accepted valuation models
are used for derivative transactions including optionality. Accuracy of market data and model outputs used in
valuations are periodically controlled and differences between counterparty valuations and bank's evaluations
are monitored regularly.

Credit risk
General qualitative information about credit risk

How does the business model of the Bank transform to components in its credit risk portfolio

Credit risk within the body of the Bank is managed in the framework of Credit Risk Management Policy
approved by Board of Directors. Risk, related to credit, are defined, duties of departments are determined and
main principles of credit risk management are brought in aforementioned policy document. Departments
assigned in credit management and their authorization/responsibilities are defined in aforementioned
document.
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In this direction, main limitations related 1o credit risk are determined in Risk Appetite Statement approved
annually by Board of Directors and reported throughout the year by Risk Management Department.
Concentration [imits on the basis of sector, customer segment and risk groups are determined. Actions which
shall be taken in case of a possible overflow are also determined in this document.

In this scope, credit portfolic of the Bank draws a dispersed view with respect to customer segments and
seclors.

Criteria and approach used while determining credit risk policy and credit risk limits

Risk limits defined to all counterparties in monitoring of credit risks are tracked on the basis of products,
customers and risk groups separately by systems and it is not permitted to take risks exceeding determined
timits. Many factors such as ability to pay, features of the sector and possible impacts of geographical and
economic conditions are taken into conslderation while determining the credit limits of counterparty. If deemed
appropriate, it is tried to reduce possible losses of the Bank to minimum through applying required risk
mitigation techniques. All decuments required by the related legislation should be taken into account during
credit examinations. Credit worthiness of counterparty is periodically controlled for limits provided for multi-use
and limits are revised considering changes and requirements in the credit worthiness of counterparty.
Customers/transactions are ciassified based on their credit worthiness by credit allocation officers and
respective classes are changed, if required.

Structure and organization of credit risk management and control function

Credit allocation and monitoring is performed in accordance with segregation of duties and therefore, the credit
can be reviewed in an objective manner during its economic iife. Risk models are used in order to measure
credit risk of customers in both allocation and monitoring groups in an accurate and objective manner. Early
Warning Systems are used for the monitoring of credit customers and signals received are regularly tracked
by Monitoring groups and pre-determined action plans are taken with allocation groups if pre-determined.
triggers are detected.

Relation belween credit risk management, risk control, legal compliance and internal audit functions

The newly developed credit risk models undergo validation process before its implementation, after the
approval of The Bank's Model Risk Management and Validation Commitiee, they are used in the risk
management processes. Validation of Credit risk models in use are repeated at least on an annual basis and
the results are presented to the Model Risk Management and Validation Committee,

Credit Risk Control periodically presents analysis and results of execution of internal rating systems, evolution
of credit rating grades, documentation of changes made in credit grade and compliance to internal limitations
to Rating Committee. Compliance of Credit Risk Control activities to intra-bank arrangements and regulations
and guides is periodically audited by internal audit departments of the Bank and issue requiring to be developed
are monitored following their identification.

Scope and main content of reporting which shail be made to senior management and members of board of
directors regarding credit risk management function and exposed credit risk

Board of Directors determines policy of the Group in credit management field and ensures establishment of
required conditions to perform determined policies in an effective manner. In this scope, it defines sections
related to measurement and management of credit quality and approves documents having primary
importance related to credit risk such as Risk Appetite Statement.

2. Credit quality of assets

a b c d
Gross carrying values of (according
Current Period to TAS)

Defaulted Non-defaulted Allowances/ Net values

exposures exposures impairments {a+b-c)
1 Loans 4.024.614 113.933.301 4.851.915 113.106.000
2 Debt Securities - 12.318.534 1.162 12.317.372
3 Off-balance sheet explosures (%) 183.626 57.491.658 197.518 57.477.766
4 Total 4.208.240 183.743.483 5.050.595 182.901.138

{*) It doesn't include revocable commitments and Forward Asset Purhcase -Sales Commitments.
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a b c d
Gross camying values of (according
Prior Period to TAS)
Defaulted Non-defaulted Allowances/ Net values
eXposures exposures impairments (a+b-c)
1 Loans 3.651.639 94.018.832 4,024,967 93.645.504
2 Debt Securities - 12.611.296 1.159 12.610.137
3 Off-balance sheet explosures {*) 252.392 54.199.335 182.858 54.268.869
4 Total 3.904.031 160.829.463 4.208.984 160.524.510

(") It doesn't in¢lude revocable cormmitments and Forward Asset Purhcase -Sales Commitments.

Changes in stock of impaired loans and debt securities

Current Period Prior Period

a () a (%)
1 Impaired loans and debt securities at end of the previous reporting period 3.651.639 3.168.774
2 Loans and debt securities that have impaired since the last reporting period 1.962.958 1.975.518
3 Receivables thal returned to non-impaired status 59.000 19.826
4 Amounts written off {**) 694.258 604.213
5 Other changes (836.725) (868.614)
6 Impaired loans and debt securities at end of the repoerting period (1 +2-3-4 £ 5) 4.024.614 3.651.639

" — — — — — —— — —— ———————————|

(") t doesnt include ofi-balance sheel receivables.
{(**) It indicates sales made from non-performing loans portfoio,

4. Additional disclosure related to the credit quality of assets

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Scope and definitions of “overdue” receivables and “provisioned” receivables used for purposes of accounting

The Parent Bank considers loans that have overdue principal and interest payments and are classified as
second group according to the “Communiqué on “Determining the Quality of l.oans and Other Receivables by
Banks and Procedures and Principles of Provisions to be made” as “past due loans.” Loans that have overdue
principal and interest payments for more than 90 days after the maturity date or the debtor of which are deemed
unworthy by the Bank are considered as “impaired loans.”

Part of overdue receivables (over 90 days) which are not considered as “Provisioned” and reasons for the
implementation in question.

Loans that have overdue principal and interest payments for more than 90 days after the maturity date are
transferred to “Nonperforming loans” accounts and the Bank calculates “specific provisions” for such loans in
comphiance with the “Communigué on “Determining the Quality of Loans and Other Receivables by Banks and
Procedures and Principles of Provisions to be made”.

Definiticns of methods used while determining amount of provision

Parent Bank calculates general credit provision for overdue credits and specific provision for impaired credits
in scope of “Communigué on “Determining the Quality of Loans and Other Receivables by Banks and
Procedures and Principles of Provisions to be made”.

Definitions of restructured receivables

The Bank can restructure both of its first and second group credits and its nonperforming credit and receivables.
Restructuring in first and second group of credits and in other receivables are made in order to improve
repayment ability of the customer as well as including changes made in contract terms with the request of the
customer independent from credit risk of the customer. Restructurings made in nonperforming claims and
receivables are changes made in payment plan of the credit towards ensuring of collection of the receivable.
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(v) Breakdown of receivables by geographical area

Loans Borrowing instruments Off-Balance shest
receivables
Current Pericd Non- Non- Allowance  Write-Offs
Defaulted Non-defaulted Defaulted  defaulted Defaulted defaulted  /impairments ")
1 Domestic 3.936.268 $8.980.173 - 12022936 183.614 54.872.811 3.053.783 604.258
2 EU Countries 77.104 8.754.666 - 136.463 12 671.115 69.242 -
3 OECD Countries 657 654.276 - - - 785.545 45 -
4 Off Shore Zones - 511.456 - . - 11.118 - -
5 USA, Cenada 3.038 258.037 - - - 17.644 1.888 -
6 Other Countries 7.546  4.764.693 - 159.135 — 1.153.427 3.559 -
7 Total 4.024.614 113.933.301 - 12.318.534 183.626 57.491.658 3.128.523 694.258

{*) It indicates sales made from non-performing foans portfolico.

Loans Borrowing instruments Off-Balance sheet
recaivables
Prior Period Non- Non- Non- Allowance  Write-Offs
Defaulted defaulted  Defaulted  defaulted Defaulted defaulted  /impairments {*)
1 Domestic 3.552.074 82.830.277 — 11.565.804 252.390 42526506 2.574.631 602.590
2 EU Countries 085.316 4.841.812 - 981.240 2 483.684 71.8982 -
3 OQECD Countries 33 195.576 -- - - 791.318 19 -
4 OFff Shore Zones - 331.011 -- -- -- 3.220 - 1.623
5 USA, Canada 52 236.664 P - - 111.186 13 -
6 Other Countries 4.164 5.583.492 -~ §4.252 -- 10.283.021 1.300 -
7 Total 3.651.639 94.018.832 -~ 12.611.286 252392 54.199.335 2.647.955 604.213

{*) It indicates sales made from non-performing leans portfclio.

(vi) Breakdown of receivables by sectors

Loans Borrowing instruments Qff-Balance shest
receivables
Current Period Non- Non- Allowance
Defautied Non-defaulted Defaulted  defaulted  Defaulted defaulted  /impaimments Write-Offs

Agricultural 225.754 12.411.996 -- - 2,534 2.991.635 150.663 6.893

Farming and Cattle 217.958 12.400.214 - 2.398 2.976.848 147,822 8.601

Forestry 454 4,691 - - 15 8.046 427 203

Fishing 7.342 7.091 - - 121 6.741 2414 89
Manufacturing 416.964 14.362.108 .- 99.273 20.755 11.022.973 279.707 30.740

Mining 54.689 3.360.237 - - 1.809 474683 34,336 2.854

Production 280.048 5.993.235 57,750 13.308 9.699.233 211.461 27.632

Electric, Gas, Water 82,229 4.008.536 - 41.523 5.638 849.057 33.910 154
Construction 285.778 10.895.641 -- - 78.246 8.132.604 185.285 15,132
Services 1.472.510 37.406.447 -- 457.820 68.045 15.983.988 1.087.060 188.382
Whotesale and Retail Trade 505.419 13.874.890 - - 57.835  10.935.042 707.687 154.759

Hotel and Restaurant

Servicas 154,223 11.731.807 - 2.366 939.952 53,238 5.632
Transportation and =

talecommunication 272195 5.796.234 - 48.782 5,383 2.209.142 208,712 22,914

Financial institution 20.562 588.917 - 409.038 178 1.128.847 13.668 829

Real estate and letting

sorvicas 11.044 433.544 - - 654 139.61C 8.769 1.723

Self-employement services - - - - - - - -

Education services 20.896 1.607.019 - - 975 279.819 18.398 547

Health and soclal services 88,171 3.273.036 - - 662 351.576 75.688 1.978
Other 1.623.608 38.857.109 - 11.761.441 14.046  19.360.458 1.425.808 4563.111

Total 4,024,614

113.933.301

12.318.534 _ 183.626

57.491.658 3.128.523 694.258

(*) It indicates sales made from non-performing loans portfolic.



DENIZBANK ANONIM SIRKETI Convenience Translation of

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Consolidated Financial Report
AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2017 Originally lssued in Turkish,
{Currency: Thousands of TL - Turkish Lira) See Note 3./.c
Loans Berrowing instruments Qif-Balance sheet
recelvables
Prior Periad Non- Non- Allowance
Defaulted Non-defaulted Defaulted defaulted  Defaulted defaulted _ fimpaimments Write-Dffs
Agricultural 200,093 8.796.827 - - 3714 1.837.547 137.753 6.500
Farming and Catle 197.139 8.778.483 - - 3.635 1.829.868 135.004 8.074
Forestry 527 3. - - 17 3.672 466 407
Fishing 2427 14.573 -- -- 32 4.007 2.289 28
Manufacturing 357.990 12.815.751 - 57,735 20,760 11.670.095 215.052 33.260
Mining 39.933 2.811.457 - - 1.765 705.388 27911 7.763
Production 236.91% 6.906.034 - 51.717 23.348  10.027.120 166.801 25.309
Electric, Gas, Water 82.142 3.088.260 -- 6.018 5.647 937.587 20.540 98
Construction 232.278 9.334.442 -- - 75177  9.618.001 156.120 21.994
Services 1.157.129 33.603.669 - 412,929  106.752 12.546.879 787.920 92.011
Wholesale and Retail Trade 748.500 12.833.708 - - 94,787 7.997.182 435,120 75.075
Hotel and Restaurant
Services 41.483 9.269.785 - - 3719 795,942 16.764 3774
Transporiation and P -
telecommunication 216.466 6.519.837 - 33.517 5.627 1.845.952 154.089 9.947
Financial institution 28,667 837.870 - 379.412 141 1.192.687 17.282 582
Real estate and letling
services 9.604 318.263 - -- 555 78.642 5.209 1.433
Selfl-employement services - -~ - - - - - -
Education services 21.522 1.178.221 - - 884 85.607 16.673 357
Health and social services 90.917 2.644,985 - - 1.059 450.860 81.803 843
Other 1.704.149 20.468.143 - 12.140.632 35.9890 18.526.813 1.351.110 460.439

Total 3.651.639 94.018.832 -~ 12,611.296 262,392 54.199.335 2.647.955 604.213

(vii) Breakdown of receivables by outstanding maturity

Current Period Undistributed 1 month 1-3 months 3-6 months 6-12 months Over 1 year Total
Non-defaulted receivables - 37.131.297 10.362.113 8.499.691 19.436.083 108.314.708 183.743.492
1 Loans 10.104.229 10.104.228 7.106.873 4.651.711 12.633.207 79.437.281  113.933.301
2 Borrowings instruments 9.626 - 134,689 374.499 290.345 11.509.375  12.318.534
3 Off-balance sheet

receivabies -- 27.017.442 3.120.551 3.473.081 6.512.531 17.268.052 57.491.657
Defaulied recelvables 4.208.240 - - - - - 4,208.240
1 Loans 4.024.614 - - - - - 4.024.614
2 Borrowings instruments - - - - - - -
3 Off-balance sheet

receivables 183.626 - - - - - 183.626
Specific Provision 3.128.523 - - - - - 3.128.523
Total 1.079.717 37.121.67 10.240.887 8.124.792 18.174.723 108.081.419  184.823.209

- __________________________________________— |

Prior Period Undistributed 1 menth 1-3 months 3-6 months 6-12 months Over 1 year Total
Non-defaulted receivables 26.248 21.998.313 8.223.328 8.109.397 27.548.606 94,923,571 160.829.463
1 Loans - 9.612.324 5.060.570 4.615.452 11.258.160 63.463.286  94.018.832
2 Borrowings instruments - - 69.142 4.634 - 12.537.520  12.611.296
3 Off-balenioe sheet 26248 12365989 3084616 3489271 16290445 18922765 54.199.335
Defaulted receivables 3.904.031 - - - - - 3.904.031
1 Loans 3.651.639 - - - - - 3.651.63%
2 Borowings instruments - - - - - - -
3 Off-balance sheet

recsivables 252,392 - - - - - 252,392
Specific Provision 2.647.955 - - - - - 2.647.955
Total 1.282.324 21.998.313 8.223.328 8.109.397 27.548.606 94.923.571 162.085.539

(viii) Ageing analysis of Parent Bank’s overdue receivables

Cumrent Period 1-30 days 31-60 days 61-80 days Total
Loans 3.226.448 1.047.860 1.186.181 5.470.489
Borrowing instruments - - -

Off-balance sheet receivables - - - -

Prior Period 1-30 days 31-60 days 61-90 days Total
Loans 2,832,957 1.011.064 885,489 4.739.150
Borrowing instruments - - -

Off-balance sheet receivables — - - -

(ix} Breakdown of restructured receivables according to their provisioning status

Current Period Prior Period
Loans having standard nature and restructured from other reciavables 1.694.451 1.437.793
Loans in close follow-up and restructured from other receivables 4.577.399 2.914.008
Restructured from non-performing assels 298.597 150.334
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Credit risk mitigation techniques

The Bank can demand collateral in order to mitigate risk level of the credit. £ach type of collaterals and
collateral processes approved in credit risk calculations are defined with Bank procedures. Insurance and

evaluation approach off properties or goods subject to collateral are regulated in internal documents of the
Bank prepared in accordance with Turkish Banking Legislation.

The Bank performs credit risk mitigation according to comprehensive financial coliateral method in accordance
with "Communique on Credit Risk Mitigation Techniques”. Exchange mismatch between receivable and
collateral and cut-off rates based on type of collateral are considered through inspecting standard cut-off ratios

mentioned in annex of the communique while maturity mismatch between receivable and collateral is taken
into account in accordance with method mentioned in the Article 40.

Bank establishes compliant provisions to Turkish Banking Legislation and BRSA Regulations in order to cover
expected loss resulting from occurrence of credit risk.

6. Credit risk mitigation techniques - overview

e f g
Exposures
secured by
Exposures credit
Current Period Exposures secured by Financial derivatives,
unsecured collateral, Exposures guaraniees, Exposures of
of Exposures of which secured by of which secured by which
(according  secured by secured financial secured credit secured
to TAS collateral amount guarantees amount derivatives amount
1 Loans 76.898.222 26.589.943  18.662.426 9.617.835 8.007.536 -- -
2 Debt Securilies 12.317.372 -- -- -- -- - -
3 Total £80.215.594 26.589.943 18.662.426 9.617.835 8.007.536 - -
4 Of which defaulted (* 3.639.979 568.261 221.440 - -
. ________________________________________________——— |
(*} It includes defautt figure belonging to amouns before provision and off-batance sheet receivables.
OO0 OO0 OO 00
a b 4 d e f [s]
Exposures
secured by
Exposures credit
Prior Period Exposures secured by Financial derivatives,
unsecured collateral, Exposures guarantees, Exposures of
of Exposures of which secured by of which secured by which
(according secured by secured financial secured credit secured
to TAS collateral amounit guarantees amount derivatives amount
1 Loans 70.373.081 23272423  20.223.805 - - - -
2  Debt Securities 12.610.137 - -~ — - -- --
3 Total 82.983.218 23.272423 20.223.805 - - - -
4 Of which defaulted {* 3.635.260 268.771 193.941 -- - -

{*) ltincludes default figure belonging to amount before provision and off-balance sheet receivables.

Disclosures on rating grades used while calculating credit risk with standard approach

Ratings provided by international rating agency Fitch are used for the determination of risk weights which shall
be applied in the calculation of capital adequacy. The scope, in which the credit rating grades are taken into
consideration, covers receivables from governments or central banks and receivables from banks and
intermediary institutions and corporate receivables for those having residence abroad.
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8. Standardised approach - Credit risk exposure and credit risk mitigation (CRM) effects
a b [+ d e f
Exposures before credit Exposures post-credit
Current Period conversion factor and CRM conversion factor and CRM RWA and RWA density
On-balance Off-balance On-balance Off-balance
sheet sheet sheet sheet
Risk classifications amount amount amount amount RWA RWA density
1 Exposuresto certiral govammants or central 35.113.774 383.437 42562674 1607.731  3.088.583 %6,99
2 Exposiesio regional govemments or local 405.818 21.036 404.218 8617 206.417 %50,00
3 Exposures to public sector entities - - - %0,00
4 Exposures to muitilateral devefopment banks - - -~ - -- %0,00
5 Exposures to international organisations - - - - - %0,00
§ Exposures lo institutions 4.577.056 2,005.372 4.577.056 1.703.368 2.615.150 %41,64
7 Expesures to corporates 56.451.256 28.044.751 48.858.021 13.5675.587  61.986.698 %59,28
8 Retail exposures 42.211.157 29.803.027 37.792.798 2.697.421  30.461.461 %7523
9 Exposures secured by residential property 4.522.250 397.043 4.730.737 185,688 1.720.748 %35,00
10 Exposures secured by commercial real estate $.469.296 1.148.270 8.373.861 705.663 5.387.226 %59,33
11 Pasl-due loans 964.454 98.068 964.026 37.950 1.009.567 %100,76
t2 Higher-risk categories by the Agency Board - - - - - %0,00
13 Exposures in the form of cavered honds - - - - - %0,00
14 Exposures to institutions and corporates with a
short-term - - = - - %0,00
credit assessment
15 Exposures in the form of units or shares in
collective - 219 219 219 %100,00
investment undertakings (ClUs}
16 Other asseis 4.530.843 - 4.539.843 - 2.488.085 %55,03
17 Investments in equities 266.425 - 266.425 - 581.354 %221.96
18 Total 158.921.329 61.901.223  153.069.659 20.522.242  109.585.508 %63,12

a b c d e f
Exposures before credit Exposures post-credit
Prior Period conversion factor and CRM conversion factor and CRM RWA and RWA density
On-balance Off-balance On-balance Off-balance
sheet sheet sheet shest
Risk classifications amount amount amount amount RWA RWA density
1 E;‘ﬁﬁ’:”fes to centrai governments or central 29.027.608 688.695  20.810.368 198759  7.373.518 %24,57
2 Eg&%ﬁg{gg to regional govermnments or focal 537.203 19.368 537,081 8.671 272.876 %50,00
3 Exposures to public seclor entities - - - - - %0,00
4 Exposures 1o multilateral development banks - - - - - %0.,00
5 Exposures to international organisations - - - - - %0,00
6 Exposuras 1o institutions 3.084.054 2.258.890 3.084.054 1.841.779 2.110.808 %42,00
7 Exposures 1o corporates 44.481.134 29.227.490 39.153.945 15.661.886  54.815.830 %160,00
8 Relail exposures 32.529.013 25.701.748 31.743.82% 2.462.775 25.737.950 %75,24
9 Exposures secured by residentiat property 5.216.261 332.318 5.178.72% 163.048 1.869.621 %35,00
10 Exposures secured by commercial real estate 10.897.617 1.160.079 10.873.030 780.81¢% 6.605,552 %56,68
11 Past-due loans 1.097.821 188.177 1.096.044 56.822 1.125.693 %97,64
12 Higher-risk categories by the Agency Board - - - - - %0,00
13 Exposures ins the form of covered bonds - -- -- - - %0,00
14 Exposures to institutions and corporates with a
short-term - - - - - %0,00
cradit assessment
15 Exposures in the form of units or shares in
collective 1.187 1.068 1.187 1.068 2,255 %100,00
Investment undertakings (ClUs)
t5 Other assets 4.435.249 - 4,435.250 - 2.681.236 %6045
17 Invesiments in equities 29.109 - 29.109 = 28.878 %98,55
18 Total 131.346.256 59.577.833  125.942.626 21.275.617  102.624.118 %69,71
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9. Standardised Approach - Exposures by asset classes and risk weights

Current Period a b [ k d e { g h 1 |
%35 %50
Secured Secured Tatal risk
with with expgsure
Risk  Classifications/Risk property property (after CCF
Weight* %0 %10 %20 mortgage  mortgage %50 %75 %100 %150 %200 Others and CRM)
1 Exposures 1o central
governments ar central  41.081.822 . - - - - - 3.08B.583 - - - 44,170,408
banks
2 Exposures to regional
governments or local - - - - - 412.835 - - - - - 412.835
authorities

3 Exposures to public
sactor entities

4 Exposuresto
multilateral development - - - - - - -~ - - - - .
banks

5 Exposures to

international - - - - - - - - - - - -
organisations

Exposures to institutions -~ - 3.438.380 - -~ 1.820.124 - 1.012.910 - - -~ B.280.424
Exposures 1o corporates - - 558637 - - - ~ 81.874.971 - - . §2433.608
Retail exposures - - - - - -~ 40.$15.034 375.185 - - - 40.490.218

Exposures secured by
residential propenty 4916423 - - - - - - - 4.916.423

10 Exposures secured by
commercial real estate - - - - ~  7.384.595 - 1.694.92% - - - 8.079.524
1 Past-due loans - e - - - 189.464 - B12512 - - - 1.001.976
12 Higher-risk categories
by the Agency Board
13 Exposures in the form of
covered bonds
14 Expaosures o institutions
and corporates with a
short-terrm
credit assessment
15 Exposures in the form of
units or shares in
collective - - - - - - - 219 - - - 218
investment undertakings
{CIUs)
16 investments in equities - - - - - - 49.808 - - 218619 266.425
17 Other assets 2034523 -~ 9.031 - - - 42 2.498.247 - - - 4535843
18 Total 43.116.345 — 4.006.058 4916423 —  9.816.018 40.115.076 71.405.262 - ~ 216.618 173.591.901
__________________________________________________________________--—— ——— ———— —————————————— — ———— — ———]

W ~N®
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Prlor Period a b [4 k d [] f g h i |
%35 %50
Secured Secured Total risk
with with exposure
Risk Classifications/Risk propery property (after CCF
Welght* %0 %10 %20 morigage  morigage %50 %75 %100 %150 %200 Others and CRM)
1 Exposures to central
governments or central  15.252.094 - - - - 14.747.033 - - - - -~ 30.008.127
banks
2 Exposures to regional
governments or local - - - - - 545.752 - - - - - 545.752
authorities
3 Exposures to public . }
sector entities

4 Exposuresto
multilateral development O - - - - - - -
banks

§ Exposuresto

Internaticnal - - - - - - - - - - -

organisations

Expesures to institutions - 2.849.812 - 313.122 - - - 5025833

Exposures to corporates - - - - - - 2 54.815.828 - - ~ 54815831

Retail exposures - - - - - ~ 33.874.612 331.992 - - - 34206604

Exposures secured by .

residential propery - - 83T - - - - - - - SIS

10 Exposures secured b u
ccr’\"memialma] estaé - - - ~ 10.086.579 - - 1.567.262 - - - 11.653.821

11 Past-due foans - - - 338.528 - -~ B530.154 284.183 - - 1.152.866

12 Higher-risk categories
by the Agency Board

13 Exposuresin the form of
covesed bonds

14 Exposures to institutions
and corporates with a
short-term
credit assessment

15 Exposures in the form of
units or shares in
collective - - - - - - - 2.255 - - - 2.255
investment undertakings
{CiUs)

16 investments in equities 130 - - - - - - 28.979 - - - 29.108

17 Qther assets 1.679.637 - 7.440 - 3 - 186 2.283.575 - -~ 154.415  4.435.250

18 _Total 17.241.861 -~ 1.870.339 5341775 10.435.111 18.142.597 33.874.794 59.873.168 284.183 ~ 154.415 147.218.243

- ——— ______——"—— - ————— — ——— —
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Counterparty Credit Risk

Counterparty credit risk {CCR) explanations

Counterparty credit risk is determined according to type of counterparty and the transaction. Counterparties
are divided intc segments as financial institutions, corporate-commercial customers, SME-Micro-Gold-
Agriculture customers and individual customers. Transaction types are grouped as derivative financial products
and repo transactions.

Compliance test is applied in line with production information, financial position and transaction frequency of
the customer in order o determine products and services provided to customers.

Credit worthiness of counterparty is analysed before the transactions causing counterparty credit risk and
periodically reviewed. Reviewing frequency is increased if required.

Limits, in line with risk appetite, policy and strategies of the Bank are determined for the transactions in scope
of CCR. Those limits are approved by Board of Directors for banks. Approval authorizations determined in
scope of credit allocation process are applied for parties apart from banks. Limits are reviewed at least
annually. If the market conditions get worse or credit qualities of certain counterparties decline, limits are
reviewed and required changes are made. Approved limits are blocked with the approval of Credit
Committee/Credit Allocation Department, if required.

Risk mitigation methods such as netting contracts, collateral and margin contracts are used in counterparty
credit risk management related to financial institutions. Collateralization ptinciples and procedures are applied
in scope of credit policy and procedures currently applied within the Bank for counterparties apart from financial
institutions.

Potential and current risk amounts of transactions are calculated/determined in order to determine counterparty
credit risk. The risks of transactions that are subject to the legally binding bilateral netting agreement and to
which the netting transaction can be applied are followed together.
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Analysis of counterparty credit risk exposure by approach

a b c d e f
Alpha used for
computing Exposure
Current Period regulatory at default
Replacement Potential future exposute at post CRM
cost exposure EEPE default) RWA
1 Standardised Approach {for B e
Sorivaves)() 969.154 6673837 ¢ . E;,gg%;;@% - 1.605.874 882276
2 inmemal  Model Method  (for &
derivatives, Repo Transactions, gﬁ
Marketable Securiies or EMTIA

&
lerding or borrowing transactions, :
transactions with 2 long settlement
time, Marketable Security
transactions with credit)

3 Simple Approach for credit risk
mitigation ({for derivatives, Repo
Transactions, Marketable Secuwities
or EMTIA lending or borrowing
tfransactions, transactions with a long
setllement time, Marketable Security
transactions with credit)

4 Comprehensive Approach for credit
risk mitigation {for derivatives,

Reps  Fransactions, Marketable
Securities or EMTIA fending or
borrowing transactions, transactions
with a long settlement time,
Marketable Security fransactions with
credit)

5 vaR for for derivatives, Repo
Transactions, Marketable Securities

408.040 81.681

or
EMTIA lending or borrowing
transactions, transactions with a long
setliement time, Marketable Security
transactions with credit

Tota! & 963.957
a [} [ d 2 f
Alpha used for
computing Exposure
Current Period reguiatory at defauit
Replacement  Potential future exposure at post CRM
cost exposure EEPE default) RWA
1 Standardised Approach (for : .
derivatives)(')- 1.340.530 544,723 % 1.805.349 996.506

2 Internal  Model  Method  (for
derivatives, Repo Transactions,
Marketable Securities or EMTIA
lending or berrowing transactions,
fransactions with a long settlement
time, Marketable Security
transactions with credit)

3 Simple Approach for credit risk
mitigation (for derivatives, Repo
Transactions, Marketable Securities
of EMTIA lending or borrowing
transactions, transactions with a long
settlement time, Marketable Security
transactions with credit)

4 Comprehensive Approach for credit
risk mitigation {for derivatives,

Repo  Transactions, Marketable
Securlties or EMTIA lending or
borrowing transactions, transactions
with @ long settiement time,
Marketable Security transactions with
credity

5 VaR for for derivatives, Repo
Transactions, Marketable Securities
or
EMTIA lending or borrowing
transactions, transactions with a lang
seltlement time, Marketable Security
transactions with credit

6 Total

352.667 95.785

1.092.291

{*) Counterparty credit risk for derivatives is calculated by the fair value methed.
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Credit valuation adjustment (CVA) capital charge

a b
Exposure at default
Current Period post-CRM RWA
Total portfofios subject to the Advanced CVA capital charge
T Value at Risk {VYaR) component (including the 3xmultiplier) - -
2 Stressed VaR component (including the 3xmultiplier) - -
3 All portfolios subject to the Standardised CVA capital charge 1.605.874 538.775

Total subject to the CVA capital charge 1.605.874 538.775

a b
Exposure at default
Prior Period post-CRM RWA
Total portfolios subject to the Advanced CVA cagitat charge
Value at Risk (VaR) component {including the 3xmuitiplier) - -
Stressed VaR component (inciuding the 3xmultiplier) -- -
All portfolics subject to the Standardised CVA capital charge 1.805.349 577.717

Total subject to the CVA capilal charge 1.805.348 577.717
— ——— __________________— ____— ______ _____ _ — __ _—— —— —— ]

LI by —

o

Standard approach - Counterparty credit risk with respect to risk classes and weights

Current Period a b c d e { g h

I
Total credit
Exposure

Risk Welgths / Risk Classifications %0 %10 %20 %50, %75 %100 %150 Difjer (]

Claims from central goveramenis and ceniral

banks 5.560 .

Claims from regional and loca! governments .- - - - - - - - .

Clalms from administration and non commercial

entily

Claims from muitilateral development banks - - - - - - - - -

Claims from international organizations - - o - .

Claims from institutions - - 779.556 42511 -

Carporates - - - -

Retail portfelios - - -

Claims on landed real estate - - - -

Pastdue loans - - -

Claims which are determined as high risk by the

board of BRSA

Morigage securities - - - - - - - - -

Securitization posilions - - e - e - - - -

Claims from corporates, banks and financial

intermediaries which have short term credit rating

Investments which are qualified as collective

vestment institutions

Stock investment - -- -- - - - - - -

Other claims - - - - - - - - -

Other assets {(**) N - - - - - -

Total 5.560 - 779.556 825.101 32.803 370.893 - - 563.957
—— —————______________________________________________________________________________________— — — — — ]

(*}Total credit exposure: the amount refevant for the capital requirements calculation, having applied CRM techniques.
{**)Other assets: the amount excludes exposures to “Central counterparty” which are reported In Counterparty cradit risk.

Prior Perlod a b [ d ] f ] h

Total credit

Exposure
Risk Weigths / Risk Classiflcations %0 %10 %20 P50, %78 %100 %150 Digjer {"
Claims frem ceniral govemnments and central N _ ~ B B B M
hanks - -
Claims from regional and loczl governments -- - - - - - - - -
Claims fram administration and non commercial .
enity - - - h h - - -
Claims from multifateral development banks - - - - - - - - -
Claims from international erganizations - - - - - - - - -
Clzims from institutions -- - 693.315 1.091.567 -- - - s GB4.447
Cormporates - - - - - 330.809 - - 380.909
Retail portiolios - - - - 21.156 - - - 15.867
Clairss on landed real estate -- - - - - - .- . -
Past due loans - - - - - - . - -
Claims which are determined as high risk by the
board of BRSA - . - - - - " - -
Mortgage securilies - - - - - - - - -
Securitization positions - - - - - - -- - -
Claims frem corporates, banks and financial
Intermediaries which have short tera credit rating - - - - - - i -
Investrants which are qualified as collective
investment institutions - - - - - 1.068 B - 1.068
Stock investment -- - - - - - - - -
Other claims - -- - - - - - - -
Qther assets (™) - - - - - - - - "
Total - - 693.315 1.081.567 21.156 391.977 - = 1.092.291

{*)Total credit exposure: the amount relevant for the capital requirements calculation, having applied CRM technigues.
{**)Other assets: the amount excludes exposures to "Central counterparty” which are reported in Counterparty credit risk.
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5. Collaterals used for counterpaity credit risk

a b [ d e f
Guarantees of Other
Guaraniees of Derivative Financial Instrument Transactions
Current Period Received Guarantees Given Guarantees Received  Given
Appropriated Unappropriated Avppropriated Unappropriated Guarantees Guarantees
Cash-Domestic Currency - 750.891 3.522.038

Cash-Fareign Currency 30.673
Government Bond-Domestic -
Government Bond-Other

Public Bond - - -

Corporate Bond - - -

Stock - - -

Other Guarantee - - -

Total 30.673 — 750.891 3.922.038

a b c d e f
Guarantees of Other

Guarantees of Derivative Financial Instrument Transactions

Prior Period Recelved Guarantees Given Guarantees Received Given
Appropriated Unapprepriated Appropriated Unappropriated _Guarantees Guarantess

Cash-Domestic Currency - - - -~ 3.001.396 5.628.366

Cash-Foreign Currency 79.903 - - - - -

Government Bond-Domestic - - - - - -

Government Bond-Other - - - - - -

Public Bond - - - - - -

Corporate Bond - - - - - -

Stock - - - - - -

Other Guarantee - — - — — -

Total 79.903 -~ ~ ~ 3.001.395 5.628.366

6. Credit derivatives
None.

7. Exposures to central counterparties {CCP)

None.
Securitization

1. Disclosures on securitization positions

None.

2. Securitization positions in banking accounts

None.

3. Securitization positions in trading accounts
None.

4, Securitization positions in banking positions and capital requirements related to those - whose sponsorship or
founder is the bank
None.

5. Securitization positions in banking positions and capital requirements related to those- in which the Bank is an
investor
None.
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Market Risk

Explanations on market risk

Within the scope of financial risk management, market risk management activities are defined in accordance
with the “Regulation on the Banks’ Internal Systems and Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process” and
the “Regulation on Measurement and Assessment of Capital Adequacy Ratios of Banks" and necessary
measures are taken in order to avoid excessive market risk.

Standard method and internal model are used for the measurement of market risk. The principals of standard
method are defined by BRSA and calculation is performed monthly for the consolidated and non consolidated
scope. Risk measurement with the internal model is performed on a daily basis and risk indicators such as
value at risk, interest rate sensitivity and option sensitivities are monitored. The “Trading Book” classification
defined by the regulation is used for market risk measurement. LImits based on risK indicators and stop-loss
limits are set by the Board of Directors in order to control the market risk exposure.

Standardised approach

o
Current Period Prior Period

RAT RAT
Outright products
1 Interest rate risk (general and specific) 37.213 27.263
2 Equity risk (general and specific) 200 75
3 Foreign exchange risk 653.575 288,449
4 Commodity risk 78.112 55.600
Options
5 Simplified approach - -
6 Delta-plus method 3.500 28.438
7 Scenario approach - -
8 Securitisation - -
9 Total 772.600 399.825

Information on market risk calculated as of month-ends during the perlod

Current Period: 31 December 2017 Prior Period: 31 December 2016
Average Highest Lowest Average Highest Lowest
Interest Rate Risk 2.958 5727 1.712 1.647 2.715 960
Stock Risk 18 74 - 34 84 2
Currency Riski 45.251 65.685 23.929 31.587 57.264 14.949
Emtia Risk 4,532 6.591 2.962 280 395 257
Settlement Risk - - - - - --
Option Risk 1.223 4.569 87 2.177 3.642 956
Counterparty Risk - - - - - --
Total Risk Exposure Value 674.777 992.363 384.988 458.641 780.438 239.725

Operational risk

Disclosures on operational risk calculation

Principal amount subject to operational risk is calculated through using year-end gross income of 20186, 2015
and 2014 of DFS Group belonging to last 3 years via "Basic Indicators Approach” dated in accordance with
“‘Communigue on Measurement and Evaluation of Bank’s Capital Adequacy” published on Official Gazette
dated 23 October 2015 numbered 29511.

Standard method
e o 0 /1
Total/Positive
31.12.2013 31.12.2014 31.12.2015 Gl year number Ratio{%) Total
Gross Income 4.131.530 4.699.298 4.214.168 4,348.332 15 652.250
Amount Subject to Operational 8.153.125

Risk
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Presentation of financial assets and liabilities at their fair value

Calculation of financial assets and liabilities at their fair value

The fair value of held-to-maturity assets are determined based on market prices, or when they are not available,
based on market prices quoted for other securities subject to similar terms of interest, maturity and other
conditions.

The expected fair value of the demand deposits represents the amount to be paid upon request. The fair value
of the overnight deposits and floating rate placements represent thelr carrying value. The expected fair value
of the fixed rate deposits are determined by calculating the discounted cash flows using the market interest
rates of similar instruments,

Fair value of credits are calculated by discounting cash flow with current market interest rate.

Estimated fair value of banks, funds provided from other financial entities, issued securities and deposits is
calculated through determination of discounted cash flows using current market interest rates.

The following table summarizes the carrying value and fair value of financial assets and liabilities. The carrying
value represents the sum of the acquisition costs and interest accruals of financial assets and Habilities.

Camrying Value Fair Value
Current Period Prior Period Current Period Prior Period
Financial Assets 138.654.364 130.664.879 137.548472  129.555.876
interbank Money Market Placements 785.672 1.032.639 785.672 1.032.63%
Banks 10.657.628 8.852.274 10.655.679 8.852.162
Investmant Securities Available-For-Sale 7.046.033 6.794.743 7.046.033 6.794.743
Investment Securities Held-To-Maturity 5.335.639 5.091.693 5.299.803 4.997.062
Loans and Other Receivables 114,829,302 108.893.630 113.761.285  107.878.263
Financial Liabilities 140.981.560 134.484.425 140.875.122 134.027.410
Bank Deposils 3.881.559 4.079.407 3.978.312 4.078.798
Other Deposits 107.428.905 104.738.677 107.500.723 104,727,952
Interbank Money market borrowings 4,007.166 2.771.987 4.007.166 2.771.987
Funds Borrowed From Other Financial Institutions 14.680.242 12.079.900 14.528.125 12.001.8%1
Subordinated Loans 5.261.523 4.948.031 5.225.391 4.569.196
Securities issued 3.672.758 3.816.408 3.676.908 3.827.651
Miscellaneous Payables 1.949.407 2.050.015 1.949.407 2.050.015
]

Classification of fair value

TFRS 7 sets classification of valuation techniques according to the inputs used in valuation techniques based
on fair value calculations which are whether observable or not,

Fair value levels of financial assets and liabilities that are carried at fair value in DFS Group's financial
statements are given below:

y_ e —
Current Period Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Egtsasnmai Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or 81.860 975.208 - 1.057.668

Public Sector Debt Securities 80.711 - - 80.711
Share Certificated - - - -
Trading Purpose Derivatives - 975.808 - 975.808
Other Securities 1.149 - - 1.149
Financial Assets Available for Sale (*) 6.414.245 568.650 - 6.982.895
Public Sector Debt Securities 6.414.245 - - 6.414.245
Other Securities - 568.650 - 568.650
Hedging Purpese Derivatives --

Total Assets 6.496.105 1.544.458 - 8.040.563
Derivative Financial Liabilities Held for Trading - 1.285.465 - 1.285.465
Hedging Purpose Derivatives -~ - -= —
Total Liabilities - 1.285.465 - 1.285.465
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Prior Period Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss 106.834 1.341.025 - 1.447.859
Public Sector Debt Securities 06.887 - - 96.887
Share Certificated - - - -
Trading Purpose Derivatives - 1.341.025 - 1.341.025
Other Securities 9.947 - - 9.947
Financial Assets Available for Sale (*) 7.125.839 429.423 - 7.555.262
Public Sector Debt Securities 7.125.839 - - 7.125.839
Other Securities - 429.423 - 429.423
Hedging Purpose Derivatives —
Total Assets 7.232.673 1.770.448 - 9.003.121
Derivative Financial Liabilities Meld for Trading - 1.248.386 - 1.248.386

Hedging Purpose Derivatives - - - -
Total Liabilities - 1.248.386 - 1.248.386

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either direcily (as prices) or
indirectly (derived from prices)

Level 3: Unobservable inputs

(*) Share certificates amounting TL 3.956 (31 December 2016: TL 3.930), classified in financial assets available for sale that do not have

quoted market prices in an active market or whose fair value cannot be measured, are carried at cost in the framework of TAS 39.

Investment property and portion of tangible fixed assets that are recorded by their fair value are classified as
Level 3.

Transactions carried out on behalf and account of other parties and fiduciary transactions

Information on whether the Group performs sales, purchase, management, consultancy and custody services
on behalf and account of others, or not

DFS Group performs sales, purchase, management, consultancy and custody services on behalf and account
of others.

Transactions directly realized with other financial institutions depending on fiduciary contracts and probability
of material effect of such transactions on the financial position of the Bank.

None.
Explanations related to hedging transactions

Net [nvestment Risk

DFS Group applies net investment hedge strategy to hedge against the currency risk arising on a consolidated
basis from the net investments amounting to a fotal of Eurc 1.220 million and US Dollar 7 million of subsidiaries
Denizbank AG and Eurodeniz. The part consisting of the same amounts of its foreign currency deposit has
been defined as "hedging instrument”. The effective part of the change in value of the foreign currency deposit
arising from exchange rate has been recognized as "hedging funds” under equity.

On the other hand, as of 1 April 2014, the Parent Bank stopped applying net investment hedge accounting due
to its net investment to hedge against the currency risk on the subsidiary of JSC Denizbank, and the total
hedging fund which is booked under equity for that subsidiary is amounting to TL (57.744).

Total net investment hedging funds recognized under equity is amounting to TL (1.741.301) as of
31 December 2017 (31 December 2016; TL (1.006.604)).

Cash Flow Hedge

The Parent Bank stopped applying cash flow hedge accounting arising from the fluctuations in the interest rate
and in which the hedging instrument was interest rate swaps and the hedged item was deposit, on
31 May 2013. Consequently, derivatives financial instruments which were previously in “hedging purpose
derivatives assets/liabilities” because of being risk hedging instruments are classified in “financial
assets/liabilities held for trading” lines. Negative differences amounting to TL (18.657) which were cumulated
until the transfer date in "hedging funds” account under equity will be transferred to statement of income until
the maturities of related derivative instruments and there is no valuation difference in shareholders’ equity as
of 31 December 2017 (31 December 2016: (616)).
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Explanations related to the consolidated segment reporting

DFS Group is active in four areas; namely, wholesale banking, SME and agricultural banking, retail banking,
and treasury.

Wholesale banking offers financial and banking solutions to large-scale local and international corporate and
commercial customers. In order to meet customer needs related to projects, investment and working capital,
corporate banking offers short and long-term working capital loans, investment loans, financial and operaticnal
ieasing and factoring services, non-cash loans, foreign exchange transactions, export finance, project finance,
structured finance, corporate finance, and deposit products and cash management services.

The Bank offers loan products {consumer loans, mortgage, vehicle, agricultural and investment loans),
distinctive credit cards, producer card, investment products (mutual funds, shares, government bonds/treasury
bills, and repos), deposit products (time, demand, protected), insurance products, SME loans, agricultural
loans, financial and operational leasing and factoring services to the customers classified under retail, SME
and agricultural segments. Alternative distribution channels allow customers to meet their banking needs
without the need to physically visit the branches. Among products that meet every day needs of customers are
overdraft loans, automated bill payment, checkbooks and rental safes.

Within treasury; sales, prop-trading and private banking departments offer spot and forward TL and foreign
exchange transactions, trading of treasury bills, bonds and other local and international securities and
derivative products. Providing medium and long-term financing, diversification of funding and maintanenance
an international investor base are also the activities defined in this segment.

Segment information is prepared in line with the Parent Bank's Management Information Systems and the prior
period figures are also revised accordingly.

Segment information of the Group is presented in the following table:

SME &

Current Period Wholesale Agricultural Retall Treasury &
(01.01.2017-31.12.2017) Banking Banking Banking Other Total
Net interest income 1.524.243 1.737.520 1.288.518 1.720.877 6.281.158
Net fees and commission income 211.153 722.828 747.448 (76.444) 1.604.985
Other incomefloss, net 440.911 304,920 248,886  (1.229.768) (235.051)
Total segment income 2.176.307 2.765.268 2.294.852 414.665 7.651.092
Other operational expenses {586.491) (1.112.413)  (1.418.932) (97.681) (3.215.527)
Impairment of loans and other rec. {533,146} {735.994) (571.823) (102.964) (1.943.927)
Taxation (589-506)
Net profit from continuing operations 1.056.670 916.861 304.097 214.010 1.902.132
Net profit from discontinued operations - - - - -
Net profit for the period 1.056.670 916.861 304.097 214.010 1.902.132
Current Period (31.12.2017)

Segment assets 58.066.374 36.664.330  20.098.688 41.851.547 156.680.939
Subsidiaries and associates 55.334
Undistributed assets 3.686.857
Total assets 160.423.130
Segment liabilities 26.226.248 66.868.879  16.676.505 32.773.798 142545.430
Undistributed liabilities 5.024.293
Equity ' 12.853.407
Total liabitilies and shareholders’ equity 160.423.130

- — ————— — ———
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SME &
Prior Period Wholesale Agricultural Retail Treasury &
(01.01.2016-31.12.2016) Banking Banking Banking Other Total
Net interest income 1.471.456 1.480.410 1.133.206 1.017.059 5.102.131
Net fees and commisston income 181.913 596.224 521.815 {56.194) 1.253.758
Other income/loss, net 436.256 310.982 320,087 {878.478) 198.747
Total segment income 2.099.625 2.387.616 1.985.008 82.387 6.554.636
Cther operational expenses {554.204) (1.029.260)  (1.238.524) (104.182) (2.926.170)
Impairment of loans and other rec. (616.645) {703.621) (479.747) {3.396) (1.803.409)
Taxation (424683)
Net profit from continuing operations 928.776 654.735 266.737 (25.191) 1.400.374
Net profit from discontinued operations - - - - 725
Net profit for the period 928.776 654.735 266.737 (25.191) 1.401.099
Current Period (31.12.2016)
Segment assets 50.151.875 28.333.699 16.536.941 37.514.557 132.537.072
Subsidiaries and associates 25.180
Undistributed assets 2.991.746
Total assets 135.553.958
Segment liabilities 27.456.595 13.644.281 51266805 28455620 120.823.311
Undistributed liabilities 4.140.589
Equity 10.590.098
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 135.553.998
L _________________________________________________——__ |
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SECTION FIVE

DISCLOSURES AND FOOTNOTES ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Explanations and disclosures related to consolidated assets
Information on cash and balances with the Central Bank of the Republic of Turkey

Information on cash and balances with the Central Bank of the Republic of Turkey

Current Period Prior Period
TL FC TL FC
Cash in TL / Foreign Currency 1.100.516 795.623 876.276 947.988
Central Bank of the Republic of Turkey 1.966.321 13.106.352 1.405.531 11.608.546
Qther (%) - - - 20
Total 3.066.837 13.901.975 2.281.807 12.557.554

(*} Includes 20 TL purchased cheques balance for prior period.

Information on balances with the Central Bank of the Republic of Turkey

Current Period Prior Period
TL FC TL FC
Unrestricted Demand Deposits 894.109 1.715.718 1.405.531 1.501.383
Unrestricted Time Deposils 1.072.212 - - -
Restricted Time Deposits - 11,390.634 - 10.108.163
Total 1.965.321 13.106.352 1.406.531 11.609,546

Includes the balances of consolidated foreign subsidiaries at foreign central banks.

Information on reserve requirements

As of 31 December 2017, ali banks operating in Turkey should provide a reserve in a range of 4% to 10,5%
(31 December 2016: between 4% and 10,5%) depending on the terms of the deposits for their liabilities in
Turkish Lira and in a range of 5% to 19% {31 December 2016: between 4,5% and 24,5%) in US Dollars or
standard gold for their liabilities in foreign currencies.

CBRT began paying interest for the reserve deposits maintained in Turkish Lira as from November 2014 and
for the reserve deposits maintained in US Dollar as from May 2015. The interest income of TL 101.420 derived
from the reserve deposits maintained by the Parent Bank at CBRT (1 January - 31 December 2016: TL 56.689)
has been recorded under the account “interests derived from reserve requirements”.

Information on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Information on trading securities given as collateral or blocked

Current Period Prior Period
TL FC TL FC
Share Certificates - - - -
Bonds, Treasury Bills and Similar Marketable Securities 7.797 - 8.380 -
Other - - -- -
Total 7.797 - 8.380 -

Trading securities subject to repurchase agreements
None (31 December 2016: None).
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Positive value of trading purpose derivatives

Current Period Prior Period

TL FC TL FC
Forward Transactions 26.616 23.499 1.549 57.153
Swap Transactions 450,936 415.641 944,857 268.949
Futures Transactions - - - -
Options 5.117 53.989 523 67.994
Qther - - - -
Total 482.669 493.139 946.929 394.096

Information on banks

Information on banks

Current Period . Prior Period
TL FC TL FC
Banks
Domestic 805.840 404.928 6.383 655.752
Foreign 13.196 9.433.564 10.623 4.859.985
Foreign head offices and branches -- - - -
Total 819.136 9.838.492 17.006 5.565.737

Information on foreign banks

Unrestricted Amount Restricted Amount

Current Period Prior Period Current Period Prior Period
£U Countries 8.558.316 4,216,039 - -
LUSA, Canada 346,615 133.538 - -
OECD Countries(®) 19.213 24.627 - -
Off shore zones 45.462 42.362 -- -
Other 477.154 494,042 - -
Total 9.446.760 4.910.608 - -

(*) OECD countries except for EU countries, USA and Canada.
Information on investment securities available-for-sale

Major types of investment securities available-for-sale

Investment securities available-for-sale consist of share certificates, debt securities representing government
bonds, Eurcbonds and foreign currency government bonds issued by the Turkish Treasury and foreign private
sector debt securities.

Investment securities available-for-sale given as collateral and fair value

Available-for-sale financial assets which were collateralized consist of securities offered to various financial
institutions, primarily the Central Bank of the Republic of Turkey and Istanbui Takas ve Saklama Bankasi A.S.
{Settliement and Custody Bank) for interbank money market, foreign exchange market and other transactions.
Such financial assets include government bonds and Eurobonds, and their total book value amounts to TL
754,234 (31 December 2016: TL 849.495).

Investment securities available-for-sale given as collateral or blocked

Curmrent Period Prior Period
TL FC TL FC
Share cettificates - - - -
T-bills, Bonds and Similar Securities 376.777 377.457 725,928 123.569
Other - . - -
Total 376.777 377.457 725.926 123.569
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Investment securities avallable-for-sale subject to repurchase agreements

Current Period Prior Period

TL FC TL FC
Government Bonds 2.481.553 235.350 3.830.370 -
Treasury Bills - - -- -
Other Debt Securities - - - -
Bonds [ssued or Guaranteed by Banks - 271.707 - a
Asset Backed Securities - —- - -
Other - - - --
Total 2.481.553 §07.057 3.830.370 -

Information on available-for-sale securities

Current Pericd Prior Pericd

Debt instruments 6.582.855 7.555.262
Quoted on Stock Exchange 6.982.895 7.555.262
Unquoted on Stock Exchange - -
Share certificates 63.138 41,728
Quoted on Stock Exchange 50.159 37.779
Unguoted on Stock Exchange 3.979 3.045
Impairment provision (- - —
Total 7.046.033 7.596.990

Information related to loans
Information on all types of loans and advances given to shareholders and employees of the Bank

Current Period Prior Period

Cash Non-Cash Cash Non-Cash

Direct Loans Granted to Shareholders - - - -
Corporate Sharehclders - - - -
individual Shareholders -~ - - -
Indirect Loans Granted o Shareholders - 4.655 - 7.721
Loans Granted to Employees 59.102 - 60.741 4
Total 59.102 4.655 60.741 7.725

Information on loans classified in groups | and 1l and other receivables and loans that have been restructured
or rescheduled

Loans and Other Receivables Under Close

Performing Leans and Other Receivables Monitoring (*)
Agreement conditions modified Agreement conditions modified
Loans and Loans and
Other Other
Receivables Extension of Receivables Extension of
{Total) Payment Plan Other (Total) Payment Plan Other
Non-specialized Loans 89.554.864 1.675.128 - 8.567.785 3.956.841 -
Working Capital Loans 36.523.074 467.807 - 1.208.814 587.392 -
Exportl.oans 1.200.764 11.277 - 28.064 617 -
Import Loans - - - - - -
seoans Given to Financial 455 529 - - 168.531 168.531 -
Consumer Loans 15.051.910 200.190 - 1.347.718 326.834 -
Credit Cards 5.830.718 6.838 - 391.233 101.519 -
Cther 30.792.869 989,016 - 5423.425 2.771.048 .
Spegcialization Loans 10.039.070 19.323 - 1.323.496 620.558 -
Other Receivables - - - - - -
Total 90.593.934 1.694.451 - 9.891,281 4.577.399 -

(*} The Bank has a cash loan exposure amounting to USD 93 million and EUR 19 million related with the acquisition finance of a
telecommunication company within a syndicate formed by various domestic and foreign banks, where the financing stucture includes
acquired company's shares pledged as collateral (31 December 2016: USD 93 million and EUR 19 million}. Discussions among
shareholders of the entity, creditor banks and related public institutions regarding restructuring of current main partner including change
of shareholder have been commenced and it is expected that aforementioned discussions shall result in a positive development.
Respective loan Is classifted under “Loans Under Close Monitoring and Other Receivables” as of 31 December 2017.
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Loans and Other
Standard Loans and Other Receivables Under Close
Number of modifications made to extend payment plan Receivables Monitoring
Extended by 1 or 2 times 1.468.552 4.045.435
Extended by 3.4 or S times 225834 §19.558
Extended by more than 5 imes 65 12.406
Total 1.694.451 4.577.399

Loans and Other
Standard Loans and Other Receivables Under Close

Extended payment period of time Receivables Monitoring
0-6 Months 7.091 200,731
6-12 Months 3.923 102.016
1-2 Years 17.420 200.526
2-5 Years 482.851 1.549,297
5 Year and Over 1.183.166 2.524.829
Tolal 1.694.451 4.577.399

Information on loans according to maturity structure concentration

Standard Loans and Cther Loans and Other Receivables
Recelvables Under Close Monitoring

Loans and other Restructured or  Loans and cther Restructured or
Receivables Rescheduled Receivables Rescheduled
Short-Term Loans and Other Receivables 18.917.202 7.567 1.729.484 144.472
Non-Specialized Loans 17.044.339 5.43% 1.622.063 97.7086
Specialized Loans 1.872.863 2.128 107.421 46.766
Other Receivables - -- - -
Medium and Long-Term Loans and Other Recelvables 80.676.732 1.686.884 8.161.797 4.432.927
Non-Specialized Loans 72.510.525 1.669.68¢ 6.945.722 3.859.135
Specialized Loans 8.166.207 17.195 1.216.075 573.792
Other Receivables — — — —_
Total 99.593.934 1.694.451 9.891.281 4.577.399
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Information on consumer loans, individual credit cards and personnel credit cards

Medium or Long

Short Term Term Total

Consumer Loans-TL 356.301 15.161.852 15.518.153
Real estate Loans 4.850 4.218772 4.221.422
Vehicle Loans 467 234.148 234,615
General Purpose Loans 351,184 10.710.632 11.062.116
Other - - -
Consumer Loans-Indexed to FC - 23.910 23.910
Real estate Loans - 23.528 23.528
Vehicle Loans - - -
General Purpose Loans - 382 382
Other - - -
Consumer Loans-FC 2.282 48.318 50.600
Real estate Loans 3 2.233 2.236
Vehicle Loans - - -
General Purpose Loans 2.27% 46.085 48.364
Other - - -
Individual Credit Cards-TL 5.283.424 306.469 5.589.893
Installment 2.527.450 306.469 2.833.919
Non installment 2.755.974 - 2.755.974
Individual Credit Cards-FC 1.697 - 1.697
Installment - - -
Non installment 1.697 - 1.697
Loans Given to Employees-TL 3.513 27.874 31.387
Real estate Loans - 1.380 1.380
Vehicle L.oans - 61 61
General Purpose Loans 3.513 26.433 29.946
Other - -- -
Loans Given to Employees - Indexed to FC - - -
Real estate Loans - - -
Vehicle Loans - - -
General Purpose Loans - - -
Other - - -
Loans Given to Employees - FC 84 236 320
Real estate Loans - - -
Vehicle Loans - -~ -
General Purpose Loans 66 -- 66
Other 18 236 254
Personnel Credit Cards - TL 25.529 170 25.699
Instaliment 12.408 170 12.578
Non installment 13121 - 13121
Personnel Credit Cards - FC 40 - 40
Instaliment - - -
Non instaliment 40 - 40
Overdraft Loans-TL (Real Persons) (") 712271 - 772.271
Qverdraft Loans-FC (Real Persons) 2.987 - 2.987
Total 6.448.128 15.568.829 22.016.957

-

(*) Overdrafts used by the personnel of the Parent Bank are TL 1.657 {31 December 2016: TL 1.488).
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Information on installment commercial loans and corporate credit cards

Medium or Long

Short Term Term Total

Installment Commerclal Loans - TL 569.463 12.634.330 13.203.793
Real estate Loans 146 181.785 181.931
Vehicle Loans 10.247 372.960 383.207
General Purpose Loans 558.070 12.079.585 12.638.655
Other - - -
Installment Commercial Loans - Indexed to FC 42.369 1.510.440 1.552.80%
Real estate Loans - 6.445 6.445
Vehicle Loans 132 35.055 35.187
General Purpose Loans 42237 1.468.940 1.511.177
Other - - -
Installment Commercial Loans - FC - 43.104 43.104
Real estate Loans - - -
vehicle Loans - 73 73
General Purpose Loans - 43.031 43.031
Qther - - -
Corporate Credit Cards - TL 604.485 68 604.553
[nstallment 222.583 68 222,651
Non instaliment 381.902 - 381.902
Corporate Credit Cards - FC 69 - 69
Installment - - -
Non installment 69 - 69
Overdraft Loans-TL (Legal Entities) 1.564.278 - 1.564.278
QOverdraft Loans-FC {Legal Entities) - - —
Total 2.780.664 14,187.942 16.968.606

Loan concentration according to counterparty
Current Period Prior Period
Public 1.669.280 1.427.934
Private 107.815.935 88.718.870
Total 109.485.215 90.146.804
Domestic and foreign loans

Current Period Prior Period
Domestic Loans 96.953.552 82.2(6.250
Foreign Loans 12.531.663 7.940.554
Total 109.485.215 90.146.804

Loans granted to subsidiaries and associates

Current Period Prior Period
Direct loans granted to subsidiaries and associates 13.583 14.139
Indirect loans granted to subsidiaries and associates - -
Total 13.583 14.139

Specific provisions for loans

Specific Provisions Current Period Prior Period
Loans and Recelvables with Limited Collectability 185.939 128.655
Loans and Receivables with Doubtful Collectability 572.481 463.077
Uncollectible Loans and Receivables 2.366.103 2.056.223
Total 3.128.523 2.647.955
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10. Information on non-performing loans (Net)
(i) Information on non-performing loans restructured or rescheduled
Group Il Group IV Group V
Loans and
Loans and receivables receivables with  Uncollectible loans
with limited collectability doubtful collectability and receivables
Current Period 64.319 25.290 208.988
(Gross Amounts Before Specific Reserves) - - -
Restructured Loans and Other Receivables - - --
Rescheduled Loans and Other Receivables 64.319 25.290 208.988
Prior Period 16.363 28.289 105.682
{Gross Amounts Before Specific Reserves) -- - -
Restructured Loans and Other Receivables - - --
Rescheduled Loans and Other Receivables 16.363 28.289 105.682

(i) Movement of non-performing loans

Group I Group IV Group V

Loans and
Loans and receivables receivables with  Uncollectible loans
with limited collectability doubtful collectability and receivables
Balances at Beginning of Period 571.012 866.753 2.213.874
Additions {+} 1.683.428 114.032 174.992
Transfers from Other Categories of Non-Performing Loans (+) - 1.529.890 1.553.608
Transfers from Other Categories of Non-Performing Loans (-} 1.529.890 1.553.608 -
Caollections {-) 263.457 204,927 436.835
Write-offs (~) (%) - -- 594.258
Corporate and Commercial Loans - - 58.856
Retail Loans - -- 246.807
Credit Cards - u- 175.985
Other - - 212,610
Balances at End of the Period 461.093 752.140 2.811.381
Specific Provisions (-) 189.939 572.481 2.366.103
Net Balance on Balance Sheet 271.154 179.658 445.278

*) On 31 March 2017, 18 May 2017, 8 December 2017, and 29 December 2017, the Parent Bank has sold its retail loan portfolic amounting
to TL 418.883 for a consideration of TL 37.700; its SME loan porifolio amounting to TL 228.359 for a consideration of TL 32.322; and its
corporate-commercial portfolio amounting to 507 TL., booked under non-performing loans, to asset management companies.

While the Parent Bank has applied the minimum rates for non-performing corporate and commercial loans, retail loans and credit cards
within the framework of the "Regulation on Procedures and Principles Related to the Determination of the Qualifications of Banks as Loans
and Other Receivables" in the previous periods, i provided additional provision amounting to TL 279.674 based on the maximum rates of

the regulation in the current period.

(iif) Information on non-performing loans and other receivables in foreign currencies

Group Il Group IV Group V
Loans and
Leans and receivables receivables with  Uncollectible loans

with limited collectability

doubtful collectability

and receivables

Current Period: 31 December 2017

Balance as of the Period End
Specific Provisions ()

Net Balance on Balance Sheet

Prior Period: 31 December 2016

Balance as of the Pericd End
Specific Provisions (-)

Net Balance on Balance Sheet

7.423
1.373
6.050

7.700
2.979
4.721

7.320
7.320

8.431
8.288
133

3.047
1.543
1.504

500
138
362
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(iv)Information on non-performing loans according to beneficiary group

Group Il Group IV Group V

lL.oans and
whgﬁﬁi;%dégf:g:;:ﬁs receivables with  Uncollectible loans
Y doubtful collectability and receivables

Current Period (Net): 31 December 2017 271.156 179.658 445,278
toans Granted to Real Persons and Legal Entities (Gross}) 461,093 752,125 2.811.381
Specific provisicns (-} 189.939 572.466 2.366.103
Loans Granted to Real Persons and Legal Entities (Net) 271.154 179.659 445,278
Banks {Gross) - - --
Specific provisions (-) - -- -
Banks {Net) - - -
Cther Loan and Receivables (Gross) - 15 -
Specific provisions {-) - 15 -

Cther Loan and Receivables (Net) - - -

Prior Period (Net): 31 December 2016 410.488 384.234 208.952
Loans Granted to Real Persons and Legal Entities (Gross) 539.143 845.105 2.265.185
Specific provisians (-) 128.655 460.871 2.056.223
Loans Granted to Real Persons and Legal Entities {Net) 410488 384.234 208.962
Banks {Gross) - - -
Specific provisions (-) - - -
Banks {Net} - - -
Other Loan and Recelvables {Gross) - 2.206 -
Specific provisions (-} - 2.206 -

Other Loan and Receivables (Net - - -

11. Liquidation policy for uncollectible ioans and receivables

12.

(i)

For uncollectible loans and receivables, the Bank tries to solve the issue with the customer. If no result is
obtained, all legal actions are taken. Such actions are completed when the insufficiency of collaterals is
documented or a certificate of insolvency is obtained.

Information on write-off from assets policy

Unrecoverable non-performing loans are written off with the decision of the Board of Directors on condition that
receivable of the Group is not material compared to the costs to be incurred for the preparation of necessary
documentation. TL 13.694 of loan balance is written-off in 2017 {31 December 2016: None).

Information on investment securities held-to-maturity

Information on securities subject to repurchase agreement and given as collateral or blocked
information on securities subject to repurchase agreement

Held-to-maturity investments subject to repurchase agreement are TL 1.306.054 (31 December 2016: TL
1.797.997).

(i) Information on securities subject to given as collateral or blocked

2.

Collateralized held-to-maturity investments are government bonds, whose book value amounts to
TL 2.048.110 (31 December 2016: TL 1.099.775).

Information on government securities held-to-maturity

Current Period Prior Period
Government Bonds 5.335.639 5.018.478
Treasury Bills - -
Other Government Debt Securities - -
Total 5.335.639 5.018.478
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Information on investment securities held-to-maturity

Current Period Prior Period
Debt Securities 5.335.639 5.056.032
Quoted on Stock Exchange 5.335.639 5.018.478
Unguoted on Stock Exchange - 37.554
Impairment (-) - —
Total 5.335.639 5.056.032

Information on the movement of investment securities held-to-maturity during the period

Current Period Prior Period
Balance at the beginning of the period 5.056.032 3.376.169
Fareign exchange differences (*) 390.215 260.354
Purchases during the year (*) - 1.419.509
Disposals/Redemptions (110.608) -
Impairment losses (-} - -
Total 5.335.639 5.056.032

{*y Accruals of investment securilies held-to-maturity are included in “foreign exchange differences™
{*") Classifications of avaitable-for-sale financial assets are shown under “Purchiases During The Year”.

The Parent Bank transferred a portion of its securities from “investment securities available-for-sale” portfolio,
with a new cost amounting to TL 2.826.026 and US Dollar 320.674 as of reclassification date, to the “investment
securities held-to-maturity” portfolio due to change in the intention of holding on 23 July,
24 July, 26 December 2013, 24 January 2014 and 1 November 2016. The negative valuation differences
amounting to TL 326.599 followed under equity until the date of classification will be amortized with effective
interest method and recycled to profitloss until the maturities of these securities. As of the balance sheet date,
the remaining negative valuation difference under equity is TL 191.369 (31 December 2016: TL 224.805).

Investments in associates

Investments in unconsolidated associates

The Parent
Address The Parent Bank's share Bank's risk group share
Title {City/Country) percentage (%) percentage (%)
1-Kredi Kayit Birosu A.S. Istanbul/Turkey 9 --
2-Kredi Garanti Fonu A.S. @ Ankara/Turkey . 2 -
3-Ege Tanm Uriinleri Lisansli Dep. A. 9

Income on Current
Total Fixed Interest Securities Period  Prior Period
Total Assets Shareholders'Equity Assets Income: Portfolio  Profit/{Loss) Profit/{Loss) Fair Value
1 259.153 175.797 172.893 4.049 - 36.919 16.458 -
2 314.961 304.484 6.585 18.431 - 5.530 5.483 -
3 10.819 10.496 7.996 152 - {600 465 --

________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ " |
0 information on the financial statements is presented as of the perfod ended 30 September 2017,

@ information on the financial statements is presented as of the period ended 31 December 2016.

Investments in consolidated associates
There are no investments in consolidated associates.
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Investments in subsidiaries

Information on shareholders’ of major subsidiaries

The parent Bank does not need any capital requirement due to its subsidiaries included in the calculation of its
consolidated capital adequacy standard ratio.

Amounts at below table are prepared within the scope of regulation valid for Denizbank AG and they are
obtained from financial data of 31 December 2017.

Denizbank AG

Paid-in capital 956,523
Share premium 1.402.632
Reserves 3.821.143
Deductions from capital 2.559
Total Common Equity 6.177.739
Total additional Tier | capital -
Deductions from capital 10.238
Total Core Capital 6.167.501
Total supplementary capital 112,955
Capital 6.280.456
Deductions from capital --
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 5.280.456

Information on non-consolidated subsidiaries

The Parent Other shareholders’

Address Bank's share  share percentage
Title {Clty/Country) percentage {%) {%)
1-Intertech Bilgi Islem ve Pazarlama Ticaret A.S. Istanbul/Turkey 100 -
2-Denizbank Kiiltdr Sanat Yayinciik Ticaret ve Sanayi A.S. istanbul/Turkey 100 -
3-Deniz Karth Odeme Sistemleri A.S. Istanbul/ Turkey - 100
4-Agik Deniz Radyo ve Televizyon lletigsim Yayinciik ve Sanayi A.S. tstanbul/Turkey - 100
5-Deniz immaobilien Service GmbH Vienna/Austria - 100
§-Ekspres Bilgi Isiem ve Ticaret A.5. istanbul/ Turkey 71 29

7-Gundem Otel Turizm A.S. (%) IstanbulfTurke; 100

Income on Current
Total Fixed Interest Securities Period  Prior Period

Total Assets  Shareholders’Equity Assets Income Portfolio Profit/(Loss}  Profit/(Loss) Fair Value
1 155.806 {2.320) 61.069 3.419 - 872 {9.055) -
2 1.246 1.241 - - - (76} 44 --
3 202 202 - 11 - {i8) (11) -
4 324 318 - - - 15 12 -
5 93 93 - - - 3 (12) -
6 18.112 16.762 2.301 1.484 - 1.018 1.285 -
7 29.440 28.440 29.440 — -- - s --

{*) Deniz Gayrimenkul Yatirm Ortakiid has purchased the shares of Glindem Otel Turizm A.S$. on 24 November 2017 with a consideration
of TL 29.440.

Information on the financial statements is presented as of the pericd ended 31 December 2017, and those
subsidiaries are not included in consolidation because they are non-financial subsidiaries.

Information on consolidated subsidiaries

Cther
The Parent shareholders'
Address Bank's share  share percentage Consolidation
Title {City/Country} percentage(%) {%) (") Method
1 Denizbank AG Viennal/Austria 100 - Full consolidation
2 Eurodeniz Internationat Banking Unit Ltd. Nicosta / Cyprus 100 - Full consolidation
3 Deniz Yatinm Menkul Kiymetler A.$. IstanbubTurkey 100 - Full consolidation
4 JSC Denizbank Moskova Moscow / Russia 49 51 Eull consolidation
5 Deniz Porif8y Ydnetimi A.S. istanbul/Turkey - 100 Full consolidation
6 Deniz Finansal Kiralarma A.3. [stanbul/Turkey 49 51 Full consolidation
7 Deniz Fakioring A.S. [stanbul/Turkey 100 - Full consolidation
8 Deniz Gayrimenkul Yatirim Ontakhid A.§. |stanbul/Turkey - 91 Full consolidation
9 CR Erdberg Eins GmbH & Co KG Vienna/Austria - 100 Full consolidation

(*} Presenting risk group of Bank’s share percentage.
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Income on Current

Total Total Fixed Interest  Securities Period Prior Period Capital

Assets Shareholders’Equity Assels Income Portfolio Profit/(Loss) Profit/(Loss) Fair Value requirement

1 47.710.312 6.276.247 53.444 1,743,058 6.008 698.310 547.337 - -
2 652.967 26.596 68 22.313 - 297 684 - -
3 297.899 233.038 2.265 13.660 449 35.893 14.026 - --
4 1,127.372 318.616 3.200 60.345 13.283 39.150 27.440 - -
5 19.606 18.247 13 2.07¢ 118 5.984 3.656 - -
6 3.550.102 720.426 163.095 293.772 - 89.228 76.485 - -
7 1.826.010 252.386 2.035 267.112 - 61.641 16.015 - -
8 249.833 212.937 117 1.345 - 15.788 12.327 - -
9 129.539 112.471 104.760 2 - 2.844 211 - =

Includes information on the consolidated financial statements as of 31 December 20147,

(i) Movement of consolidated subsidiaries

Current Period Prior Period

Balance at the Beginning of the Period 2.378.988 2.307.921
Movements during the Period 352.589 71.067
Purchases (***) 209.094 -
Bonus Shares Received - -
Dividends from Cusrent Year Profit - -
Sales (*) - (9.999)
Reavaluation Increase, Effect of Inflation and F/X Difference 143.495 87.520
QOther (%) - {6.454)
Allowance for impairment - --
Balance at the End of the Period 2.731.577 2.378.988

Capital Commitments
Share Percentage at the end of Period (%

{*) Status of Ekspres Menkul Degerler A.S. has changed and it is excluded from conscidation scope.

{(**) Shares of Destek Varlk Yénetim A.S., owned fully by Deniz Yatrim, Ekspres Bilgi iglem, Deniz Finansal Kiralama, Deniz Faktoring
and Intertech, were sold to Lider Faktoring and Merkez Faktoring with a total consideration of TL 12320 on

29 December 2016 in accordance with the Board of Directors' decision dated 14 July 2016.
(***) Explanations related {0 purchases within the year are explained on Section Three, footnote lil.

(i} Sectorial information on the consolidated subsidiaries and the related carrying amounts

Current Period Prior Pericd
Banks 1.640.202 1.417.857
Insurance Companies - -
Factering Companies 138.107 138.107
Leasing Companies 590.518 512.877
Finance Companies - --
Other Subsidiaries 362.750 310.147
Total 2.731.577 2.378.988

Balances of the consolidated subsidiaries above have been eliminated in the accompanying financial statements.

(iiiyQuoted subsidiaries within the consclidation scope

Current Period

Prior Period

Quoted on domestic markets 123.368

Quoted on foreign markets

(iv)Consolidated subsidiaries disposed during the current period: None
(v) Consolidated subsidiaries acquired during the current period: None
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Entities Under Common Control (Joint Ventures)

Entities Under Common Controf (Joint Ventures)

The
Group’s
The Parent share Non-
Bank's share percentage Cument Cument  Non-Current
Title percentage {%) (%) Assets Assets Liabilities Income Expenses
Bantag Nakit ve Kiymetli Mal Tagima ve 33 33 27170 35.262 5985  114.595 (102.730)

Glvenlik Hizmetleri A.

-_
Information on the unaudited financial statements is presented as of the period ended 31 October 2017.

Reasons of being non-consolidated for non-consolidated entities under common control (Joint Vent  ures)
and methods of recognition of entities under common control (Joint Ventures) in the Parent Bank's
unconsolidated financial statements

The Parent Bank, although represents Bantag Nakit ve Kiymetli Mal Tasima ve Givenlik Hizmetleri A.S.
(“Bantag”) with 33% of ownership rate as entities under common control in its financial statements, it was not
consolidated due to being a non-financial entity. This investment is carried at cost.

Information on receivables from leasing activities

Maturity analysis of finance lease receivables

Current Period Prior Period

. Gross Net Gross Net

Less than 1 year 1.051.886 820.577 182.240 184.849
Between 1-4 years 1.589.089 1.260.956 1.425.809 1.269.652
QOver 4 years 604.991 520.408 1.583.458 1.182.806
Total 3.245.966 2.601.941 3.201.507 2.637.307

Information on net investments in finance lease receivables

Current Period Prior Period

Gross finance lease receivable 3.245.968 3.201.507
Unearned finance income {~) 644.025 564.200
Cancelled leasing agreements (-} - --
Nel investment on finance leases 2.601.941 2.637.307

Information on operating lease activities

Deniz Finansal Kiralama A.$. started to fleet rental operations in the scope of operational leasing in
June 2014.

Future receivables arising from leased assets are not recognized in the Group’s balance sheet. Receivables
arising from the rents invoiced within the period are recognized in the Group’s balance sheet.

As of 31 December 2017, the Group’s receivables which arise from its operational leasing agreements and will
emerge in the future are distribuied as follows by vear:

Current Period Prior Period
Up io 1 year 35.705 31.158
Between 1-5 years 25,391 29.254
5 vears and over - -
Total 61.096 60.412

Explanation on hedging purpose derivatives
None (31 December 2016: None).
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Information on tangible assets
Tangible Fixed
Assels
Retained With Other Tangible
Real Estate Leasing Vehicles Fixed Assets Total
Prior Period
Cost 141.429 216.670 135.502 914 .474 1.408.075
Accumulated Depreciation - (173.361) {16.161) (553.974) (743.4986)
Net Book Value 141.429 43.309 119.341 360.500 664.579
Current Period -
Net Book Value at the Beginning
of the Period 141,429 43.309 118.341 360.500 664.579
Changes In the Period (Net) 14.789 1 53.258 120.200 188.248
Depreciation Cost {2.207) (13.999) (11.929) {58.536) (126.671)
Provision For Decrease In Value - - - - -
FX Differences (Net) 16.849 - 27 6.482 23.358
Cost At the End ofth_e Eeriod 170.860 213.351% 186.448 1.028.394 1.592.054
ég?itérgu[ated Depreciation At the End of the _ (184.040) (25.752) (639.748) (849.540)
Net Book Value At The End Of The Period 170.860 29.311 160.697 388.646 749,514

DFS Group has passed to revaluation model from cost madel in the framework of TAS 16 “Tangible Fixed
Assets” in valuation of properties in use which are recorded under tangible fixed assets as of
31 December 2016 while it records all of its other tangible fixed assels in accordance with cost model, Positive
differences between property value in expertise reports prepared by licenced valuation firms and net carrying
amount of the related property are recorded under equity accounts while negative differences are recorded

under income statement.

Revaluation difference amounting to TL 61.816 (31 December 2016: TL 45.894) is recognized under equity as
a result of revaluation process, and impairment provision made in previous period for related properties
amounting to TL {3.719) is cancelled and an impairment provision amounting to TL (2.981) is booked for related

propetrties.

Information on intangible assets

Other Goodwill Total

Pricr Period
Cost 640.132 869 641.001
Accumulated Depreciation {436.182) - (436.182)
Net Book Value 203.950 869 204.819
Current Period ‘ -
1ot Dook velue at the Beginning 203.950 869 204.819
Differences During the Period (Net) 88.237 - 88.237
Depreciation Cost (106.282) - (106.282)
Pravision For Decrease In Value - - --
FX Differences (Net) 1.977 - 1.977
Cost Al the End of the Period 734.631 869 735.500
Accumulated Depreciation At the End of the Period (548.749) -~ (546,749)
Net Book Value At The End Of The Period 187.882 869 188.751

Explanation on investment property

investment properties are properties held by Deniz GYO for the basic purpose of making lease profit.

As of 31 December 2017, the Group has investment property is amounting to TL 171.467 (31 December 2016:
TL 164.527) which are carried by their fair value on the Group’s Financial Statements.
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Information on deferred tax asset

Deferred tax asset calculated on the basis of related regulation is TL 216.618 {31 December 2016: TL 153.176)
and deferred tax liability is TL 27.217 (31 December 2016: TL. 15.446). These balances are the net of deductible

and taxable temporary differences calculated as of the balance sheet date.
The following table presents the deferred tax assets according to nature:

Current Period Prior Period
Miscellaneous Provisions 144.718 102.894
Unearned Revenue 67.527 56.753
Valuation Differences of Derivatives 41.818 --
Provisicn for Employee Benefits 29.225 22.882
Tax Losses Carried Forward -~ 22.110
Others o 629
Deferred Tax Assets 283.288 205.268
Valuation Differences of Tangible Fixed Assets (49.457) (32.269)
Valuation Differences of Financial Assets (14.085) -
Valuation Differences of Derivatives - (16.007}
QOthers (30.345) (19.262)
Deferred Tax Liabilities (93.887) (67.538)
Net Deferred Tax Assets 189.401 137.730

{*) Miscellansous provisions include balances of Deniz Leasing and Deniz Faktoring, as well,

Explanation on property and equipment held for sale and related to discontinued operations

DFG Group has no held for trade assets and discontinuing operations in current period. (31 December 2016:

None).
information on other assets

Information on prepaid expense, taxes and similar items
DFS Group's total prepaid expenses are Tl. 533.432 (31 December 2016: TL 300.053).
Other assets do not exceed 10% of total assets excluding the off-balance sheet items.
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Explanations and disclosures related to consolidated liabilities
Information on deposits

Information on maturity structure of deposits

Current period - 31 December 2017:

7 Accumulated

Days Upto1 3-6 6 Months- 1 Yearand Deposit
Demand Notice Month 1-3 Months  Months 1 Year Over Accounts Total
Saving Deposits 2.733.644 -  2.184.088 21.454.732 1.014.816 421.343 381.727 18.8953 28.209.303
E‘;f;gﬂsc{‘j;'ency 16.133.455 ~ 3.970.271 14.116.738 1.916.862 6.996.210 21.934.508 1.485 65.069.327
Residents in Turkey  5.760.988 - 3172110 12.830.289 1.188.694 1.971.765 2.050.528 1.310 26.975.684
Residents Abroad  10.372.467 - 798,161 1.286.449 727968 5.024.445 19.883.978 175 38.093.643
Public Sector Deposits 515.330 - 60.012 73.405 13.340 70 4.297 - 666.454
Commercial Deposits  3.110.416 -~ 2.123.010 4.923.835 161.657 235.947 134,702 - 10.689.567
Other Ins. Deposits 121.224 . 245123 1120697 498612 135.924 19,708 - 2.141.288
Do Metel 275083 - 41758 270412 24620 25990 8470 5733 652.966
Bank Deposits 184.537 - 2.137.759 413.018 6.635 802.952 436.658 = 3.981.559
Central Bank - - - - - - - B -
Domestic Banks 8.500 - 1.617.817 77.332 6.132 - - - 1.708.781
Foreign Banks 175.275 - 519.942 335.686 503 802.952 436.658 -~ 2271016
Speciat Finan. Inst, 762 - - -- - -- - - 762
Other - - = — -- - - - -
Total 23.074.589 — 10.762.021 42.372.837 3.636.342 8.618.436 22.920.068 26.171 111.410.464
- "

(*} Foreign Exchange Deposit Account consists of Saving Deposit customers at ihe amount of TL 45.928.588 and Commercial Deposit
customers at the amount of TL 19.140.735.

Prior period - 31 December 2016:
v

7 Accurnulated

Days Upto1 3-6 6 Months- 1 Yearand Deposit
Demand Notice Month 1-3 Months _ Months 1 Year Over Accounts Total
Saving Deposits 2.322.348 - 2.355.686 15.076.048 701.221 153.831 252.692 256.694 20.888.520
g‘;’;{gg&ti)”ency 12.890.613 - 2.975.273 11.835.876 1.553.924 6.001.084 19.819.205 1.3256 55.077.300
Residents in Turkey 5.861.977 -~ 2.698.271 10.866.308 1.278.067 1.862.383 1.588.328 1.165 24.254.499
Residents Abroad 7.028.636 - 279.002 969.568 275,857 4.038.701 18.230.877 160 30.822.801
Public Sector Deposits 486,443 - 38.635 51.363 3.869 349 10.808 - 591.268
Commerclal Deposits 2.820.471 - 2206973 5.371.841 711.082 155101 226.933 - 11.492.501
Other Ins. Deposits 102.245 -~ 103.356 1.515.8642 128.363 9.358 178.377 - 2.037.341
Precious Metal Deposits 265.351 - 29.656 151.809 41.697 28.783 12.364 4.268 534,228
Bank Deposits 76.053 - 507.818 882.414 860 1.767 105.881 - 1.574.793
Central Bank -- - - - - - - - -
Domestic Banks 7.188 - 111.384 27.378 - 1.767 - - 147.707
Foreign Banks 44.298 - 396.454 855.0386 860 - 105.881 - 1.402.529
Special Finan. inst. 24.557 - - - - - - - 24.557
Other -- - - - - - - - =
Total 18.963.524 — 8.217.398 34.885.093 3.141.116 6.350.273 20.606.260 32.287 92.195.951

==
(*) Foreign Exchange Deposit Account consists of Saving Deposit customers at the amount of TL 36.483.244 and Commercial Deposit
customers at the amount of TL 18.584.056.
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Information on deposit insurance

Information on saving deposits insured by Saving Deposit Insurance Fund and the total amount of the deposits

exceeding the insurance coverage limit

Deposits owned by foreign subsidiaries in scope of consolidation are under insurance coverage according to
legislations of countries in which they are located and are not included in following table.

Saving Deposit

Exceeding the Insurance

Insurance Fund Coverage Limit
Current Prior Current Prior
Period Period Period Periocd
Saving Deposits 14.280.818 10.732.125 13.842.565 10.067.622
Foreign Currency Saving Deposits 3.444.973 2.373.888 11.546.115 9.536.921
Cther Saving Deposits - - - -
Saving Deposits - - - -
Foreign Branches' Deposits Under Foreign Insurance Coverage - - - --
Total 17.725.791  13.106.013 25.388.680 19.604.543

(ii) Saving deposits that are not under the guarantee of deposit insurance fund

Current Period Prior Period
Deposits and Other Accounts in Foreign Branches 20.381 162.530
Deposits and Other Accounts belong to Major Shareholders with Thelr Parents, Spouse and
Children under Theit Wardship - -
Peposits and Other Accounts belong to Members of Board of Directors, CEO and Deputy 55.016 41.124
CEOQ with Their Parents, Spouse and Children under Their Wardship : :
Beposits and Other Accounts linked to Crimes Mentioned in 282nd Article of 5237
Numbered Turkish Penal Code dated on 26/05/2004 B -
Deposits belong to Cff-Shore Banks who are established in Turkey 245.974 24.265
Tolal 391.371 227.919

(ii)Saving deposits in Turkey are not covered by any insurance in any other countries since the Bank's

headquarter is not located abroad.
Information on trading purpose derivatives

Negative value of trading purpose derivatives

Current Period Prior Period

TL FC TL FC
Forward Transactions 9,968 36.623 40,220 18.978
Swap Transactions 630.677 511.969 506.384 §595.267
Futures Transactions - - - -
Options 13.082 83.740 7 86.530
QOther e - - -
Total 653.127 632.338 546.611 701.775

Information on funds borrowed

Information on banks and other financial institutions

Current Period Prior Pericd
TL FC TL FC
Central Bank Loans — - - ”
BDomaestic Banks and Institutions 1.081.828 885.776 1.094.208 740.691
Foregign Banks, [nstitutions and Funds 1.026.369 11.686.269 1.035.318 8.388.474

Total 2108197 12572045 2.129.526 9.129.165

Maturity information of funds borrowed

Current Period Prior Period
TL FC TL FC
Shot-Term 1.521.562 5.982.17% 1.602.323 3.571.403
Medium and Long-Term 586.605 6.580.866 527.203 5.557.762
Total 2.108.197 12.572.045 2.129.526 5.129.165
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Additional explanation on concentrations of the Group’s liabilities

Deposits constitute the most important fund of the Group, and they accouni for 69% of total funds (31 December
2016: B8%}). Loans received, subordinated loans, debts to money markets and issued securities account for
17% of total funds (31 December 2016: 19%).

Information on securities issued

Current Period Prior Period
TL FC TL FC
Bonds 27.842 1.100.070 - 1.309.730
Bills 2.296.203 - 1.766.245 -
Asset Backed Securities 248.543 — 415,080 -
Total 2.572.688 1.100.070 2.181.325 1.309.730
L

Nominal value of TL 73.637 (31 December 2016: TL 70.095) of the securities issued were repurchased by the
Parent Bank and offset in the financial statements.

If other lfabilities line of the balance sheet exceeds 10% of the balance sheet total; excluding the off balance
sheet commitments; information on components making up at least 20% of the other liabilities
Other liabilities do not exceed 10% of the balance sheet total excluding the off-balance sheet items.

Information on lease payables
None (31 December 2016: None).

Changes in agreements and further commitments arising
None (31 December 2016: None).

Obligations under finance leases
None (31 December 2016: None).

Explanations on operational leases

DES Group has operational lease agreements for its bank branches, motor vehicles and ATM locations. Rental
payments for the majority of these agreements are made and expensed on a monthly basis. The unexpired
portion of prepayments made for rent agreements on a yearly basis are accounted for under prepaid expenses
in “other assets”.

Explanation on “sell-and-lease back” agreements

There is no sale and lease hack transactions in the current period.

Information on liabilities arising from hedging purpose derivatives
None {31 December 2016: None).
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Explanation on provisions

Information on general provisions

Current Period Prior Period

Provisions for Loans and Receivables in Group | 1.035.450 907.233
Additional Provision for Loans with Extended Maturities 29113 71.838
Provisions for Loans and Receivables in Group |l 299.763 258.866
Additional Provision for L.oans with Extended Matwities 158.654 160.565
Provisions for Non Cash Loans 105.552 103.255

Qther -
Total 1.440.765 1.269.354

The minimum provision rates for the calculation of the general provision are defined in "Regulation on the
Amendment of the Regulation on the Procedures and Principles for the Determination of the Qualifications of
Banks and the Other Receivables and Provisions to be Issued" published in the Official Gazette dated 14
December 2016 and numbered 29918, and the Bank provided a general provision above the minimum
provision rates as of 31 December 2017. if the minimur allowance rates stated in the Regulation had been
applied, the general provision amount in the financial statements would be lower by TL 1.125.000
(31 December 2016:; TL 868.000).

Provision for currency exchange gainfloss on foreign currency indexed loans

As of 31 December 2017, the reserves ailocated for the exchange rate differences of loans indexed to foreign
currency amount to TL 11.313 (31 December 2016: TL 128). Provisions for exchange rate differences
pertaining to loans indexed to foreign currency are netied off against the loans and receivables under assets
in the financial statements.

Liabilities on provision for employee benefits
TAS 19 requires using the actuarial method for calculation of obligations the company.

Accordingly, the following actuarial assumptions were used in the calculation of the total reserve for employee
termination benefits:

Current Period Prior Period
Discount rate 4,69% 571%
Interest rate 11,50% 11,00%

Expected rate of salarylimit increase 6,90% 5,00%

As of 31 December 2017, TL 111.109 of provision for employee termination benefits {31 December 2016: TL
86.385) and TL 32.549 of unused vacation accruals (31 December 2016 Tl 35.334) were reflected to the
consolidated financial statements.

Movement of the provision during the period:

Current Period Prior Period

Balance at the Beginning of the Period 86.385 70.923
Changes in the period 36.946 21.344
Actuarial loss/gain 13.704 8.388
Paid in the period (26.595) (14.517)
FX difference 669 247

Balance at the End of the Period 111.109 86.385

Information on other provisions

Information on other provisions exceeding 10% of total provisions

TL. 398.822 of other provisions is provided for possible future losses related to certain loans in the loan portfolio
(31 December 2016: TL 233.823), TL 98.485 (31 December 2016: TL 85.998) specific provisions for non-cash
loans, TL 65.000 provision for possible developments in the overall economic and market conditions, TL 43.336
(31 December 2016: TL 29.058) for provisions for the litigations against the Bank and provisions for operaticnal
risk and TL 37.747 includes other provisions (31 December 2016: TL 8.198).
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Information on taxation

Information on current taxes

(i) Information on current tax liability

As of 31 December 2017, the corporate tax provision of DFS Group is TL 443.436 (31 December 2016: TL
320.330), and it has been offset with prepaid taxes amounting to TL 342.395 (31 December 2016: TL 312.220).

(ii) Information on taxes payable

Current Period Prior Period
Corporate taxes payable 101.041 8.110
Taxation on securities 71.157 52,785
Capital gains taxes on property 2.083 1.992
Barnking Insurance Transaction Tax (BITT) 62.735 50.659
Taxes on foreign exchange transactions - -
Value added taxes payable 4.638 3.636
Other 50.942 46.938
Total 292.606 164.120

(iii) Information on premiums

Current Period Prior Pericd
Social security premiunms- employee share 9.386 8.154
Social security premiums- employer share 10.481 8.933

Bank pension fund premium- employee share - -
Bank pension fund premium- emplover share

Pension fund membership fees and provisions- employee share 464 348
Pension fund membership fees and provisions- employer share 568 426
Unemployment insurance- employee share 669 582
Unemployment insurance- employer share 1.299 1.111
QOther 5.044 6.045
Total 27.911 25.59%

Information on deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax liability calculated on the basis of related reguiation is TL 27.217 (31 December 2018: TL 15.446).
Information on deferred taxes is disclosed in Note “m" of explanations and disclosures related to consolidated
assets.

Information on debts of fixed assets held for sales purposes and related to discontinuing operations

None.

Information on subordinated loans

Cumrent Period Prior Perlod
TL FC TL FC
Domestic Banks - - - -
Other Domestic Institutions — -- -- -
Foreign Banks - 5.261.522 - 5.483.501
Other Foreign Institutions - - - -
Total — 5.261.522 - 5.483.501

Information on subordinated loans are provided in note numbered I-b in Fourth section.
Information on shareholders’ equity

Paid-in capital

Current Period Prior Period
Common Stock 3.316.100 3.316.100
Preferred Stock - -

Paid-in capital of the Parent Bank is shown at nominal value.
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Paid-in capital amount, explanation as to whether the registered share capital system is applied at the bank; if
so the amount of registered share capital

Registered paid-in capital system is not applied.

Information on share capital increases and their sources; other information on any increase in capital shares
during the current period

None.

Information on share capital increases from revaluation funds

None.

Capital commitments in the last fiscal year and at the end of the following period, the general purpose of these
commitments and projected resources required to meet these commitments

The capital is totally paid in and there are no capital commitments.

Prior period indicators of the Parent Bank's income, profitability and liquidity; and possible effects of the
predictions on equity, considering uncertainty indicators

Balance sheets of the entities under DFS Group are managed prudently, to minimize the negative effects of
interest rate, foreign currency and credit risks. This policy contributes to the progress of DFS Group’s
profitability with a steady increasing trend.

Information on the privileges given to stocks representing the capital
The Parent Bank does not have any preferred stocks.

Common stock issue premiums, shares and equity instruments

Current Period Prior Period
Number of Shares (*) 50.368.526 50.368.526
Preferred Stock - -
Commen Stock Issue Premium {**) 15 15

Common Stock Cancellation Profits - -
Other Equity Instruments -

Total Common Stock fssued (%) 50.369 50.369

{*) Related to the Bank’s paid-in capital increase on 27 September 2004. At that date, the paid-in capital was increased from Tl. 202.000
to TL 290.000; and TL 50.369 of this TL 88.000 increase was received in cash through issuance of new shares to the public.

(**) The share price for the above mentioned public issuance was “twothousandeighthundredandseventyfive” Turkish Liras and a total
issuance premium of TL 94.441 was realized. The inflation restatement effect of TL 3.910 was also recognized over the eriginal balance
untit December 2004. A total issuance premium of TL 60 was realized through the Bank's paid-in capital increase amounting TL 400,000
on 28 August 2008, Share premium al an amount of TL 84.501 and inflation adjustment differences of share premium at an amount of TL
3.910 has been added to paid-in capital with the capital increase made by the Bank al the date of 14 October 2015. A share premium at
an amount of TL 15 has been occurred due to capitat increase on 28 June 2018 at an amount of TL. 1.500.000.

Securities Revaluation Reserve
vy

Current Period Prior Period
TL FGC TL FC
Associates, Subsidiaries and JVs -- - - .-
Valuation Difference (428.373) (19.026) (444.941) (110.354)
FX Difference - - e -
Total (428.373) {19.026) (444.941) (110.354)
L - — —— " ———— —— |

Information on hedging funds
Explanations about hedging funds are in Note VIii of Section Four.
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Information on minority shares

Current Period Prior Period

Balance at the Beginning of the Period 8.270 7.198

Minority interest in net income of consolidated subsidiaries 1.374 1.072

increasel(decrease) In minority interest due to disposals - -

Cther - -=

Balance at the End of the Period 8.644 8.270
. |

Information on revaluation differences of tangible assets

DFS Group has passed to revaluation model from cost maodel in the framework of TAS 16 "“Tangible Fixed
Assets” in valuation of properties in use which are recorded under tangible fixed assets as of
31 December 2016 while it records all of its other tangible fixed assets in accordance with cost model.
Revaluation difference amount of TL 50.908 is recognized under equities as a result of revaluation process.

The account also includes TL 66.854 gain on sale of real estate, associates, subsidiaries and equity securities
classified as available-for-sale and recorded in equity.

Explanation of profit distribution

According to the dividend distribution proposal of the Parent Bank's Board of Directors at the Ordinary General
Assembly held on 28 March 2017, TL 70.464 is allocated as legal reserve, 75% of sales income of real estate
and participation shares amounting to TL 66.854 is allocated to savings funds in accordance with Article 5
subparagraph 1/e of the Law of Corporate Tax Na 5520. It has been decided that the remaining TL 1.271.963
from the net profit of the year 2016 amounting to TL 1.409.281 is allocated to extraordinary reserves.

Explanations and disclosures related to consolidated off-balance sheet items
Information related to off-balance sheet commitments

Type and amount of irrevocable commitments

All of DFS Group’s off-balance sheet loan commitments are in the nature of irrevocable commitments. As of
31 December 2017, non-cash loans, commitments for credit card limits and commitments for cheque payments
are TL 28.371.266, TL 14.216.415 and TL 2.375.880, respectively, (31 December 2016: T1. 28.782.015, TL
12.764.645 and TL 2.111.130, respectively). These items are detailed in the off-balance sheet accounts.

Type and amount of possible [osses from off-balance sheet items referred to below

Guarantees, bills of exchange and acceptances and other letters of credit which can be considered as financial
collateral

As of 31 December 2017, DFS Group has letters of guarantee amounting to TL 22.531.211, bills of exchange
and acceptances amounting to TL 204.541, and guarantees and sureties on lefters of credit amounting to
TL 3.132.744 and other guarantees and sureties amounting to TL 2.502.770.

As of 31 December 2016 DFS Group has letters of guarantee amounting to TL 21.782.215, bills of exchange
and acceptances amounting to TL 256.830, and guarantees and sureties on letters of credit amounting to
TL 2.426.616 and other guarantees and sureties amounting to TL 4.316.354.

(i) Final guarantees, provisional guarantees, sureties and similar transactions

 — —  _____________________ |

Current Period Prior Period
Provisional Lefters of Guarantee 946.459 1.103.750
Final Letters of Guarantee 14.140.276 14.223.149
t.etters of Guarantee for Advances 2402152 2.874.152
tetters of Guarantee given to Customs Offices 161.951 169.797
QOther Letters of Guarantee 4.880.373 3.411.367
Total 22.531.211 21.782.215

- ——
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information on non-cash loans
(i) Total amount of non-cash loans

Current Period Prior Period
Non-Cash Loans Given for Obtaining Cash Loans 8.125.808 8.211.637
With Original Maturity of 1 Year or Less 7.691.929 7.816.907
With Original Maturity of More Than 1 Year 433.879 394.730
Other Non-Cash Loans 20.245.458 20.570.378
Total 28.371.266 28.782.015

(i) Sectorial risk concentrations of non-cash

loans

Current Period Prior Period

TL % FC % TL % FC %

Agricultural 139420 1,25 193480 1,13 125.887 1,25 115.147 0,61
Farming and Cattle 136.563 1,22 192.397 1,12 124.881 1,24 113.637 0,61
Forestry 1.77% 0,02 1.083 oM 584 0,01 768 -
Fishing 1.082 0,01 - - 432 - 742 -
Manufacturing 1.882.658 16,87 7.586.277 44,12 2217.779 22,09 8.391.528 44,78
Mining 1861.110 1,44 219.513 1,28 325.222 3,24 277.560 1,48
Production 1.561.839 14,00 6.689.187 38,85 1.5568544 1552 7.500.548 40,07
Electric, Gas, Water 159.709 1,43 687.577 3,89 334.013 3,33 604.420 3,23
Construction 3.430.640 30,75 4.099.609 23,81 2982.079 29,70 5.275.696 28,15
Services 3.724.310 33,39 3.005.656 22,60 3.304.228 32,89 3.421.731 18,26
Wholesale and Retail Trade 2220924 19,91 2350478 1385 1.863.421 19,55 1.788.412 9,54
Hatel and Restaurant Services 244290 219 385.461 2,24 250.428 2,49 351.862 1,88
Transpoitation and telecommunication 526.167 4,72 790.567 4,59 489,354 4,87 855.957 457
Financial institutions 286.184 2,57 318.03¢ 1,85 206.000 295 340408 1,82
Real estate and letting services 47,336 0,42 4878 0,03 21577 021 3.968 0,02
Self-employement services - - - - - -- -- -
Education services 216.080 1,94 13.086 0,08 38,997 0,39 11.688 (,06
Health and social services 183.329 1,64 43.147 0,25 244450 243 69.406 0,37
Other 1.978.211 17,74 1.421.005 8,25 1.411.681 1407 1.536.249 8,20
Total 11.155.23% 100,00 17.216.027 100,00 10.041.664 100,00 18.740.351 100,00

(iii) Information about the first and second group of non-cash loans

1. Group Il. Group

TL FC TL FC
l.efters of Guaraniee 10.724,733 11.153.294 344,932 238.252
Bank Aceptances 4,773 195.768 - -
Letters of Credit - 3.132.744 - -
Endorsements - - - -
Underwriting Commitments - - - -
Factoring Commitments - - - -
Other Commitments and Contingencies 10.801 2.491.969 -~ -
Total 10.810.307 16.977.775 344.932 238.252
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b. information related to derivative financial instruments

Upto1 More than

Current Period month  1-3 month 3-12month __ 1-5 years 5 years Total

Hedging Purpose Detivative Transactions

A. Total Medging Purpose Derivative Transactions - - - - - -
Fair Value Hedge Transactions - - - - - -
Cash Flow Hedge Transactions - - - - -
Net Foreign Inverstment Medge Transactions - - - - - -

Types of Trading Transactions

Foreign Currency Related Darivative Transactions (f) 39433403 15.169.401 16.064.786 5.503.039 - 76,160,628
Forward FC Call Transactions 1.922.370 1.084.914 949.064 73.733 - 4.030.081
Ferward FC Pull Transactions 1.812.783  1.095.765 825124 72.907 - 4.006.579
Swap FC Call Transaclions 16.907.008 4.817.033 4.075.612 2.550.481 ~ 28.150.134
Swap FC Pul! Transactions 15,703.344  4.577.968 3.885.763 2.791.720 -~ 26,958,795
Cptions FC Call Transactions 1.479.656  1.879.799  3.073.114 7.022 -~ 6.439.591
Cptions FC Pudl Transactions 1.508.242  1.903.922  3.136.108 7.178 - 6575448
Futures FC Call Transactions B - - - - -
Futures FC Pull Transaclions - - - - - -

Total of Interest Derivative Transactions (l1) 1.100.000 1.129.706 2.364.060 9.169.318 12.940.194 26.703.278
Swap Interest Call Transactions 550.000 164.853 782.030 4.584.659 6.412.877 12.494.219
Swap Interest Puil Transactions 550.000 164.883 782.030 4.584.658 6412677 12.484.219
Options Interest Call Transactions - - 800.000 - 57.420 857.420
Options Interest Pull Transactions - 800.000 - - 57.420 857.420
Securities Interest Call Transactions - - - - - -
Securities Interest Puli Transactions - - - - - -
Futdres Interest Calt Transactions - - - - - -
Futures Interest Pull Transactions - - - - - -

Other Types of Trading Transactions {lil) 1.694.012 258.648 312,748 - -~ 2265408

B. Total Types of Trading Transactions (I + Il + 1H) 42,227,415 16.547.755 18.741.593 14.672.357 12.940.194 105.129.314

Total Derivatives Transactions 42.227.415 16.547.755 18.741.593 14.672.357 12.940.194 105.129.314

Upto i More than

Prier Period month  1-3month 3-12month -5 years 5 years Total

Hedging Purpose Derivative Transactions

A._ Total Hedging Purpose Derivative Transactions - - - - - -
Fair Value Hedge Transactions - - - - - -
Cash Flow Hedge Transactions - - - - - -
Net Foreign Inverstment Hedge Transaclions - - - - - --

Types of Trading Transactions

Fareign Cumency Related Derivative Transactions (1} 34.214.405 16.867.847 5.859.534 4.509.821 - £1.451.607
Forward FC Call Transactions 1,165,432 174.033 687.902 - - 2.027.367
Forward FC Pull Transactions 388.688 927.659 689.440 - - 2.005.787
Swap FC Call Transactions 14.903.585  7.050.000 860.9¢4  2.170.588 - 25,015,167
Swap FC Pull Transactions 13.238.857  7.100.478 718.085 2339233 - 23,406,673
Opticns FC Call Transactions 2.241.094 825161 1410230 = - 4476485
Qptions FC Pull Transactions 2.275.709 781.516  1.462.903 w - 4520128
Futures FC Call Transaclions - - -- - - -
Futures FC Pull Transactions - - - .- - -

Total of Interest Derivative Transactions (Ii) 19.259 1.073.356 2.583.656 3.918.759 12445642 20.040.672
Swap Interest Cal! Transactions 10.557 536.678 1.291.828 1958678 6.152.507  9.957.248
Swap Interest Pull Transactions 8,702 536,678 1.291.828 1.960.081 6.158.507  9.956.796
Options Interest Call Transactions - - - - 63.314 63.314
Options Interest Pull Transactions - - - - 6§3.314 63.314
Securities Interest Caill Transactions - - - - - -
Securities Interest Pull Transactions - - - e - -
Futures Interest Call Transactions - - - - - -
Futures Interest Pull Transactions - - - - - -

Other Types of Trading Transactions {HII} 1.555.043 34,940 169.418 332,334 - 2092735

B. Total Types of Trading Transactions (| + It + {11} 35.789.707 17.976.143 B.612.608 8.760.914 12.445642 83.585.014

Total Derivatives Transactions (A+B 35.789.707 17.976.143 8.612.608 8.760.914 12445642 83.585.014

c. Credit derivatives and risk exposures on credit derivatives
None.,
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Contingent assets and liabilities

A tax investigation report for 2010 has been issued by Large Taxpayers Qffice of Turkish Tax Inspection Board
as a result of examination of file costs collected from customers who use individual credits, with respect to
Resource Utilization Support Fund (*RUSF”). Accordingly, a payment accrual slip including Resource
Utilization Support Fund at an amount of TL 1.774 and delaying penalty at an amount of TL 2.141 has been
submitted on account of the fact that the Bank has not calculated RUSF over file cost collected from customers
who use individual credits. There is no provision made in financial statements since the implementation of the
Bank is in line with legislation taking into consideration that file costs should be included in non-interest
revenues rather than interest revenue in Uniform Chart of Account published by Banking Regulation and
Supervision Agency and similar decisions of the Courts. The Bank has appealed to the court for the stay of
execution on 29 January 2016. The defendant tax office has notified the Bank regarding payment orders on 15
March 2016 since the aforementioned case has not been concluded. The Bank has paid a total amount of TL
3.957 to Large Taxpayers Office with prejudice including a RUSF at an amount of TL 1.774, a penalty rate
amounting to TL 2.141 and a late fee at an amount of TL 42 on 21 March 2016 and has applied to Istanbul Tax
Court for the stay of execution and cancellation of payment orders on 22 March 2016. According to the court
decision communicated on 2 March 2017, the accrued and penalty interest amount related to RUSF for the
period January-December 2010 and the paid amounts to the large Taxpayers Office was decided to be
returned to the Bank. The related amount has been deducted on 27 March 2017. The defendant administration
went to the appeal process to reverse the judgement.

Atax investigation report for 2011 has been issued by Large Taxpayers Office of Turkish Tax Inspection Board
as a result of examination of file costs collected from customers who use individual credits, with respect to
RUSF. Accordingly, a payment accrual slip including RUSF at an amount of TL 2.182 and delaying penalty at
an amount of TL 2.911 has been submitted on account of the fact that the Bank has not calculated RUSF over
file cost coilected from customers who use individual credits. There is no provision made in financial statements
since the implementation of the Bank is in line with legislation taking into consideration that file costs should
be included in non-interest revenues rather than interest revenue in Uniform Chart of Account published by
Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency and similar decisions of the Courts. The Bank has appealed to
the Istanbul Administrative Court for the stay of execution on 16 January 2017. It is decided to suspend
execution on 19 January 2017. The lawsuii process Is still in progress.

Tax investigation reports for the years 2012, 2013, 2014 have been issued by the Large Taxpayers Office of
Turkish Tax Inspection Board as a result of examination of file costs collected from customers who use
individual credits with respect to RUSF. Fund. In tax inspection reports, accrual payment slips including RUSF
at amounts of Tl 6.620 for 2012, TL 2.345 for 2013, TL 3.776 for 2014 and delaying penaities at amounts of
TL 6.885 for 2012, TL 2.016 for 2013 and TL 2.265 for 2014 have been submitted on account of the fact that
the Parent Bank has not calculated RUSF over file cost collected from customers who use Individual credits.
There are no provisions made in financial statements since the implementation of the Parent Bank is in line
with legisfation taking into consideration that file costs should be included in non-interest revenue rather than
interest revenue, and that the repayment of file expenditures in court decisions should not be considered as
interest, in Uniform Chart of Account published by Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency. The Parent
Bank has filed claims in order for suspension of execution for the years 2012, 2013 and 2014, respectively to
Istanbul 2nd Administrative Court, to istanbul 12th Administrative Court and to Istanbul 7th Administrative Court
on 5 September 2017. Suspensions of execution have been decreed with regards to the claims, and the lawsuit
process is still in progress.

In addition to the matters explained in detail above, the Group has provided a provision amounting to TL. 38.146
(31 December 2016: TL 23.959) for the lawsuits against the Group in accordance with the precautionary
principle. These provisions are classified among "Other provisions". Except for those provisioned, other
ongoing lawsuits are uniikely to result in a negative conclusion and cash outflow is not foreseen for them.
Activities carried out on behalf and account of other persons

The Bank provides trading, custody, management and consultancy services to its customers.
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Explanations and disclosures related to consolidated statement of income
Interest income

Information on interest income received from loans

Current Period Prior Period
TL FC TL FC
Short Term Loans 2.665.117 139.133 2.525.685 111.928
Medium and Long Term Loans 5.782.087 2.398.566 4.180.252 1.851.111
Loans Under Follow-Up 62.303 - 44,456 -
Premiums Received from Resource Utilization Supporl Fund -- -- -- --
Total 8.509.507 2.537.699 6.760.393 1.963.039

Interest income received from loans alse includes fees and commissions from cash loans granted.

Information on interest income received from banks

Current Period Prior Period
TL FC TL FC
Central Bank of the Republic of Turkey 113.514 576 2 602
Domestic Banks 74.824 9.653 2.365 9.825
Foreign Banks 3.079 18.580 343 1.473
Foreign Head Offices and Branches - - -- -
Total 191.417 28.809 2.710 11.800

The interest income from required reserves that maintain in CBRT of Parent Bank amounting to TL 101.420 (1 January - 31 December
2016: 56.689) recognized under “Interest Income Received From Required Reserves™ account.

Information on interest income received from securities portfolio

Current Period Prior Period

TL FC TL FC
Trading Securities 10.181 6.724 3.334 283
Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss - - - -
fnvestment Securities Available-for-Sale 527.387 54,682 576.283 97.476
Investment Securities Held-to-Maturity 428.610 79.842 288.851 30477
Total 966.178 141.248 868.448 128.246

Information on interest income received from associates and subsidiaries

Current Period Prior Period
Interest Received from Associates and Subsidiaries 552 359

Interest expense

Information on interest expense related to funds borrowed

Current Period Prior Period

TL FC TL FC

Banks 224,858 653.533 179.630 520.306
Central Bank of the Republic of Turkey 61 - 52 -
Domestic Banks 85.021 24.095 103.919 8.451
Foreign Banks 138.816 629.438 75.659 511.855
Foreign Head Offices and Branches - - - -
Other Institutions - - — -
Total 224,898 653.533 178.630 520.306

interast expense related 10 funds borrowed also includes fees and commission expenses.

Information on interest expense paid to associates and subsidiaries

Current Period Prior Period
tnterest Paid to Associates and Subsidiaries 8.038 3.344
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Information on interest expense paid to securities issued
Current Period Prior Period
Initerest Paid to Securities |ssued 336.432 226.336

Maturity structure of the interest expense on deposits

Time Deposit
Demand Uptoi Upto6 Upto1 Morethan Cumulative
Account Name Deposits Month Up tc 3 Month Month Year 1 Year Depasit Total
TL
Bank Deposits 14 63.805 - -- -- - - 63.819
Saving Deposits 32 244740 2.166.069 96.928 31.820 34.646 1.761 2.576.096
Public Sector Depaosits - 3.179 14,958 789 34 958 - 19.918
Commercial Deposits 1 271463 626.344 23.398 25.049 17.023 - 963.278
Other Deposits - 11.938 139.938 54.767 30.638 8.853 -- 246.134
"7 Days Notice" Deposits - - - -- - - - -
Total 47 £95.125 2.947.309 175.882 87.641 61.480 1.761 3.869.245
FC
De’;‘g;g” Currency 3274 560.839 432809 64166  34.823  38.250 6 1.134.176
Bank Deposits 1.719 21.6803 - - - - - 23.322
"7 Days Notice" Deposits - - - - -- - - -
Precious Metal Deposits 4 10614 3.151 568 1.584 244 a1 16.556
Total 4.997 593.356 435.960 64.734 36.407 38.503 g7 1.174.054
Grand Total 5.044 1.188.481 3.383.269 240.616  124.048 99.983 1.858 5.043.269

Dividend Income

Current Period Prior Period
Trading Securities - .
Financiat Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss - -
Investment Securities Available-For-Sale 262 -
Other{*} 968 205
Total 1.230 205

"} Presents dividend income from unconsolidated subsidiaries and associates.

—

Information on trading income/loss

Current Period Prior Period
Income 314.041.836 231.976.770
Capital Markel Transactions 19.078 19.677
Derivative Financial Instruments 6.062.753 4.575.590
Fareign Exchange Gains 307.960.005 227.381.503
Loss (=) 315.019.697 232.546.890
Capital Market Transactions 59.160 48.117
Derivative Financial Instruments 7.038.693 4.517.646
Foreign Exchange Losses 307.921.844 227.981.127

Net Trading Income / Loss 977.861 570.120

Net gain from foreign exchange translation differences related to derivative financial instruments is
TL {1.525.3889) (net gain for the period 1 January - 31 December 2016; TL 265.964).

Information on other operating income

Current Period Prior Period

Reversal of prior periods’ provisions 31e.749 332.407

(Gain on sale of properties 31.452 13.262

Communication income 10.568 10,957

Chegue book fees 3.676 3.743

Other 376.135 408.293

Total 741.580 768.662
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Impairment on loans and other receivables

Current Period Prior Pericd
Specific Provisions on Loans and Other Receivables 1.449.404 1.241.892
Loans and Recelvables in Group Hi 254.978 123.02¢9
Loans and Recelvables in Group IV 423.308 313.688
Loans and Recelvables in Group V' 7711718 805.175
Non-performing Commissions and Other Receivables e -
General Loan Loss Provisions 171.411 294.015
Free Provisicn far Probable Risks 172.943 222471

Impairment Losses on Securities . -
Financial Assels at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss - -
Investment Secunities Available-for-Sale - -

Impairment Losses on Associates, Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Investment

Securities Held to Maturity
Associates - —
Subsidiaries - -
Joint Ventures - -
Investment Securities Held-to-Maturily - -

Other 150,169 45.031

Total 1.943.927 1.803.409
- - - —————————————————————————————— ——————|
Information related to other oeerational expenses

Current Period Prior Period

Personnel Expenses 1.457.912 1.359.180

Reserve for Employee Termination Benefits 4.835 7.202

Reserve for Bank's Social Aid Fund Deficit - -

Impairment Losses on Tangible Assets - 3719

Depreciation Charges of Tangible Assets 126.671 120.372

Impairment Losses on Iniangible Assets - =

Amontization Charges of [ntangible Assets 106.282 92.092

Impairment Losses on Investment Accounted for under Equity Method
Impairment of Assets to be Disposed -

Depreciation of Assets to be Disposed 1.508 2.579
Impairment of Assets Held for Sale - -
Other Operating Expenses 1.125.266 975.872
Operational Lease Expenses 3713.100 242400
Repair and Maintenarnce Expenses 71.787 60.462
Advertisement Expenses 90.487 92763
Other Expenses ("} 649.882 580.247
Losses on Sale of Assets 4.B55 4.376
Other 388.398 360.788
Total 3.215.527 2.826.170

——————— ——————— —— ———————
(*} Other expenses in other operationai expenses comprise; communication expenses, IT repair and maintenance and software fees,

staticnary, entertainment and representaticn, heating and lighting, credit card service fee and others amounting to TL 67.539, TL. 102.923,

TL 26.769, TL 8.704, TL 27.508, TL 190.254 and TL 225.536, respectively (1 January - 31 December 2016: TL 78.141, TL 82.257, TL

21.216, TL 5,105, TL 24.813, TL. 113.765 and TL 252.015, respectively).

Information on profit / loss before tax from continued and discontinued operations

As 1 January - 31 December 2017, DFS Group has a profit before tax from continuing operations amounting
to TL 2.491.638 (1 January-31 December 2016: Tl 1.825.057).

Information on tax provision for continued and discontinued operations

Current period taxation benefit or charge and deferred tax benefit or charge

As 1 January - 31 December 2017 the current period taxation charge on continuing operations is TL 425.560
{1 January - 31 December 2016: TL 301.748) while deferred tax charge is TL 163.946 (1 January - 31
December 2016: TL 122.935 deferred tax benefit).

There are not current period taxation charge on discontinuing operations. ( 1 January - 31 December 2016:
none).
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Deferred tax benefit / (charge) arising from origination or reversal of temporary differences

Deferred tax benefit/charge arising from temporary differences Current Period Prior Period
Arising from Origination of Deductible Temporary Differences (+) 160.750 24,307
Arising from Reversal of Deductible Temporary Differences (-} (314.539) (124.207)
Arising from OCrigination of Taxable Temporary Differences (-) {52.999) (55.351)
Arising from Reversal of Taxable Temporary Differences (+) 42.842 32.316

Total 163.946 122,935

Deferred tax benefit / (charge) arising from temporary differences, tax losses or unused tax credits

Sources of deferred tax benefit/charge Current Period Prior Period
Arising from Origination (+)/ Reversal (-} of Deductible Temporary Differences (153.607) (28.777)
Arising from Origination (-)f Reversal (+} of Taxable Temporary Differences (10.158) {23.039)
Arising from Origination (+¥ Reversal (-) of Tax Losses (181) (71.128)
Avising from Origination (+) Reversal (-) of Unused Tax Credits -- --

Total 163.946 122,935

Information on continuing and discontinued operations net profitloss
DFS Group has a net profit is amounting to TL 1.902.132 (31 December 2016: TL 1.401.099).
DFS Group does not have discontinuing operations.

Information on net profit and loss

The nature and amount of certain income and expense items from ordinary operations is disclosed if the
disclosure for nature, amount and repetition rate of such items is required for the complete understanding of
the Bank's performance for the period

Income generated from DFS Group’s ordinary banking transacticns during the current and prior period are
mainly consisted of interest income from loans and marketable securities and income from other banking
services. Main expense items are the interest expenses related to deposits and borrowings which are the main
funding sources of marketable securities and loans.

Profit or loss attributable to minority interests

Current Period Prior Period
Profit/{loss} attributable to minority interests 1.374 1.072

No changes have been made in the accounting estimates which may have a material effect in the current
period and materially affect subsequent periods.

If “other” lines of the income statement exceeds 10% of the period profit/loss, information on components
making up at least 20% of “other” items

Other Fees and Commissions Received Current Period Prior Period
Credit card clearing and other commissions 750.717 608.509
Contracted merchant / POS commissions 288.249 258,470
Insurance services 263.738 158.719
Filing fees 203.754 145.506
Intermediary services 91.541 84.450
Account management fees 57.251 56.528
Remittance commissions 54.360 42.472
Expertise fees 18.795 16.767
Other 157.045 113.970
Total 1.885.450 1.485.431

Other Fees and Commissions Paid Current Period Prior Period
Credit card  POS commissions 401.789 3065.524
EFT fees and commissions 11.954 10.163
QOther 98.120 95.493
Total 511.863 411.180
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Explanations and disclosures related to consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity

information on capital increase

Parent Bank has increased its paid-in capital at a total amount of TL 1.500.000 consisting of share premiums
amount of TL 39, sales profits from shares of subsidiaries and associates and properties amounting to TL
113.097, extraordinary reserves amounting to TL 636.864 and in cash amounting to TL 750.000 on 28 June
2016.

informafion on issuance of shares

Share premium, at an amount of TL 39, has been added to paid-in capital with the capital increase made by
the Bank on 28 June 2016.

A premium of issued shares amounting fo TL 15 was formed as a result of capital increase of TL 1.500.000
made on 28 June 20186,

Information on distribution of profit

General Assembly of the Bank is authorized body for the profit appropriation decisions. As of the preparation
date of these financial statements, annual ordinary meeting of the General Assembly has not been held yet.

Information on increase/decrease amounts resulting from merger
None.

Information on investments available-for-sale

“Unrealised gain/foss” arising from changes in the fair value of securities classified as availablefor-sale are not
recognized in current year income statement but recognized in the "Marketable securities valuation differences”
account under equity, until the financial assets are derecognised, sold, disposed or impaired.

Hedging transactions
Explained in Information on hedging transations in Note X! of Section Four.

Revaluation difference on tangible assets

Revaluation differences on tangible assets includes gains on sales of subsidiaries and gains on sales of real
estates and explained in detail in Note lI-I-12 of Section Five.

Information on foreign exchange differences

Balance sheet items of Bahrain branch of the Parent Bank and subsidiaries of the Group located outside Turkey
are refranslated into Turkish Lira with the foreign exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date, and
income statements items are translated info Turkish Lira with the average foreign exchange rates. Related
foreign exchange differences are accounted in the shareholders’ equity under “Other profit reserves.”

Detailed explanations in detail are provided in “information on foreign exchange difference in Note I-b of
Section Threg”.

Other

None.

Amounts transferred to reserves

The Parent Bank transferred TL 145.881 (31 December 2016: TL 715.091) to extraordinary reserves from prior
period profits in 2017. TL 70.464 is transferred to legal reserves in 2017 (31 December 2016: TL 38.132).
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Explanations and disclosures related to consolidated cash flow statement

Information on cash and cash equivalents
Components of cash and cash equivalenis and the accounting policy applied in their determination:

Cash and foreign currency together with demand deposits at banks including the CBRT are defined as “Cash”;
interbank money market and time deposits in banks with original maturities less than three months are defined
as “Cash equivalents”.

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period

Current Period Prior Period

01.01.2017 01.01.2016

Cash 6.111.804 5.066.168
Cash in Vault, foreign currencies and other 1.824.283 1.411.721
Banks demand deposits 4,287.521 3.654.447
Cash and Cash Equivalent 7.850.740 4.880.925
Interbank Morey market pfacements 3.001.570 1.213,997
Banks time deposils 4,734,305 3.333.389
Securities 114.865 333.539

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 13.862.544 9.947.093

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period

Current Pericd Prior Period

31.12.2017 31.12.2016

Cash 9.981.924 6.111.804
Cash in Vault, foreign currencies and other 1.896.119 1.824.283
Banks demand deposits 8.085.805 4.287.521
Cash and Cash Egulvalent 6.654.104 7.850.740
Interbank Money market placements 784.845 3.001.570
Banks time deposits 5.736.860 4.734.305
Securities 132.399 114.865

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 16.636.028 13.962.544
L ———————————————— ———————

Information on cash and cash equivalent assets of DFS Group that are not available for free use due to legal
restrictions or other reasons

DFS Group made a total provision for required reserves on CB of Turkey and other foreign Central Banks in
amount of TL 15.072.673 (31 December 2016: TL 13.015.077).

Disclosures for “other” items in the statement of cash flows and effect of changes in foreign currency exchange
rates on cash and cash equivalents

“Other” item amounting to TL (2.444.013) (31 December 2016: TL (5.183.999)) before “changes in operating
assets and liabilities” comprise other operating expenses, fees and commissions paid and net trading loss. As
a result of these changes in the cash flow statement, the balance of cash and cash equivalents has changed
from TL 13.962.544 (31 December 2016: TL 9.947.093) to TL 16.636.028 in 2016 (31 December 2016: TL
13.962.544).

“Other liabilities” item included in “change in assets and liabilities arising from banking activities”, amounting
to TL (363.826) (31 December 2016: TL (1.444.812)) comprise changes in sundry creditors, taxes and duties
payable, and other external resources.

The impact of change in exchange rate on cash and cash equivalent assets consists of exchange difference
occurring as a result of translation of foreign currency cash and cash equivalent assets average to TL with
rates belonging to beginning and end of the period and it amounts to TL 602.221 as of 31 December 2017 (31
December 2016: Ti. 803.652).
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Explanations and disclosures related to DFS Group's risk group

Information on loans and other receivables to DFS Group's risk group

Current Period

Cther Real Persons and

Associates, Subsidiaries  Bank's Direct and Indirect Legal Entities in Risk

and Joint-Ventures Shareholder Group
DFS Group's Risk Group () Cash _ Non-Cash Cash  Non-Cash Cash  Non-Cash
Loans and Other Receivables
Balance at the Beginning of the Period 14.146 128.405 5.448 7.721 56 4
Balance at the End of the Period 13.587 130.539 9.439 4.655 19.046 -
Interest and Commission Income Received 558 28 484 5 4 -

*) As described in the Article 49 of Banking Law no.5411,

—

Prior Period

Other Real Persons and

Asscciates, Subsidiaries  Bank's Direct and Indirect Legal Entities in Risk

and Joint-Ventures Shareholder Group
DFS Group's Risk Group (*} Cash  Non-Cash Cash  Non-Cash Cash  Non-Cash
Leans and Other Receivables
Balance at the Beginning of the Period 2 35.394 2.299 19.970 33 30
Balance at the End of the Period 14.146 128.405 5.448 7.721 56 4
Interest and Comrmission Income Received 377 54 126 8 3 --

("} As described in the Article 49 of Banking Law no.5411.

Information on deposits held by and funds borrowed from DFS Group’s risk group

Other Real Persons and

Associates, Subsidlaries  Bank's Direct and Indirect Legal Entities in Risk

and Joint-Ventures Shareholder (**) Group
Current Current Current
DFS Group's Risk Group {*) Period Prior Period Period Prior Period Period  Prior Period
Balance at the Beginning of the Period 102,325 27778  6.607.506  6.257.056 9.247 8.552
Balance at the End of the Period 60.929 102.325  §.811.85%  6.607.506 18.991 9.247
Interest and Commission Income Received 8.680 1.925 410.154 231.906 594 1.028

*} As described in the Article 49 of Banking Law no.5411.

(**) Includes the subordinated loan of US Doltar 1.050 million and Euro 115 million received from Sherbank,

—

Information on forward and option agreements and similar agreements made with DFS Group's risk group

QOther Real Persons and
Bank's Direct and Indirect

Associates, Subsidiaries
and Joint-Ventures
Current

Shareholder
Current

Legal Entities in Risk
Group
Current

DFS Group's Risk Group (") Period  Prior Period Period Prior Period Period Prior Period
Transactions for Trading Purposes:
Balance at the Beginning of the Period - - - -- - 6.368
Balance at the End of the Period - -- 51.000 - - -
Total Income/{Loss) -- - 8.264 (5.989) -- {388)

Transactions for Hedging Purposes:
Balance at the Beginning of the Period . - - - - "
Balance at the End of the Period - - - — - -
Total Incomef(Loss - - - — — -

(*) As described in the Article 49 of Banking Law rno.5411.

Information on benefit provided to top management

DFS Group made payment amounting to TL 83.415 (31 December 2016: TL 81.609) to its top management in
2017.

99



DENIZBANK ANON|M $|RKET| Convenlence Translation of

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Consolidated Financial Report
AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2017 Originally lssued in Turkish,
(Currency: Thousands of TL - Turkish Lira) See Note 3./.c

Information on transactions with DFS Group’s risk group

As of 31 December 2017, cash ioans and other receivables of the risk group represent 0,03% of DFS Group’s
total cash loans and bank deposits granted the deposits and borrowings represent 6,7% of DFS Group's total
deposits and borrowings. Non-cash loans granted to risk group companies represent 0,5% of the total balance.

The risk group, which DFS Group belangs to, has finance and operation lease contracts with Deniz Leasing.
The Parent Bank gives brokerage services through its branches for Deniz Yatinm. As part of the consaclidation
adjustments, these balances and transactions have been eliminated from the accompanying financial

statements.
Domestic, foreign and off-shore banking branches and foreign representatives of the Parent Bank

Information relating to the Parent Bank’s domestic and foreign branch and representatives
. ——

Number of
Number Employees
Domestic branch 896 12.251
Country of
Incorporations
Foreign representation - - -
Statutary Share
Total Assets Capital
Foreign branch - R - N N
Off shore banking region 1 5 1-Bahreyn 8.492.506 )

branches

- - -——«#———— —————————————— —— —— ————————— ———|
Explanations on the Parent Bank’s branch and agency openings or closings
The Parent Bank opened 28 new branches and closed 25 branches in 2017.

The branches of associates and subsidiaries

There are 43 branches of Denizbank AG, of which headquarter is located centrally in Vienna. 27 of branches
are located in Austria, 16 branches are in Germany.

JSC Denizbank Moscow, which is located in Moscow, does not have any branches.
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SECTION SIX

OTHER DISCLOSURES AND FOOTNOTES
Other explanations related to DFS Group’s operations
Explanations related to DFS Group’s operations

None.

Summary information about ratings of the Banks which has been assigned by the international rating agencies

0 0 00000
Moody's(*) Fitch Ratings(**}
Outtook Negative Qutlook Positive
Long Term Forgign Currency Deposils  Ba2 Long Term Foreign Currency 8B+
Short Term Foreign Currency Deposits  Not Prime Shott Term Foreign Currency B
Long Term Local Currency Deposits Ba2 Long Term Local Currency BB+
Short Term Local Currency Deposits Not Prime Short Term Local Currency B
Bank Financia! Strenght Rating (BCA)  ba3 Viabitity bb
Support 3
National AA{tun
*As 61 20.07.2017 s of 05.10.2017

Subsequent events

Sberbank of Russia {Sberbank), commenced initial straiegic discussions with Emirates NBD Bank PJSC
(Emirates NBD) regarding Denizbank A.S. (Denizbank), including the possibility of Emirates NBD acquiring
Sberbank's existing shareholding in Denizbank. Discussions are at a very preliminary stage and there is no
certainty that any transaction will be entered into.

Sherbank also stated that it routinely evaluates potential opportunities in different markets and a further
announcement will only be made if there is a significant development.
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SECTION SEVEN

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Matters to be disclosed related to Independent Audit Report

Consolidated financial statements and notes of DFS Group are subject to independent audit by Giiney
Bagmmsiz Denetim ve Serbest Muhasebeci Mali Migavirlik A.S. (A Member Firm of Ernst & Young Global
Limited) and audit report dated 7 February 2018 is presented preceding the consoclidated financial statements.
Explanations and notes prepared by Independent Auditor

There exist no explanations or notes, deemed to be required, and no significant issues which are not mentioned
above and related to activities of DFS Group.

102



